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Chairman’s Statement

EREWME

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Universe Entertainment and Culture Group
Company Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the
2019/2020 annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2020
(the "Year").

The Group is principally engaged in video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
entertainment business, securities investment, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical and watches products,
and provision of type-setting, translation, printing, design,
distribution of financial print products and other related
services.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$27.6
million for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
77.3% as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$121.6
million for the same period last year, which was mainly due to
the net effect of:

(i) the contributions from a new blockbuster called “White
Storm 2 — Drug Lords” (" & 2K ¥ /R") released by
the Group with a remarkable box office of approximately
RMB1.3 billion in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") in second half of 2019; and

(i)  the revenue and result of the Group was negatively
affected by the sustained outbreak of coronavirus disease
("COVID-19") in the first half of 2020. In particular, the
theaters of the PRC have shut down in the wake of
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since late January
2020, the original schedule of releasing new films of the
Group has been delayed and hence affected the Group's
revenues and result in 2020.
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The year-long US-China trade war and social unrest in Hong
Kong weakened the retail sector in Hong Kong and the PRC in
the second half of 2019. In addition, the recent outbreak of the
COVID-19 epidemic in 2020 further undermined the economies
of Hong Kong and the PRC and disrupted the Group's
business. The Group is cautious on the short term unfavorable
outlook but is optimistic about the long term sustainability of
our business. The Group will respond to forthcoming market
challenges with flexibility and will adjust its our plan and
strategy from time to time to cope with the changes in the
market environment.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors
and our staff for their dedicated efforts and contributions to
the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank all our
customers and Shareholders for their trust and support.

By Order of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall Group results

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$27.6
million for the year ended 30th June 2020 (the “Year”),
representing a decrease of approximately 77.3% as compared
to the net loss of approximately HK$121.6 million for the same
period last year, which was mainly due to the net effect of:

() the contributions from a new blockbuster called “White
Storm 2 — Drug Lords” ("fF&E2KH¥/R") released by
the Group with a remarkable box office of approximately
RMB1.3 billion in the People’s Republic of China (the
“"PRC") in second half of 2019; and

(i) the revenue and result of the Group was negatively
affected by the sustained outbreak of coronavirus disease
("COVID-19") in the first half of 2020. In particular, the
theaters of the PRC have shut down in the wake of
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since late January
2020, the original schedule of releasing new films of the
Group has been delayed and hence affected the Group's
revenues and result in 2020.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$154.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 18.9 times as compared to approximately
HK$7.8 million in the same period last year. It accounted for
approximately 68.3% (2019: approximately 12.6%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year.

The Group recorded a segmental profit of approximately
HK$17.4 million from this business segment for the Year
against a segmental loss of approximately HK$52.4 million for
the same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The significantly increase of the revenue and profit from
this business segment is mainly due to the satisfactory
performance of the new film during the Year. In particular,
the Group released a new blockbuster called “White Storm
2 = Drug Lords” ("fFE2K ¥R "), directed by Herman Yau
(EF#2%) and starring Andy Lau (272 %), Louis Koo (5 X%%),
Michael Miu (& &) and Karena Lam (#k%fiX) in July 2019
and recorded a remarkable box office of approximately RMB1.3
billion in the People’s Republic of China (which excludes Hong
Kong for the purpose of this report (the “PRC")). There was no
new film released by the Group in the same period last year.

However, the revenue and result of this segment was
negatively affected by the sustained outbreak of coronavirus
disease ("COVID-19") in the first half of 2020. In particular,
the theaters of the PRC have shut down in the wake of the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since late January 2020, the
original schedule of releasing new films of the Group has been
delayed and hence affected the Group's revenues and result in
2020. Taking into account the combined effect of the COVID-19
pandemic and the expected slow recovery from current market
conditions, the Group recorded an increase of the impairment
loss of films rights, films in progress and film related deposits
of approximately HK$16.0 million (2019: approximately
HK$232,000) during the Year.

The recoverable amount of film rights, films in progress and
film related deposits as at 30th June 2020 was assessed
with reference to a value-in-use calculation at the end of the
reporting period, which was derived from discounting the
projected cash flow using a discount rate of 11% (2019 : 14%).

Starting from mid-July 2020, the cinemas in PRC have resumed
operation. The cinemas mainly showed old movies or small-
scale productions in the first phase of reopening in July and
August 2020. Nonetheless, a number of blockbusters has
already been released from late August 2020 and the total
attendance of the cinemas in PRC was increasing in the last
few months. This is good sight for the gradual recovery of
China’s film market from the COVID-19 pandemic in the second
half of 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

Going forward, the Group continues to invest in original
production of quality films in Hong Kong and China in response
to the recovery of the film market. In this respect, the Group
not only invested another 4 films, including a film called
“Flashover” ("B Xi%") directed by Oxide Pang (ZJ§) and
starring Du Jiang (“#)T"), Wang Qianyuan (“EFJ&") and
Tong Liya (" BB "), and 6 online movies during the Year, but
also expects to release a new blockbuster called “Shock Wave

("#FIEEZR2") directed by Herman Yau (Ef#2)%) and starring
Andy Lau (BIf£%E), Sean Lau (8IS =) and Ni Ni ({#4E) during
the year ending 30th June 2021. In addition, the Group also
plans to commence the shooting of another blockbuster called
“White Storm 3" (“#®8&3") directed by Herman Yau (E84&)%)
and starring Louis Koo (& x%%), Aaron Kwok (26 #) and Sean
Lau (23 &) during the year ending 30th June 2021. The Group
will continue to closely monitor the challenging operating
environment and review its business plan and strategy from
time to time with a view to suitably adjust them taking all
relevant factors into consideration.

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical and
watches products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$51.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 43.3% as compared to approximately HK$35.6
million in the same period last year. Revenue from this
business segment included the revenue of approximately
HK$41.1 million (2019: approximately HK$16.8 million) mainly
from the trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
in Hong Kong (“HK Optical Business”) and the revenue of
approximately HK$9.9 million (2019: approximately HK$18.8
million) from the trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches
and optical products in the PRC (“PRC Watches & Optical
Business”). It accounted for approximately 22.5% (2019:
approximately 57.8%) of the Group’'s revenue during the
Year. Segmental loss from this business during the Year was
approximately HK$12.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 13.1% as compared to approximately HK$10.7
million in the same period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Optical and Watch Business of the Group has been taking
over a time of unprecedented challenges during the Year. The
watches and optical consumer market of Hong Kong and China
was negatively affected by the on-going Sino-US trade and the
social unrest in Hong Kong in second half of 2019. Thereafter,
the COVID-19 epidemic outbreak and the control measures
imposed by PRC and Hong Kong government from late January
2020 onwards had a significant negative impact over our
operations in both Hong Kong and the PRC in the first half of
2020.

To mitigate the negative financial impact under the
unprecedented challenging operational environment, we
have imposed a lot of cost saving measures during the Year
including negotiation with landlords for temporary rental relief
and reduction of the shop’s operation hours to cope with the
decrease in business activities as a result of social distancing
measures imposed by the government. Staff costs were
reduced through no pay leave arrangements and the clearance
of the annual leave of the staff. However, the savings from our
cost control works could not completely offset the negative
impact of COVID-19 pandemic during the Year. As a result, the
segmental loss of the Group’s Optical and Watch Business
increased during the Year as compared to the same period in
last year.

The Group will continue to adopt cost control measures,
closely monitoring the market situation and timely adjusting
the business strategies in view of the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Trading Securities

As at 30th June 2020, the Group's trading securities amounted
to approximately HK$3.3 million (2019: approximately HK$8.7
million) which accounted for approximately 0.5% (2019:
approximately 1.2%) of the Group's audited consolidated total
assets as at 30th June 2020.

The Group's portfolio of trading securities comprised 3 (2019:
3) equity securities listed in Hong Kong and engaged in money
lending, solar energy and healthcare industries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

The Group recorded a fair value loss arising from the change in
fair value of trading securities of approximately HK$5.4 million
(2019: approximately HK$5.3 million) for the Year. Such loss
was mainly attributable to the poor performance of certain
investments during the Year. As a result, the overall segment
loss of the securities investment segment was approximately
HK$5.8 million (2019: approximately HK$4.6 million) during the
Year.

The global financial market remains extremely volatile and it is
difficult to accurately assess the full economic impact of the
COVID-19 epidemic at this moment. The Group will continue to
review and adjust its investment portfolios and invest in equity
securities listed in Hong Kong with the aim to reduce the risk
and achieve a stable return to the Group under the current
market circumstance.

Other financial assets

Below is a table setting out the list of the material other
financial assets held by the Group as at 30th June 2020:

AEERAFRECGRZEFAFEZHM
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company Notes incorporation by the Group 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 for the Year capital the Year
&R
HRRENE HEER HEEE R-%-%F
n-g-%f R-B-%F MN-3-BF RA=1H
AAZTR R-B-BE RASTA RBETR  HfteREE
158 BEARE AAZtAZ BEEY FEE age EE BRE AEE
HRENDZR MG EMAIBE  FERAEE  SHzEMM AVE Bl A BAt  ATERE EXEH REBA
(approximately  (approximately (approximately  (approximately (approximately ~(approximately  (approximately  (approximately
%) HK$'000) %) %) %) HK$'000) HK$'000) HK$'000)
(Fa%)  EaTED (BE4%) (Bi%) (Biw)  (HHTET EoTEL)  EoTED
Cassia Investment 1 Cayman Islands N/A N/A 1,348.8 0.2 04 135 (4,319.4) 1,530.2 -
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Promising Social 2 Caymanlslands ~ 1,982.215 21.08 3220 less than 0.1 0.1 32 50 - -
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instruments
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

Cassia Investment Limited Partnership Il (“Cassia I1”) is an
exempted limited partnership established in accordance with the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law of Cayman Islands offering
limited partnership interests for the purpose of obtaining capital
appreciation through making private equity investments mainly
in the consumer sector across Greater China and South East
Asia, as well as in non-Asian enterprises that have a strong
exposure to Asian consumers market. Cassia Il intends to
target companies that it believes will benefit from the growing
disposable income of the Asian middle class and can capture
the behavioural consumer trends that follow such growing
household wealth and structured equity transactions primarily in
Greater China, Thailand, Indonesia, Vietnam and the Philippines.
Up to 30th June 2020, the Group has subscribed for the limited
partnership interest of Cassia Il of approximately US$7.9 million
(approximately HK$61.2 million) (2019: same).

Promising Social Media Private Equity Fund (the “PSM Fund”)
is a close-ended investment fund incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on bth February 2014 under the laws of the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. The
PSM Fund is not a regulated mutual fund for the purposes of
the Mutual Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
principal investment objective of the PSM Fund is to maximize
capital growth through investing businesses which are engaged
in or derive a significant proportion of their income from the field
of social media. The PSM Fund commenced operation on 29th
April 2015. Weluck Development Limited (“Weluck"”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company first invested in the PSM Fund
in April 2015 and subscribed a total of 1,982.215 class A shares
of the PSM Fund (the "PSM Shares”) with a total investment
cost of approximately HK$19.5 million. The manager of the Fund
(the "Fund Manager”) had been delegated authority to manage
the Fund.

Since the subscription of the PSM Shares by Weluck, the fair
value of the PSM Fund significantly decreased because of the
under performance of the PSM Fund. As informed by the Fund
Manager in December 2018, in view of the real litigation risks
and regulatory risks surrounding the Fund Manager's holding
company and the fact that the underlying investment was loss
making, the Fund Manager decided to divest the underlying
investment held by the PSM Fund at a price significantly below
the its investment cost. In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the
Fund Manager (the “Purchaser” and is an independent third
party of the Group) agreed to provide conditional offer (“Offer”)
to buy-back the PSM Shares held by Weluck at a consideration of
approximately HK$17.8 million by reference to Weluck's sharing
of latest available audited net asset of the PSM Fund as at 31st
December 2017.
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On 1st March 2019, Weluck accepted the Offer to dispose the
PSM Shares at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million
(the "Disposal”). The Purchaser shall settle the consideration
of the Disposal to Weluck in cash by 34 monthly instalments,
whereby (i) approximately HK$1,483,000 shall be paid on or
before 29th March 2019 and (i) approximately HK$494,000 on
or before the last business day of each consecutive month from
April 2019 to December 2021. Completion of the Disposal is
conditional upon the Purchaser having paid the consideration of
the Disposal to Weluck in full in accordance with the schedule
described above. The PSM Shares will be transferred to the
Purchaser on receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in full
by Weluck. In the opinion of the Directors, the arrangement
constitute a derivatives contract to dispose the PSM Shares at
a fixed consideration in the future and should be recognized as
a derivative financial instrument (“DFI"”). Based on the business
valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer
which was not connected with the Group, the fair value of
the DFI was approximately HK$15.5 million in March 2019.
The fair value of the DFI would be recognised as a gain in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group
and recognized as the other financial assets on the consolidated
balance sheet of the Group over the time proportionally from
March 2019 to December 2021.

Taking into account (i) the fair value of the DFI of approximately
HK$15.5 million would be recognised as a gain of the Group over
the time proportionally from March 2019 to December 2021; (ii)
the unsatisfactory performance of the investment of the PSM
Fund; and (iii) the constant cash inflow that will be brought by
the Disposal, the Directors consider it is appropriate and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole to
accept the Offer made by the Purchaser to effect the Disposal.

Looking forward, the financial and investment markets are
continually affected by the COVID-19 epidemic. The Group will
take a cautious approach in managing the investment portfolio
with the aim to reduce the risk and achieve a stable return to
the Group.
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Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
during the Year. As at 30th June 2020, the Group had loans
receivable of approximately HK$1.5 million (2019: approximately
HK$65.0 million), under the money lending business and
recognized interest income (excluded inter-segment sales)
of approximately HK$7.9 million (2019: approximately
HK$7.7 million). It accounted for approximately 3.5% (2019:
approximately 12.5%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.
Loans receivable are interest bearing at rates ranging from
8.5% to 10% per annum (2019: 3% to 18% per annum). The
segment loss of this business segment was approximately
HK$13.4 million during the Year (2019: approximately HK$13.0
million).

The segmental loss was mainly attributable to the change
in expected credit loss for loans receivable of approximately
HK$18.7 million for the Year (2019: approximately HK$18.7
million). The change in expected credit loss allowance for loans
receivable is principally due to an increase in loans receivable
which have past due during the Year.

Due to the unstable financial and investment market and the
highly competitive business environment, the Group will take a
cautious approach to grant new loans in the coming year.

Leasing of investment properties

The rental income from leasing of investment properties
remained stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental
income of approximately HK$1.1 million (2019: approximately
HK$1.1 million) during the Year from its properties at Woodland
House 1-5, Woodlands Villa, 121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong. It accounted for
approximately 0.5% (2019: approximately 1.8%) of the Group’s
revenue during the Year.

The segment profit of this business segment was
approximately HK$0.9 million (2019: approximately HK$2.9
million) during the Year. The decrease in segment profit is due
to the decrease in fair value gain of investment properties by
approximately HK$2.1 million during the Year. There were no
additions or disposals of the investment properties during the
Year.
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Entertainment business

This segment primarily relates to artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Revenue from this
business segment during the Year was approximately HK$2.0
million (2019: approximately HK$5.8 million). It accounted
for approximately 0.9% (2019: approximately 9.4%) of the
Group's revenue during the Year. Due to the mass protests
and social unrest in Hong Kong in second half of 2019 and the
outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic in first half of 2020, the Group
only invested in one (2019: two) concerts during the Year and
therefore the turnover decreased significantly during the Year
as compared to the same period last year. Segmental loss of
approximately of HK$0.9 million was recorded during the Year
(2019: approximately HK$0.6 million). The increase in loss from
this segment was due to the decrease in revenue during the
Year.

Financial Printing

The Group engaged in the business of financial printing
services to provide the services of type-setting, translation,
printing, design, distribution of financial print products and other
related services to the financial sectors in Hong Kong through
Formex Financial Press Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

During the Year, the Group recorded turnover and segmental
loss of approximately HK$9.8 million (2019: approximately
HK$3.6 million) and approximately HK$11.1 million (2019:
approximately HK$8.5 million) respectively in this segment. It
accounts for approximately 4.3% (2019: approximately 5.9%)
of the Group's revenue during the Year.

Taking into account the increase in number for the listed
companies, the increase in demand of financial printing
services in Hong Kong, and the rapid growth in revenue of the
financial printing business during the Year, we are of the view
that the future prospect of financial printing business is positive
despite the Group recorded a segmental loss in financial
printing business during the Year.
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Discontinued operation — Securities Brokerage Business

The Company engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing business through its wholly owned subsidiary China
Jianxin Financial Services Limited (“China Jianxin”). China
Jianxin is a company licensed under the SFO to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities, the principal activities of which are
provision of brokerage services and securities margin financing
to clients (the “Securities Brokerage Business”) during the
years ended 30th June 2016, 30th June 2017 and 30th June
2018. The Group ceased the Securities Brokerage Business on
30th June 2018 and the details of the cessation are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17th May 2018.

The Group recorded the profit before tax from the discontinued
Securities and Brokerage Business of approximately HK$0.8
million (2019: loss before tax of approximately HK$3.1 million)
during the Year which is mainly attributable to the recovery of
certain bad and doubtful debt during the Year.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets
accounted for approximately 63.2% (2019: approximately
35.4%) of the Group’s revenue during the Year.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year is approximately HK$16.9 million
(2019: approximately HK$12.6 million). The increase in selling
expenses was mainly due to the increase in revenue during the
Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by
approximately 9.5% to approximately HK$81.0 million as
compared to approximately HK$74.0 million in the same period
last year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
due to the net effect of (i) the payment of the directors and
staff bonus of approximately HK$20.0 million (2019: HK$Nil)
to the management of the films distribution and exhibition
during the Year for the remarkable box office of approximately
RMB1.3 billion in the PRC of a new blockbuster called “White
Storm 2 — Drug Lords” (“#F&E 2K ¥1)R") released in July
2019 and (ii) the decrease of administrative expense of
approximately HK$9.7 million as a result of the cost control
measures imposed by the Group in response to the COVID-19
pandemic.
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Update on the adjustment to the consideration of
AP Group Investment Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Acquisition Agreement”) with two
independent third party vendors, namely Very Easy Limited
(“Very Easy”) and City Link Consultancy Limited (“City Link"),
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners, namely Chan
Sze Long (“Chan”) and Lim Wah Elsa (“Lim"), as guarantors to
acquire 51% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (“AP Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the AP Acquisition Agreement) (the “AP
Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the provision of education and training programs
in relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

On 13th June 20186, (i) Fragrant River as the vendor and the
Company as the guarantor of Fragrant River; and (ii) Lucky
Famous, an independent third party, entered into a disposal
agreement (the “AP Disposal Agreement”), pursuant to which
Fragrant River sold to Lucky Famous the 51% of the equity
interest of AP Group at the consideration of HK$20,400,000
(the “Consideration”) subject to downward adjustments as
described below (the “AP Disposal”). The amount of the
Consideration was the same as the consideration for the AP
Acquisition. Completion of the AP Disposal took place on 1st
July 2016.

Under the AP Disposal Agreement, in the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the AP Group attributable to
owners of the AP Group for the period from 1st January 2016
to 31st December 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017") (which would only
include income or gain generated by activities in the ordinary
and usual course of business of AP Group and its subsidiaries)
(the “FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is less than HK$16,000,000,
the Group should pay to Lucky Famous (or to its order) the
Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in cash within 14 days
after the audited consolidated financial statements of AP Group
for the period of FY 2016 & 2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017 Audited
Accounts”) are available.
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The adjustment amount under the AP Disposal Agreement (the
“Adjustment Amount”) will be determined in accordance with
the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS$; and
“NP"” means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY
2016 & 2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP” shall be
deemed to be zero.

The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by Lucky Famous, adjusted for any non-recurring
items.

Such downward adjustment mechanism for the Consideration
under the AP Disposal Agreement depending on the actual
performance of the AP Group for the FY 2016 & 2017 is virtually
of the same terms as the downward adjustment mechanism
of the consideration in respect of the AP Acquisition from Very
Easy and City Link under the AP Acquisition Agreement. Details
of such acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12th October 2015.

In the event there is a shortfall between the FY 2016 & 2017
Net Profit and the target profit of the AP Group for FY 2016 &
2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the AP Acquisition Agreement,
an adjustment amount under such agreement (the “Contingent
Consideration Receivable”) is payable by Very Easy and City
Link, being the vendors under the AP Acquisition, to the Group
within 7 days after the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for
the purpose of the AP Acquisition Agreement are available. The
obligations of Very Easy and City Link to pay such adjustment
amount to the Group are guaranteed by their respective
beneficial owners.
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As mentioned above, in the event there is a shortfall between
the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the target profit of the
AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000 under the
AP Disposal Agreement, an adjustment amount under such
agreement (the “Contingent Consideration Payable”) is payable
by the Group to Lucky Famous within 14 days after the FY
2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts for the purpose of the AP
Disposal Agreement are available.

On 12th June 2018, the Group received a demand letter (the
“"Demand Letter"”) from Lucky Famous whereby it was alleged
that the AP Group recorded a net loss of HK$189,799 based
on the alleged FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts dated 11th
June 2018. As set out in the Demand Letter, Lucky Famous
demanded Fragrant River or the Company to fully pay the
amount of HK$20,400,000 (the “Alleged Claim”), being
the alleged Adjustment Amount pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the AP Disposal Agreement, to Lucky Famous
on or before 26th June 2018, and upon default, steps would
be taken by Lucky Famous to enforce its rights under the AP
Disposal Agreement without further notice.

In response to the Lucky Famous Demand Letter, Fragrant
River and the Company have through the letter from their legal
advisers dated 22nd June 2018 stated that they would defend
the purported claim of Lucky Famous for the payment of the
Adjustment Amount under the AP Disposal Agreement as
alleged by it.

In light of the Lucky Famous Demand Letter and the alleged
net loss of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017, and in order to
protect the interest of the Group, but without admitting any
liability to Lucky Famous under the AP Disposal Agreement,
Fragrant River issued corresponding demand letters all dated
22nd June 2018 (collectively, the “Fragrant River Demand
Letters”) to Very Easy, City Link, Chan and Lim, respectively
demanding the payment of an amount of HK$20,400,000 (the
“Fragrant River Claim”) to Fragrant River within 7 days from
the date of the Fragrant River Demand Letters pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the AP Acquisition Agreement, and if
default, Fragrant River would take further action to protect its
interest without further notice.
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On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous as the plaintiff commenced
court action (HCA No. 1646 of 2018) at the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong against Fragrant River
as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd defendant
(the “Lucky Famous Action”). Lucky Famous claimed against
Fragrant River and the Company for (a) the Adjustment Amount
of HK$20,400,000; (b) interests; (c) costs; and (d) further and/or
other relief.

Notwithstanding the Fragrant River Demand Letters, no
payment under the AP Acquisition Agreement is received from
any of Very Easy, City Link, Chan or Lim up to the date of this
report.

Lucky Famous applied to amend the writ and statement of
claim to join Chan and Lim as defendants in the Lucky Famous
Actions for certain claims against them. The Court allowed the
application of Lucky Famous on 24th September 2019.

The Company is in the course of seeking legal advice in respect
of the Lucky Famous Action and any possible action that
may be taken against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or Lim
in respect of the Fragrant River Claim. Up to the date of this
report, the parties are still negotiating for a settlement of the
matter. In any event, as the exchange of evidence has not been
completed, in the opinion of legal advisor, it is not practicable
to assess the likely outcome of this Action. The Company will
keep the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company
informed of any further significant developments as and when
appropriate.

Without admitting any liability to Lucky Famous under the AP
Disposal Agreement and also without prejudice to any right
against Very Easy, City Link, Chan and/or Lim under the AP
Acquisition Agreement, the Group has recorded the fair value
of the Contingent Consideration Payable at approximately
HK$20.4 million (2019: approximately HK$20.4 million) as at
30th June 2020 in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which is based on the best estimation of
the Directors taking into account the financial statements of AP
Group in 2016 and 2017, the discount rate and other factors in
estimating the fair value.
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OUTLOOK

The outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic in the first half of 2020
has affected all the Group's operations. The Group's revenues
and results in the first half of 2020 has accordingly been
adversely affected. With the recent signs that the COVID-19
has been easing and the related control measures imposed
by governments have been gradually loosening in Hong Kong
and PRC, we expect that the Group’s operations will gradually
recover soon.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30th June 2020, the Group had cash balances and time
deposits with maturity over three months at acquisition of
approximately HK$106.9 million (2019: approximately HK$178.2
million) and approximately HK$108.6 million, respectively (2019:
HKS$NIl). As at 30th June 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$683.8 million (2019: approximately HK$724.7
million).

The Group’'s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2020 was
approximately 4.4% (as at 30th June 2019: approximately
0.002%), which was calculated on the basis of the Group's
total debt (including borrowings, obligations under finance
lease, lease liability and bank overdraft) divided by total equity
of the Group.

The increase in the Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June
2020 as comparted to same period last year is due to the
recognisation of the lease liability of approximately HK$15.5
million (2019: HK$Nil) as at 30th June 2020 after the Group
initially applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 16
from 1st July 2019.

The Group incurred financial cost of approximately HK$542,000,
which is attributable to the interest on lease liabilities during
the Year (2019: HK$ Nil).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor its exposure to the movements of these
currencies closely.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 30th June 2020, the Group had Shareholders’ capital of
approximately HK$9.1 million (30th June 2019: approximately
HK$9.1 million). The Shareholders’ capital of the Company
is constituted of 906,632,276 shares (30th June 2019:
906,632,276 shares).

The Company did not carry out any fund raising activities by
issuing new shares of the Company during the Year (2019: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
ASSETS

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
assets during the Year.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2020, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th June 2020, the Group employed 101 staff (2019:
116). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staff
are entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff
benefits included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
in compliance with the Listing Rules (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(2)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(a)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.

(2)
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(3)

(4)

(5)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(@) The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share option granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes for the time being of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. Share options of the Company which
are lapsed or cancelled for the time being shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the said
30% limit; and

(b)  The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates
of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the
Shareholders has been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each grantee under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes for the time being of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant to each
grantee must not exceed 1% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the last
day of the said 10 year period.

(3)

(4)

(5)
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(6)

(7)

Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year (2019: Nil).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 58, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of
experience in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded
the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 43, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in 2013, he has over 20 years' experience in
the field of financial reporting, financial management and audit
experience in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a
bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
Mr. Lam is a fellow and practicing member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in August 2013.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 79, has over 30 years of experience
in the film distribution industry. Mr. Hung was the founder of
Delon International Film Corporation and has been its general
manager since June 2004. Mr. Hung was the Organizing
Committee Chairman of the 11th and 12th Hong Kong Film
Awards from 1991 to 1993 and from 1993 to 1995, Mr. Hung
was the chairman of the board of directors of Hong Kong
Film Awards Association Limited. Mr. Hung is currently the
chairman of The Federation of Motion Film Producers of
Hong Kong Limited and the chairman of Hong Kong Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Hung is appointed
as a vice chairman of the eighth Guangdong Film Association
since November 2016 and a deputy minister of Guangdong's
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Association For Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong,
Hong Kong & Macao Cultural Professional Committee. In
recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong film industry,
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in 2005. From April 2007 to March 2013, Mr. Hung
was appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a member of
the Hong Kong Film Development Council. Mr. Hung is also a
member of HKSAR Election Committee and he was appointed
by the Government of HKSAR as a non-official member of
the Working Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative
Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries under the
Economic Development Commission from January 2013 to
January 2019. Mr. Hung was a non-executive director of Capital
VC Limited (stock code: 2324), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2011 to January
2014; an independent non-executive director of Hengten
Networks Group Limited (stock code: 136), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from January 2013
to October 2015; and an independent non-executive director
of Freeman Fintech Corporation Limited (stock code: 279),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from January 2013 to January 2017. Currently, Mr. Hung is
the executive director of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8101), a company listed on GEM, an independent
non-executive director of China Star Entertainment Limited
(stock code: 326), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; an independent non-executive director
of Unity Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 913), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
an independent non-executive director of KOALA Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 8226), a company listed on GEM,
an independent non-executive director of Miko International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and an independent
non-executive director of Enerchina Holdings Limited (stock
code: 622), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Hung was an executive Director from October 2013 to
June 2017. Mr. Hung resigned as an executive Director on 2nd
June 2017 and was re-appointed as the executive Director on
1st October 2017. Mr. Hung re-designated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director on 1st February 2019 and
resigned as non-executive Director on 31st July 2019.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam"), aged 50, is currently
the managing director of Sheng Shi Da Investment Group
("BXRRERE "), a private investment group registered in
Hong Kong. Since December 2016, Mr. CK Lam has been an
independent non-executive director of Nanfang Communication
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1617), whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CK Lam holds
a bachelor's degree of science in accounting awarded by
Brigham Young University-Hawaii in 1996. He also obtained a
master’s degree of science in e-Commerce from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a fellow of the
HKICPA and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 22 years of experience in
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. CK Lam joined the Group
in December 20183.

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 43, is currently the financial
controller and company secretary of Huanxi Media Group
Limited (stock code: 1003), the shares of which are listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting awarded by the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr.
Choi also obtained a master degree of business administration
awarded by the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is
a fellow of the ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in accounting and company
secretarial field. Mr. Choi is currently the independent non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock code:
439), the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Choi was the financial controller and company
secretary of Global Token Limited (formerly known as Global
Energy Resources International Group Limited) (stock code:
8192) from March 2015 to January 2018, the shares of which
are listed on GEM. He joined the Group in December 2013.
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Mr. TANG Yiu Wing, aged 53, is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong, and the founder and a partner of Ivan Tang & Co.. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Laws, a postgraduate certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a master's
degree in Laws from The City University of Hong Kong. He is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Tasmania. Mr.
Tang has been an independent non-executive director of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 530), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since September
2006 and an independent non-executive director of Jete Power
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8133), a company listed on
GEM, since April 2015. Mr. Tang was an independent non-
executive director of KSL Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8170),
a company listed on GEM, from March 2017 to May 2018. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
United Investment Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8366),
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 26th
July 2017 to 1st June 2019. He joined the Group in October
2017.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to attain and maintain high
standards of corporate governance best suited to the needs
and interests of the Group as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
safeguarding interests of Shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles that
emphasise a quality board of Directors (the “Board”), effective
risk management and internal control systems, stringent
disclosure practices, transparency and accountability save as
specifically disclosed below.

The Board has adopted the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance
the Group's internal controls and procedures in light of changes
in regulations and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has, throughout the Year, complied with the
code provisions contained in the CG Code except for (i) the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the separation of the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and (ii)
code provision A2.7 of the CG Code requiring the Chairman to
meet with the non-executive Directors as described below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code sets out that the roles of
the Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group's strategies.

"#ﬂTZA$E£t

ERERER

ARBBNBERBBENTEAKENTR
ENaEnEE¥ERER  AREERERMW
EEERTRIRE BN E M50 &%
7 WRARREEMOER - Bt BTX
KRR EE SN - $"ﬂE%TéiW&ﬂ§fﬁ%*Eﬂ

ERMTEENERERTR  BEIHR
REEMEFE(EFE)) Eﬁﬁ MEAMRE
BRARBEZERR  BERTHREER B

A I e PRI B ) o

EESERMNB BB AR IMARAR(HR
Fr) e85 E R AT TR A DK &+ Ars
ZEERTARGCEETARE (LEERT
B ErEk 2 sFRNES o« NEB—E B REIESI
LEBRRBRERRIERBN MEAERI
EIERER o

TEERTAREEEGRS

ARRRAFEDBTEEEATRMEZ
STRIMGRS - HETR XA 2 () (R EVA ST RIA S
A2 115 5F BIMGSCR B £ & BT AR B ([1T I
mEDACED RIEEERTIANFEA2. 7K
SRR ERETFEFNTEEETERN
SN0

PEERTAUAEA 2 MEFIEXRR -
TRERTBRERZACETRYD - ARBML
TEAR— AL - ARA B AL EEMS
ABMBEECTRAR B - M BEERN
REIEIRARER - R BITITRARE 2B
B -MIAELABERETEMFELRE
TRMMAKEZXBRERERS - EF
ERREMRBERBEAAKE  AZRE
ALAREEZRIEEBBIHENEE -

FREVEEBRRRAT B -_TFFR

29

—

o i



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Code provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the executive Directors present. As Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the Chairman, is also an executive Director, the
Company has therefore deviated from this code provision.

THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group's prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or a Director;

(b) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i) policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv) the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i) the approval of the Company's consolidated
financial statements and published reports;

(i) the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

(iv) the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company's capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

major appointments and removals:

() appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i)  recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee"); and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”).
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(f)  delegation of authority:

() changes to the terms of reference or membership
of any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(g) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, with
two executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 25 to 28 of this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications or a practising solicitor. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is beneficial to the Board to formulate the
long-term business strategies and monitor the operational and
financial matters of the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non- executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

All current Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr.
Lam Kit Sun, Mr. Lam Chi Keung, Mr. Choi Wing Koon and
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing, had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors’ duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he is fully aware of his roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
governance policies of the Group.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision
A4.1 of the CG Code. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible
for re-election in accordance with the provision of the Listing
Rules and the Bye-law(s). At least one-third of Directors shall
retire from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Lam Chi Keung will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2) of the bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and Mr. Lam Kit Sun
and Mr. Lam Chi Keung being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally holds two regular board
meetings at approximately half year interval. 5 board meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 4/5
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 5/5
Non-executive Director
Mr. Hung Cho Sing
(resigned on 31st July 2019) 0/0

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Keung 5/5
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 5/5
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 5/5
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ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with
them in annual general meetings or other special general
meetings and encourages their participation.

1 annual general meeting and no special general meetings
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each

Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual General

Meeting

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 11
Non-executive Director
Mr. Hung Cho Sing

(resigned on 31st July 2019) 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 11
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing IVAl

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam
Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group's remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b)  remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 3/3
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 3/3
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/3

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for setting
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives
of the Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining
the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group is delegated to the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Choi
Wing Koon and Mr. Tang Yiu Wing and an executive Director,
namely, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’'s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in attaining its strategic objectives and
achieving sustainable and balanced development of the Group.
In view of the new amendments of the CG Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

The nominations were made in accordance with the objective
criteria (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), with due regard for
the benefits of diversity. During the year, the Nomination
Committee conducted a review of the Board’'s composition.
The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board structure, size
and diversity annually and recommends any proposed changes
to the Board to complement Company’s corporate strategies.

1 committee meeting was convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at the meeting is set
out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon IVAl
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 11
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (amended on 29th
February 2012), which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference
to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in
accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr.
Tang Yiu Wing. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the
audit or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group's financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 3/3
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing 3/3
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 31st December 2019 and annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year. Based on its review and discussions
with management and the external auditor, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the annual consolidated financial
statements for the Year were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and fairly present the Group's
financial position and results for the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
For details about the internal control review, please refer to the
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” in this
report below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and assets of the Company. The internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis through identifying
and grading risk components, perceiving control impact and
facilitating remediation plan. The development of our risk
management and internal control systems are largely based on
the framework as set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The risk
management framework, coupled with our internal controls,
ensures the risks associated with our different business units
are effectively monitored, and are in line with the Group’s risk
appetite.

The Group adopts both the top-down and bottom-up approach
to monitor the principal risks affecting the business as follows:

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its division on a quarterly basis
and establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks
identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control activities,
attending quarterly meetings with each division to ensure
principal risks are properly managed, and new or changing
risks are identified and documented.

3.  The Board reviews and approves the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems on a regular basis.
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In respect to the absence of a separate internal audit
department in the Group, the Group reviews annually on
whether there is a need for such functional department. Given
the possibility to engage external professional assistance,
the Board opposes to divert resources to establish a separate
internal audit department.

During the Year, an external consultant was engaged to
conduct a review on the internal control systems, which covers
certain procedures on the video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights, and
makes recommendations for improving and strengthening the
internal control systems. In addition, reviews on the Corporate
Governance Practice according to Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and accounting and financial reporting mechanism
were conducted. The Board will continue to work with the
external consultant to discuss and follow-up on the status of
remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor
the risks of the Group in the coming years.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure
of inside information with the aim to ensure the insiders are
abiding by the confidentiality requirement and are fulfilling the
disclosure obligation of the inside information.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls
and reports to the Board on such reviews. For the Year, the
Board considered that a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems had been conducted
and considered that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report from pages 81 to 88 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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Services rendered Frie it AR 7% EAERA

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services ERT R 1,450
Non-audit services IEEET RIS

e Interim results o MHAZEAR 240

e Annual results announcement o FEEE N 50

1,740
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of Directors and Senior Management Profile
on page 25 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks
fit convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders” meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

° At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is

open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose such person for
election as a director and also a notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected (including that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of
such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days' notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
the Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
the Shareholders and the investment community to engage
actively with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence,
another member of the Board, committees or an appointed
representative, will attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer questions of the Shareholders. The
Company will also invite representatives of the Auditors to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer the
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27th September
2019 ("Dividend Policy”) which shall take effect on 27th
September 2019. The Dividend Policy allows the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profits by provision of dividends
whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future
growth opportunities.

According to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall consider
the following factors, among others, before proposing and
declaring dividends:

(i) the Company's operation and financial performance;

(i)~ the Company’s liquidity conditions;
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(i) the Company’s capital requirements and future funding
needs;

(iv) the Company's contractual restrictions;
(v)  the Company’s availability of reserves; and
(vi)  the prevailing economic climate.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the Listing Rules, Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time by the
Board and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time. There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.

(i) ANRBERBRKEARKESHE :

(iv) ARBAELESH
(v ARFAIBREE &

(vi) ZRITEERIE -

ARAEREETAEETARE-NN\—F

NBEDE - EWARRA
B FOR IR T AR B o

%?@H’%Tﬁ%%@aﬁﬁ
BRASENED - B TRERS
HE RIRE R E 2 BIR

ERXH

7NN ) 2 40 A R A B T 5

PR AN R 2 8k R B

A0 BN X2 {7 38 R

LR - Al BE

i

7 B B B
G Bh AR

DR

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

RE  #HEREREE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

As a company that aims to provide the best entertainment,
services and products to customers in Hong Kong, UNIVERSE
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED and its subsidiaries (thereafter “Group” or “"We")
is committed to sustain a stable corporate development
growth, while protecting environment and being socially
responsible and adhering to the highest standards of corporate
governance. Pursuant to the newly released requirement of
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting guide
("Environmental, Social and Governance Guide”) in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities from
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group has
prepared the 2019-2020 Environmental Social and Corporate
Governance (thereafter “"ESG") Report, covering the whole
range of the its business operation.

The scope of this report will cover the Group's initiatives on
further developing the concept of Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance to employees and clients, putting them
into practices in our daily operations and disclosing results as a
year-end summary over this covered period.

The scope of this report will cover the Group’s whole range
of business activities, including, video distribution, film
distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights, trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
securities investment and financial printing business.

It is also the intention of the management to provide an
overview of the Group’s direction in managing ESG related
matters, driving for ESG initiatives throughout the group,
and communicating our ESG performance result with our
stakeholders.

The reporting period of this report shall cover the period from
1st July 2019 to 30th June 2020.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT & MATERIALITY
IDENTIFICATION

The Group endeavours to develop its business sustainably,
and contribute positively to the environment and the society
where its business operates. The Group understands fully that
standalone effort is minimal and therefore see the engagement
of its stakeholders as essential.

To extend its efforts to a broader audience, the Group had
consulted both its internal and external stakeholders on its
potential impact on the environment and society as a result
of its business operations. The Group understands and values
relationship with customers and suppliers, and thus included
both parties as our consultation targets.

Furthermore, the Group conducted a materiality analysis in the
form of a management interview during the drafting process.
Particular sustainability related issues, which are material to the
Group, were identified during the process, and the results shall
be disclosed in later part of this ESG Report.

The table below presents key stakeholders of the Group as
well as how the Group communicate with them through a

variety of engagement channels during the year.

Internal Stakeholders
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External Stakeholders

R0 E IR

° The Board o Shareholders

o EEa . AR

° Management ° Investors

o EEE o BEE

° General Staff ° Customers

e EREEE s %EF
° Local Community Groups
o EMiMEE

Engagement methods: SETE

Meetings, interviews direct mail, staff performance appraisal
interviews, internal publications, Annual General Meeting
("AGM"), special general meetings and announcements.

Table 1. Engaged Stakeholder list and methods
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG
approach and performance. For any suggestion or opinion,
please kindly send it to the Group through its communication
channels.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Delivering the best entertainment, services and products while
generating revenue for our shareholders, and recognising the
importance and contributing to both the environment and local
community have always been one of our guiding principles.
ESG is thus considered a high priority within the Group, and is
especially championed by our senior management.

As mentioned, the Group is committed to minimize the impact
its operations may have imposed on the environment. In order
to monitor the progress, the Group started collecting and
reporting its ESG-related activities in the past reporting periods.
Since the 2016-2017 ESG report, the Group took a step further
and began to collect in-depth data for disclosure. Due to the
Group's operations in various business sectors across multiple
geographic regions, the complexity of data collection and
analysis has imposed challenges to responsible departmental
personnel. The Group had endeavoured to engage internal
and external stakeholders to build an extensive database for
ESG matters. The collected data was analysed and assessed
against the Group's operational performance, to provide an
accurate overview to the senior management to implement
improvement measures accordingly.

In summary, the result indicated the Group's trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical and watches products
(“Retail Business”), money lending, leasing of investment
properties, securities investment and financial printing business
do not involve in the production-related direct air, water, or land
pollutions, and thus do not contribute to any material impact
in these areas. The Group's video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights (“Film
Business”) activity was also operated under the Group's ESG
provision, and complied to all local laws and regulations in
concern.
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The Group’s most relevant environmental issues identified
during this reporting period were the followings:

° Air emission;

° Electricity consumption;

° Non-hazardous Waste; and
° Water consumption.

The Group's internal environmental protection awareness
programme had consistently reminded and encouraged
employees and clients to join efforts into improving its
environmental performance. Details of such processes and
actions are described in the following sections.

Air Emission

The Group’s primary business activities branch into Film
Business, Retail Business and financial printing business.
The business nature of the Group's Film Business, Retail
Business and financial printing business does not involve
direct or significant emission of air and greenhouse gases from
industrial or combustion process. In other words, the Group
concluded that there is no material impact found, through direct
air emission, to the environment as a result of its business
operations. (Indirect carbon emission through electricity
consumption is measured and further details shall be provided
in the later section.)

Regardless, the Group brought itself forward to examine
the indirect emissions generated via its operations. The
assessment indicated that electricity and fuel consumption (ie:
Diesel, LPG and Petroleum) are two of the most significant
contributions to such. For instance, the hire of mobile
generators as a temporary power source for Film Business, as
well as own vehicles for transportation are main sources for
fuel consumption. The Group thus accords to the ESG guideline
suggestion to report on the captioned air emissions.
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As a summary, the Group’'s total air emissions can be
summarized as below:

Emission BERR
NO, A8t
e} HmEty

Particular Matter BOFRLF

Table 2. Group Air Emission Performance

The Group will continue to monitor its operational activities to
ensure its air emission maintains at a satisfactory level. Further
information shall be disclosed should there be significant
changes to the reported emission levels.

Carbon Emission

The Group started examining its carbon emission generated
from its operation activities since its 2017 ESG report. In
this reporting period, the Group enhanced its data collection
system, and thus improved the quality of data collected.
In addition to power consumption from offices, electricity
consumed from the Group’s film production, vehicle fuel
consumption and the emissions from air travel were also
included in this year's carbon emission calculation.

Similar to the methodology employed last year, the Group
estimated its carbon emission, as a Group, based on the
activities mentioned above and emission factors from
reputable third-party source on the public domain (ie:
electricity consumption data and the carbon intensity factor
are available on the electricity bills, sustainability reports from
electricity provider and public organizations, such as HKSAR
Environmental Protection Department).

As the result, the Group generated 379.32 tCO, (2019: 477.5
tCO,) in this reporting period.

RIEME - ARENEREBIERBRIT

For the year ended For the year ended

30th June 2020 30th June 2019
BE-_Z-2F HE_Z-NF
ANRA=ZTHLEE NAZTHLEFE
Unit (ton) Unit (ton)

BE { (mg) AL (WE)

0.0032 0.2244

0.0001 0.0004

0.0002 0.0114
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The Group will continue to put its best efforts on minimizing
carbon emission, enhancing overall performance and operation
efficiency through working closely with employees and
external stakeholders. Further information and progress will be
disclosed in the subsequent ESG report.

Waste Management

The Group's core business involves only Film Business, Retail
Business and financial printing services. However, there were
an insignificant amount of chemicals used during the filming
process (<100kg), of which were disposed of safely and legally
by licensed operators. Overall, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with related laws or regulations in regards to
such matters and will continue its strict monitoring practices.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group had been cautious about
waste generation from daily activities, and have worked closely
with employees and partnered with suppliers on reducing solid
waste. The Group promoted the culture of recycling, and had
placed recycling bins in easy-to-access locations to increase
employees’ awareness on recycling. Since last reporting period,
the Group had promoted the paper-less working environment,
and the initiative had been continued in this reporting period.

The Group's office, retail and other business activities
generated daily waste from its operation. For this reporting
period, recorded waste production as follows:

Waste Generation BEYRE
Hazardous Waste BEEEY
Non-Hazardous Waste mEREZEY)

Table 3. Group Waste Generation Amount

The Group shall continue its effort in the careful management
of generated waste, and further data will be disclosed in
subsequent ESG reports.
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Use of Resources

The Group is an environmentally friendly company, and had
actively promoted the culture of “Efficient & Green” operations
since the last reported period. Continued from last year, the
Group had continued its efforts to encourage employees
to consume resources smartly, particularly on paper and
electricity.

Initiatives such as the adoption of energy conservation practices
were successfully implemented in the offices in the past year.
Latest environmental trends and green tips were available
to employees as constant reminders for responsible use of
natural resources. In addition, suitable facilities management
were in place to identify building services that require upgrades
for improved building efficiency and employee comfort.

A summary of the Group’s consumption on natural resources
during this reporting period is provided as below:

BIRA

AEER-HEXBRERMNAA - B L—®E
HIR BT R AR L | EE XL - RNEE
EEREFNTHE BEZBREILZHERER
EARREENERZER

RAESEBISEREREEFRDERIEH
17 - A B TIREKFHIRREM RS
Bt HEREMMABEEHEXER
RARER - 4 RPICHESBENREE
B ARAIEEETRABTHRERE T
BETTRNETRE

REBRAREHABORAREREABRER
™

For the year For the year

ended ended

30th June 2020 30th June 2019

BE-Z-2F HE_ZTNF

~NA=+H NA=1+A

IEEE IEFE

Total Total

Consumption Item FEHER Unit B Mt MET

Electricity Consumption S kWh TR 539,492 646,884

Water Consumption Rk L NF 835,000 931,200

Diesel Consumption LoBfEA L NF = 16,960

Petroleum Consumption 7 H#E M L N 6,776 5,450

LPG Consumption BALAAR L BF = =

A

Electricity Consumption FAERE kWh/revenue T EB Uz 0.002 0.011
Intensity (HK$) (&)

Water Consumption K& E L/revenue N & 0.004 0.015
Intensity (HK$) (&)

Table 4. 2019-2020 Resource Consumption Summary
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Resources Conservation

Resources consumption patterns of the Group had been
disclosed in last year's ESG Report, and the Group had strived
to make incremental improvements since.

The Group had continued its successful policies regarding
energy and paper consumption. These practices have been
detailed in last year's ESG report, highlighted as below:

° Air conditioners were set to 23-25°C;

o Idling electronic appliances were to be switched off or set
to energy saving mode;

° Documents were to be printed or copied double-sided;
and

o E-marketing material, such as greeting cards were to be
sent via electronic means only.

The Group took pride in promoting such practices to its
partners and suppliers, and would continue to carry out most of
its business communication digitally instead of printing hardcopy
documents to foster a paperless working environment.

SOCIAL

The business of the Group spreads across several industry
sectors. In particular, the Film Business involves working
with a large number of individuals across various industries.
Employees include actors, productions workers, retail shop
sales and even line workers. The Group understands the
best way to attract or retain talents is by offering competitive
compensations, and treating employees fairly and equally in
regardless of culture, gender and interests, while complying to
laws and regulations. As one of its guiding principles, the Group
commits to growing its business sustainably and in a socially
responsible manner, whilst continuing its best management
practices to improve in areas as needed.
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Employment and Labour Standard

The Group truly understands that its success depends on the
seamless teamwork among employees and thus recognises
its people as one of the most valuable assets in contributing
toward its achievements. The Group trusted that the works
of excellence must be well compensated, and therefore
have always offering a market competitive remuneration and
benefits scheme to its own employees.

The Group is an Equal Opportunity Employer (EOE). This means
that it is committed to equal treatment of all employees without
regard to race, national origin, religion, gender, age, sexual
orientation, veteran status, physical or mental disability or other
basis protected by law. The Employment Policy of the Group
accords to and exceeds the requirements of the Employment
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, aiming to provide a fair
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity and
anti-discrimination scheme for all of our employees.

During the employment process, the Group made it clear to
responsible recruitment employees that any discrimination
acts against the EOE would not be tolerated. The same policy
extends to its internal training and promotion practices. The
human resource department would also be responsible for
ensuring compliance with all regulations during the employee
recruitment process, where curriculum vitaes and identification
cards are carefully reviewed to prevent any cases of the
employment of child or forced labour, or junior members
under the age of 16 years old as full-time staff. In addition, the
Group protects the interests of its part-time employees, and
by restricting their working hours to under 4 hours per day.
Any breach of such action will be reported to the company's
senior management revision and subjected to further company
disciplinary action.

In the reporting period between 1st July 2019 to 30th June
2020, the Group has found no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations during operation.
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Remuneration Committee

To ensure the remuneration scheme stays competitive, the
Group had established a Remuneration Committee since
15th July 2005, and with the principle duties of making
recommendations to the Board on the Group's Remuneration
Policy, structure of the Directors and senior management, and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing Remuneration Policy. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for giving suggestions to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and members of the senior management. In detail,
the principles of the Group’s remuneration policies consist of:

(@) ensuring no Director should be involved in deciding his or
her own remuneration;

(b)  ensuring remuneration should be determined by taking
into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment, levels of
responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;

(c)  reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommending the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee will also meet regularly to
determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of Executive Directors and certain
senior management of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The Group employee’s emolument is determined by the
Remuneration Committee, and it will be assessed based
on merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration is
reviewed annually and certain employees are entitled to
commission. In addition to basic salaries, employee benefits
included discretionary bonuses, medical insurance scheme and
the mandatory provident fund as stipulated by law.
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Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees
employed.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, the total contributions
paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group amounted
to approximately 1.7 million (2019: approximately HK$1.8
million), which had been recognized as expenses and
included in employee costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group’s Corporate Policy includes provisions on handling
discrimination, harassment and victimisation in the workplace.

The Group acquires talents based on their merits to fit in and
contribute to the company regardless of their gender and
age. Together with a transparent employment process, a fair
appraisal, remuneration and incentive scheme, the Group has
attracted a profile of diversified workers to join their workforce.

The following charts provided an overview of its employee’s
gender and age distribution with a total of 101 (2019: 116)
employees recorded last per June 2020 during the reporting
period:
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The Group had issued a comprehensive Employee Handbook,
providing the basis for human resources management about
the employment policy, welfare and benefits, leave and rest
days, conduct and discipline, occupational health and safety
policy, personal data (privacy) policy and equal opportunity
policy. All employees were handed a copy of such handbook
upon employment. Any updates to the Group’s employment
policies would be made transparent through electronic means
or other appropriate methods to staff members affected.

During the period from 1st July 2019 to 30th June 2020, there
was no reported material breach of related regulations and
laws.

Occupational Health and Safety

As a socially responsible company, the Group places great
emphasis on workplace safety, especially for its film making
activities that occasionally involves activities of high risks to
workers, such as working from height, controlled explosions,
stuntman performances, use of equipment and chemicals etc.

The Group’'s health and safety practices accords to the
guideline from HKSAR Labour Department (section
“Occupational Safety & Health"), where safety equipment,
measures, practices are enforced per requirement. Sufficient
lighting, air ventilation and spacious working areas are provided
in all premises to minimise occupational health risks imposed
to workers.

Furthermore, the Group safeguards its workplace from
unanticipated events that would require an immediate
evacuation, such as under the accident of fire, and employees
are required to participate in the office building’s regular fire
drills. The building management also provided clear signs and
instructions for emergency incidents (such as the access to
fire safety route or rally points). The participation of these drills
is mandatory for all employees and it were conducted during
office hours.
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For the film division, safety practices are part of the daily
routine and it is applied at all times. The Group’'s management
team makes periodic visits to ensure all safety practices
were implemented, and to review potential health and safety
risks, or any accidents that may occur. The Group provides
appropriate safety guidelines and equipment to all workers
exposed to safety risks such as Personal Protection Equipment
(PPE), fire extinguishers, emergency evacuation procedures,
and appropriate training to actors or actresses working on
action movies etc. Special insurance is provided to relevant
employees working in such conditions to ensure the best
assistance would be available should any cases of injuries
happen.

The Group also employs third-party contractors to perform
regular check-ups for filming equipment to ensure they are in a
good condition.

During the reporting period from 1st July 2019 to 30th June
2020, the Group is happy to report that there is no material
non-compliance breach with relevant standards, rules and
regulations, and did not involve in any accidents that has
caused serious injuries to its workers.

Development and Training

The Group's business involves producing products in the
entertainment and retail industry. In order to stay competitive,
periodic trainings for employees are required for the Group
to stay abreast with the latest market development. Great
emphasis was placed on training and equipping employees
with the latest market trend for career advancement.

Despite considerable training costs involve, the Group adheres
to nurturing talents internally to enhance the overall capability
of its workforce.
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The following reports on training received by staff and its
distribution by gender and employee category.

Male B
Female pegis

Table 5. Figures on employees trained by gender

Senior Management SRERRE
Management EIRE
Staff 8T

Table 6. Figures on employee trained by category

Employees, Customers, Suppliers and
Other Stakeholders

The nature of the Group's business requires to work with
numbers of stakeholders from various sectors. As reported
in last year's ESG report, the Group maintains an open
engagement channel with suppliers that includes procedures to
conduct regular meetings and interviews (for new suppliers).

The Group examines qualifications of its suppliers. Required
business licenses, trademark registration certificates, trademark
use authorizations, product testing reports, and customs duty
certificates are inspected to ensure its validity. Suppliers would
be assessed based on product knowledge, after-sales service,
marketing strategies to ensure the Group's standards can be
met.

Supply Chain Operating Practices and Management

The Group only sources raw materials for its goods from
reputable suppliers. The Group exerts its influence, as a buyer,
to ensure suppliers provide products that comply to local and
international regulations.
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The Group respects intellectual property rights and should
report any infringement on copyrights should any of such
act discovered within the scope of the Group’s management
capability. Its customer database is maintained in strict
confidentiality to safeguard consumer data and their privacy.

Product Responsibility

The Group's business spreads across the retail and wholesale
of goods and production of movies. It is therefore anticipated
that the Group has a complicated product management
portfolio due to its subjection to various applicable laws and
regulations. Continued from last year's ESG report, details of
the Group’s product responsibility are summarised as below.

Retails Products — Eyewear

The following ordinances and procedures have been adhered to
regarding the sales of eyewear products:

° Qualified optometrists are present in all of the Group's
eyewear retail shops;

° Eye-tests are conducted by such professionals according
to the section 12(1)(a) of the Supplementary Medical
Professions Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

° Contact lens are only recommended to customers by
optometrists when a valid prescription is provided (under
section 7.4 of the Code of Practice of the Optometrists
Board);

o Only real and genuine products are offered (under the
Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), where false trade descriptions, misleading or
incomplete information and mis-statements in respect of
goods provided in all sales activities) are strictly prohibited
in all of the Group's shops;

° Products are directly purchased from the manufacturers
and authorized wholesalers, where invoices and
authorizing documents are provided on re-selling goods;

° Performance of “Triple” quality check-up process
before products are sent to shops (performed by buyer,
procurement officer and front-line sales employees);

AEEERNBER  HERBRAKEE
BEENBEANRERBN - BIEHER -
EFEAAEHENGEERE  UREHE
EHNER ML -

Emal

AEENXB P EERTEMMBEUREY
SE - Fit - BRAAKERBAETRZER
FRZAMBEAERNEREEMES - #E
FHRE  HENERRE  ARENEMR
BEFBHA T -

EEm - Rix
£

=z
N B 5t 85 & AR IR A an B 5T A T RBI R A2
r%‘

AREEEHRRET
BILEm

EEHOHEEAER

o BUBEEAERB(HHEZZIFN)
(BB APIEIL9E)E 12(1)(a) IFEITR
BRI

o EANEERHBMENK(REBELLMHE
Ijﬂfé?/\ EHEFETFRIE7.41F) - BIAD
FertmfiRftRERE

o  AKEERMHERRIERRE(ERH
PFIROI) (BB ZPIFE362%E)) » MAKHE
ETHEEHEES A AHE BT
RUNERWERBMHA - FERE
T TEBNE R RIBRRA

s AKREMEMBERCRERRRESLE

EERE eREEERRERERRE
XA
o HEBRBEREEHZA @I ZE]

mERERF(RET - KEEERAR
E’E/\E E17)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020



Environmental, Social & Governance Report

° “Table of Tolerance” quality check to be performed on
the lenses upon product arrival to shop. The check is
prepared by the professional association in the Hong
Kong Optical Industry as a quality check up on the contact
lenses, ensuring the status of the expiration of these
lenses are valid before re-selling to customers; and

° Protection of customers’ data and privacy by denying
unauthorised access to customers’ information.

Under the current reporting year, which is from 1st July 2019
to 30th June 2020, the Group has not received any complaints
regarding its eyewear products and services.

Retails Products —Watches

The Group closely monitors its offered watch products,
especially in relation to safety issues. A consistent update is
performed safeguarding the Group with the compliance to
up-to-date laws and regulations related to watch products,
ensuring the accuracy of the advertised information and labels,
and avoiding any misrepresentation leading to a breach of law.
On the other hand, regular communication is conducted with
suppliers, updating the latest trend on regulation and measures
accordingly.

During its procurement process, the Group relies on a
comprehensive Procurement Policy set by the senior
management. Only genuine goods with relevant trademark
registration certificates or trademark authorisation documents,
or directly from brand owners or brand authorised distributors,
will be procured for resell purposes. Testing reports are
requested from suppliers, while warehouse keepers will also
perform quality control checks to ensure the quality of watches
are up to standard before shipping to shops for sales.

The Group applies the same Data Protection and Privacy Policy
throughout the business. Customer data are stored in a Point
Of Sales (POS) system, where senior grade employees, with
appropriate authorisation, are able to access such database,
and no data shall be released to any third party under any
circumstances.

There was no comment received in relation to the Group's
watches sold during this reporting period.
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RE  #HEREREE

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to the highest standard of corporate
governance, and aims to maintain the same vision with its
policies in transparency, uprightness and accountability.

It is at the heart of the Group’s business to operate in an
ethical, personal and professional manner. Any activity relating
to corruption, commercial bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities would not be tolerated. Conflict
of interests will be reported, to prevent the possible occurrence
of inside-dealing or any criminal regime in client transactions.
Regular anti-corruption, and money laundering training and
circulars are provided to employees to remain cautious on
suspicious transactions.

The compliance manual of the Group has set out policies and
procedures for anti-corruption and anti-money laundering. All
employees are required to be read and acknowledge such
compliance manual. There are procedures in place for reporting
suspicious fraudulent actions to the Group’s management, for
the corporate management, and a procedure of two signers is
required as a monitoring measure.

During the current reporting period, the Group had no litigation
in relation to corruption and money laundering activities
identified, involving the Group and its employees.
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Data Privacy Compliance

The Group is dedicated to protect the privacy and confidentiality
of personal data from employees, clients, business partners,
and other identifiable individuals. The Group’s employees are
instructed to handle confidential information with due care.
Information is only collected and used in a responsible and
non-discriminatory manner, and restricting the use of the
information for the purposes consistent with those identified in
the contracts. Generally, the laws and regulations affecting the
Group includes the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter
362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group
will stay alert to the relevant legal issues and update its internal
policies when necessary to avoid any breach of the regulatory
requirements.

There were no issues occurred concerning data privacy in this
reporting period.

COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to serve and give back to the local
community and contribute to social services. The Group's
management team plays an important role in mobilising
employees to join all of these activities, which reflects
management team’s commitment to sustainable development.
The Group believes by encouraging employees to participate
in a wide range of charitable events, community awareness
will be raised, and more people will be inspired to take part
in serving our community. The Group will continue to support
these meaningful social events in the future.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2020
(the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 91
to 93.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year (for the year ended 30th June 2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year are set out
in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 24 of
this annual report.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company (”“Shareholders”) by
reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during the
Year (2019: HK$261,500).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 327 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ESEHREE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June 2020
amounted to HK$132,252,000 (2019: HK$174,349,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$597,789,000 (2019: HK$597,789,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 328 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities during
the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an "Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development
of any member of the Group or any invested entity;
and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of the
Group.

Report of the Directors

(b)

=)

=T

EEEHRES

i A ;HrilJEﬁ CE YN

Exgr BB

B UA T EAER -

ﬁﬁ%@&@ﬂ&ﬁﬁ BREERRED

XFz2BAT2EAD -

RER MBI

AR °

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ARTA] -~ HERHEBARREMER
EERBZENERES 818
TR ARE - EEAKER R
FREERZEMATES (EH
WRMERD

AT~ EAERIE A R s E A%
BERZIMFENTES(BEB
S IFHITER)

AEBEMKEABSENREE
B EME MR ER

AEEFEMREEBZEMNT
B

I‘?ZIS% B IR RE B RN
- RS E MBI SR Z E A
ii%“‘&f

AEBEMAKEABRENREE
BZEMRRIARETFAKXER
Al EIE BB BT 2 (EME
FZEAFAA

AEBEMKEABREMNREE
BEAEBHREXEHERZEM
R (EXSFFERHHEAA - R

AR EBEER B LB ZEM
BRALAEA -

RE(EEBARDT —ZE_TFFR



Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

(c)

(d)

Maximum number of share options available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

(i)~ The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes
is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for
refreshing the 10% limit from the Shareholders has
been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
for the time being of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant to each grantee must not
exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue.

Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option
must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at
its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular share option. A share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Grant and expiring on the
last day of the said 10- year period.
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() Payment on acceptance of the share options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

(g) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme was issued
and outstanding during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun

Non-executive Director
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
(resigned on 31st July 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Chi Keung

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon

Mr. TANG Yiu Wing
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Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Lam Chi Keung will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and Bye-law 87(2) of the
Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Kit Sun and Mr. Lam Chi Keung being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for re-
election and the candidates who will be proposed to be elected
as Directors, please refer to the circular containing the notice
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be despatched.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company is satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30th June 2020, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interest which any such
Director was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or;
(c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules are as follows:

Name Nature of interest
HA MY

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Beneficial owner
MNBRSEHE EnlEAA

Founder and the discretionary
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Notes:

(@) The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core Resources
Limited which owns the entire issued share capital of the
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (“Globalcrest”) which in turn
was interested in 33,546,853 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2020. Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the discretionary object
of the discretionary trust.

(b) Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited (“Pioneer Entertainment”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, was
interested in 430,120,020 shares of the Company as at 30th
June 2020.

All the interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable)
of the Company and its associated corporations required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2020, Shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
who had interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO are as
follows:

Name Capacity

28 g%

Pioneer Entertainment (Note a) Beneficial owner
Pioneer Entertainment(Ffi3Ea) EalEA A

Note:

(a) Pioneer Entertainment, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2020, no other person
has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company in the register required
to be kept by Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

FERR

REMESKARREEZTHRABTAE
RZEZZEFA=ZF+H BRULBEZE
ERARFEEZTHRABN U TRERAE
NI IBEROYFHEEREZLF LT
IRBIEXVESE 2 R E 37D H A E AR AR BIH#H
o KRR AR EIRES K EEGIEXY
ESEE336IFIREE T 2 B 2 A B a0
T

Approximate

Number of percentage
shares and of the total
underlying issued share
shares of the capital of
Company held the Company
RN

RSN 2 BTRA
IR 153 & 4 EA BEZ
RGEE BHABED K
430,120,020 47.44%

B EE

(a)  Pioneer Entertainments— R\ % B R &
EFMERYZERAR - AMNBEERE
WA -

EXMBEEZMBEREA /BN ZFR -

R EXHEEEN RZBEZBFXA=+
B #SEEMALTRARAZRD - HERK
MREFFERECENARRRERZF LY
BIRPIEXVEBFRIBCIHRATEFZERLMAZ
EAEEIORE

BEERK
AEER  ARALBRARALBEH K

ENEEXRHHO 2 EERTHRITHER X
FEEAGH -

EFMERBERAT —T-TEEH

77

—

o i



Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 5%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 8%
Sales

— the largest customer 10%
— five largest customers in aggregate 18%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Daneil Lam, the executive
Director of the Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit on
the 18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey
lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level basement (with a
saleable area of approximately 13,983 square foot) and (2) 5
carparking spaces on the 2nd Floor of a 28-storey industrial
building over a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level
basement (“Rented Properties”) for warehouse, ancillary office
and carparking uses from 25th February 2018 to 24th February
2021, with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) which were arrived at following arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and UPI with reference to the
rental valuation performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited, an independent property valuer, as at 22nd January
2018 which reflected the then market rent.
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During the Year, UDE has paid a total of HK$2,928,000 in rent
to UPI in respect of the Rented Properties in accordance with
the terms of the Tenancy Agreement.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July 2019.
Under HKFRS16, the Group recognized repayment of lease
liabilities, depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest
expenses of approximately HK$2,836,000, HK$2,847,000 and
HK$92,000 respectively instead of rental expenses in respect
of the Rented Properties during the Year. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.1(i) and
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

LISTING RULE IMPLICATIONS OF
THE CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Daneil Lam is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules). As such, the Tenancy
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on
an annual basis) constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the relevant
considerations and certain applicable percentage ratios for the
entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on an annual basis)
are less than HK$3,000,000 and are less than 5% respectively,
the entering into of the Tenancy Agreement (on an annual
basis) falls within the de minimis rule under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules and such transactions will be fully exempted
from any reporting, annual review, announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, all of which
constituted exempted connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out in this report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that requiring the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company'’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2020.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe

To the shareholders of Universe Entertainment and Culture
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited
(“the Company"”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 89 to 326, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th June 2020, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30th June 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRESE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Recoverability of accounts receivable
Refer to notes 3.1(b), 4(a)(ii) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EREZSIA

BREZFASRBERMNERHE  RA
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The Key Audit Matter
EREZER

How the matter was addressed in our
audit
RENSEZROMEEZSE

The Group's operations gave rise to significant accounts
receivable at the end of the reporting period. Given the
size of the balances and the risk that some of the accounts
receivable may not be recoverable, judgement is required to
evaluate whether any allowance should be made to reflect
the risk. As at 30th June 2020, the Group’s gross accounts
receivable amounted to approximately HK$74,171,000,
against which loss allowance of approximately HK$1,066,000
were provided.

RBEER - BEEBCEBEESRKERER - ER4EH
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=+H X EBSEZEWRRETELNRT4171,00087T 2
sk EH R B R B 401,066,000 7T °

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of accounts receivable
included the following:

B EREBER 2 RO 2 EZRFE
BATRIE :

o obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection assessing
the expected credit loss of accounts
receivable and recognising the loss
allowance of accounts receivable;

e TEHAEFEBEBEEREN  BEHK
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recoverability of accounts receivable (Continued)

BYRBENRES

AR EZSETE @)
e 2 FTET: (48

The Key Audit Matter
BREXSE

How the matter was addressed in our
audit
RAMNEZNMEEZEE

Loss allowance for accounts receivable is based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses
to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue accounts
receivable, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.

FEWEER 2 BEBGBEDERNEEBHBELEZ 2 HEBREE
EHEEE HEAREEBEELR  aHEWRER KR
i~ B ZBRRENEP 2 R A K& & A & TR R B
BB MM FIEZERRASREAEEZ
EIRE I -

o comparing, on a sample basis, the
categorisation of accounts receivable
in the ageing report with invoices
issued, contract terms and other
relevant underlying documentation;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRESE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EREREE@®
Recoverability of accounts receivable (Continued) FEYW AR, 2 ATYRETE (4E)

How the matter was addressed in our

The Key Audit Matter audit

EREEREE RPN ERNTEEZSEE

We identified assessing the recoverability of accounts | e assessing the reasonableness
receivable as a key audit matter because the assessment of managements loss allowance
of the recoverability of accounts receivable and recognition estimates by examining the
of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires information used by management
significant management judgement, which increases the risk to form such judgements, including
of error or potential management bias. testing the accuracy of the historical
B EUER 2 TR E T EER AEREZER  RAE default data, evaluating whether the
EREBEER 2 JREIMF G REERECERGTEEE B historical loss rates are appropriately
M BEEEEERERAE BN THRIELEEREER adjusted based on current economic
RzBEBg - conditions and forward-looking

information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing
whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising
loss allowances; and
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MERARATEHEERNETHE AR
RigBERERIMBFERG2ERE
B TEHRBEEERITLERF
EERBRZEZ2DR : &

o inspecting cash receipts, on a sample
basis, from customers subsequent to
the end of the reporting period relating
to accounts receivable as at 30th June
2020.

o  IHEREE BRENBREHAREER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRESE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRESE

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Dune, Charles.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29th September 2020

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P0O0712
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 30th June 2020 R—FE-_ZEFXA=1+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
®n IS
—E-EF —ZE-NF
NA=1H ~NAZTH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt THxT FHET
(Note)
(=3
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - W23 AR 6 17,271 4,649
Investment properties "B 7 31,460 31,460
Other intangible assets Hm\EpEE 8 2,239 2,387
Film rights and films in progress B AE R BER
2B 9 221,760 235,304
Interests in associates A /N W e 11 - 1,085
Loan to an associate BT —EE QR
ZE®R 21(b) - 4,288
Film related deposits E- 2R 68,346 74,426
Deposits paid BfET& 14 407 1,696
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEE 15 271 341
Other financial assets EmermEE 16 10,008 9,574
TP TPRPIE. »-L. 17, SN 365,110
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 75 19 10,963 9,217
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 20 73,105 11,161
Loans receivable FERE R 21(a) 7,216 61,630
Amount due from an associate FEU— B & A B IE 12 53 -
Deposits paid, prepayments and BfNE]® - BIHKIE
other receivables K Bt IR IE 14 21,020 87,501
Trading securities T HHBH 17 3,300 8,691
Contingent consideration R AR E
receivable 22 - -
Tax recoverable AT B 7 IR = 2,242
Tax certificate 5 - 45
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KBS
- trust accounts -5 F 23 780 869
Time deposits with maturity over N EYNSEIE IS
three months at acquisition R EHTFH 24 108,640 S
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEY 24 106,949 178,228
_Total currentassets . . .. REBEERE . .............3820%6 359,684
Total assets WEE 683,788 724,694
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners RREEE ANERER
of the Company
Share capital &7 25 9,066 9,066
Share premium i Erabati=t 27(a) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves H b 27(a) 547,995 546,467
Accumulated losses 2itEE 27(a) (236,378) (209,315)
355,696 381,231
Non-controlling interests IR =S (804) (297)
Total equity RS 354,892 380,934

......................................................................................................

g
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 30th June 2020 R=—F_FFNA=1H
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
i »n
—ECEHF —E-NF
~A _'|' =! ~NA=1H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo FHExT FHET
(Note)
(=3
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 28 5,612 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIESE 15 84 90
.o..... [ 56% ... %0 .
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FETRR IR 29 19,301 10,821
Amount due to an associate AR R il /NI E S E] 12 - 2,725
Other payables and accrued H 0 FE A OB KR AT
charges i 30 158,870 74,610
Contingent consideration payable s AAR(E 31 20,400 20,400
Contract liabilities aHERE 32 97,397 193,454
Deposits received BIET & 11,409 34,923
Obligations under a finance lease BE & AR 28 = 7
Lease liabilities HERE 28 9,863 -
Taxation payable FESTIE 5,960 6,730
Total current liabilities REAREE  3;ma0 3360
Total liabilities ity ceeeenne..... 528896 343,760,
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 683,788 724,694
Net current assets REBEEFE 8,826 15,914
Total assets less current MEERRBARE
liabilities 360,588 381,024

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July 2019 using  Mizf : AEBR T NAFE+LA—BERETE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the WEN L ERB BN BRELERE 165 -
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1(i). BENAE  HEERATFEY - BN
2.1() °

The notes on pages 97 to 326 are an integral part of these  #H® E:Kt 3268 2 MiFE BiRE VB ME
> o

consolidated financial statements.

nmwa*

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 326 were N FELIBE EFEI26 B Vi AU BHMRN-E
approved by the Board on 29th September 2020 and were —“ZEEAA-+HBELEEZSHERBHAT

signed on its behalf: REEZ
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun b N MR
Director Director o 3
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2020 BE_-E_FENF=+HIFE

2020 2019
“ECEF ZE-NE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 THEL FET
(Note)
(F75)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: RELERK:
Revenue 1§
Sales of goods — video distribution, optical HERM-HGET
products and watches products REERRERED 52,229 38,090
Income on film distribution and exhibition, B RIRY  RERER
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights BEEMEWA 153,653 5,343
Income from other businesses HEBWA 20,885 18,236
Total revenue Bl 5 226,767 61,669
Cost of revenue RE A
Cost of inventories sold BERERA 19 (41,025) (27,254)
Related cost on film distribution and exhibition, BYRTRAM - RIERER
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights EYMIERBN A (71,175) (10,185)
Cost for other businesses ERES I (11,027) (8,850)
Total cost of revenue W R A (123,227) (46,289)
Selling expenses HEER (16,943) (12,572)
Administrative expenses THER (80,987) (73,989)
Impairment loss of interest in an associate R—EBE A RRRESE 1 = (1,065)
Impairment loss of film related deposits Y EE 2R ERE (11,356) (67)
Impairment loss of film rights and films in progress ~ EFMEREEREY 7 HEFE 9 (4,653) (1665)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRECIESE 6 (1,090) S
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEAEHERE 6 (2,069) -
Impairment loss of other intangible assets HEtEREE RERR 8 (1,165) -
Change in expected credit loss EHEEEEE 34 (23,175) (26,823)
Amortisation of other intangible assets AthER EESH 8 (397) (148)
Other income EhA 38 2,878 9,810
Other gains/(losses) — net Eftlss/ (B1B) - 58 39 14,523 (4,207)
{Losses)/gains: (B1B),/ s -
Fair value change of trading securities RHBEHLTLEES (5,391) (5,288)
Fair value change of other financial assets ERBREATEARZ
carried at fair value through profit or loss EmemEELTEED (3,581) (19,437)
Fair value change of contingent consideration RS ARE 2z ATFEZE
receivable 22 - (3,796)
Fair value change on investment properties RENFE L ATEE 7 = 2,100
Finance income BBWA 40 2,987 2,392
Finance costs B AR 33(c) (542) -
Share of losses of associates BB 2N A (1,085) (725)
Loss before taxation BRHATE S 33 (28,506) (118,600)
Income tax credit S HE & 41 141 123
Loss for the year from continuing operations FNREFBECEEBNER (28,365) (118,477)
1
7
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2020 BZE-E-FTFNF=1HIFE

2020 2019
k33 ZE-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt TER FEL
(Note)
(F75)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: BRIEEERE
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation 7R B & |48 & £ 75 1)
EREH/(E8) 42 795 (3,098)
Loss for the year FRER (27,570) (121,575)
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EkE
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: REENIREERCEE
Currency translation differences EEBEER 1528 17
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREM2ERS  NBRHE
L O ORPRURR SO PP 1928 ..
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EEBLEE (26,042) (121,404)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of RAREEAELER/ (BB
the Company:
- from continuing operations - REFELCEEY (27,858) (118,102)
- from discontinued operation -REBRELEES 795 (3,098)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARAEEAEGEERER
the Company (27,063) (121,200)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests: FRRERELEE
- from continuing operations - RERBLEEK (507) (375)
- from discontinued operation -REBRULEEES - -
Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling FERERELFABE
interests (507) (375)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UTEEFRZEEFREE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company /NI 2N (25,535) (121,029)
Non-controlling interests FiERER (507) (375)
(26,042) (121,404)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30th June 2020 BZ_-ZE_FFNA=1HIFE

mEEERER

2020 2019
“BCEE ZE-NE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TER TAT
(Note)
(F75)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to A2 FEEAELZZE
owners of the Company arises from: W&/ (BB EExs
Continuing operations RERLEK (26,330) (117,931)
Discontinued operation BRILEE % 795 (3,098)
(25,535) (121,029)
Loss per share attributable to owners of FREDRETARLEER
the Company for the year (expressed in HK$): BEMBTIIR) :
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERCALREEK
- basic o=\ 43(a) (0.0299) (0.134)
- diluted -8 43(b) (0.0299) (0.134)
From continuing operations REFECEER
= basic -EAR 43(a) (0.0307) (0.131)
- diluted -BE 43() (0.0307) (0.131)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1(i).

The notes on pages 97 to 326 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

M : ARER_T-AFEtA-AERAEBTE
WENTZRABTEWBHRESERFE 165 -
BB TE - LREB A TES - R
2.1() °

BENFI7TEEEI6H L MEREAMBRE
L8 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREHR

For the year ended 30th June 2020 HZ2_-E_FFNF=+HIFEF

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRAEE AR
Non-
Share Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserves losses Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
R&  ROEE MRS 2ithR & FERER fRs
(I2760)

Note HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
of:3 TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TER

Balance at 1st July 2018 REE-NELA-B2&H 9,066 928,358 67,565 (88,09) 916,8% 8 916,973
Impact on initial application of EREREBHB RS LRGSR

HKFRS 9 e - - 6,629) 1) 6,650) - 6,650)

9,066 928,358 60,936 (88,115) 910,245 78 910,323

Comprehensive Loss 2EFE
Loss for the Year Bl - - - (1212000 (121,200} (378)  (121,67)
Other comprehensive loss A2EEE
Currency translation difference BMHEES = = 171 = i S 1
Total comprehensive loss ERREFREE

for the Year - - m (121,200) (121,029) (375) (121,404)
Transactions with owners REEACRAE
Dividend peid EfRE I - - W79 - o - 4078
Reduction of share premium HIRRNEE - (893345 893345 = = = =
Total contributions by and FAAEBATEROALT

distribution to owners of READRZLE  HER

the company, recognised BETRR

directly in equity - (893,345) 485,360 - (407,985) - (407,985)
Balance at 30th June 2019 and RZB-AEARZTER-E-NE

1st July 2019 tA-Rzit 9,066 35,013 546,467 (209,315) 381,231 (297) 380,934
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the Year ERhEE - - - 27,063) (27,063) (507) (27,570)
Other comprehensive income E2EHA
Currency translation difference ERAEER = = 1528 = 1528 S 1528
Total other comprehensive income ~ Hft2HRALE = = 1528 = 1528 = 1528
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ EAZEUA/ (BE) 4%

for the Year - - 1528 (27,063 (25,535) (507) 26,042)
Balance at 30th June 2020 REBZEERA=TRZLES 9,066 35,013 547,99 (236,378) 355,696 (804) 354,892

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July 2019 using  Misf : AEBR -_Z—-AE+A—BERETE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the WAL ERE BN ERELERFE 165K -
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1(i). BB FE  ERERTFES - B
2.1() °
% The notes on pages 97 to 326 are an integral part of these HNEI7TAEFI26H 2 Wi BGEAMBERE
‘4 consolidated financial statements. 25 e
e
%
L
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETRER

For the year ended 30th June 2020 BZ_-ZFE_FFANA=1+HIFFE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —T-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FtaE FET FET
Cash flows from operating EEITHC2RERE
activities
Net cash generated from HETBHEEZFRS
operating activities 45(a) 89,448 223,247
Cash flows from investing REFTEBZ2RERE
activities
Purchase of property, AW - R R
plant and equipment B 6 (3,134) (3,821)
Purchase of other intangible assets B A H b EmFL & E 8 (1,414) -
Decrease in film related deposits B2l R a2 14,543 553
Increase in film related deposits ERZ R il (30,007) (40,471)
Payments for film rights and BRRE R BER 2
films in progress BTN 9 (30,089) (155,495)
Refund of film production cost REEFEUEER 9 3,864 =
Proceeds from capital return AP ESMEEY
from available-for-sale = ENEE I C G
financial assets 1,530 38,507
Proceeds from disposal of HeEqHHBESEE
available-for-sale financial assets ZHEEIE 5,932 =
Proceeds from disposal of HjE%% Hes &
property, plant and equipment B FTISFIE 45(a) = 34
Repayment from loan receivable By —ZFE =K
granted to a third party EHZiBH 1,910 -
Loan receivable granted to BY—Z2FE=7
a third party 2 KB R (6,025) (1,000)
Interest received B2 UFE 2,987 2,392
Increase in time deposits with REEARZ|E A5
maturity over 3 months at = @Az FEEBEE
acquisition 5 24 (108,640) -
Net cash used in investing REZEBFAZERS
activities (148,543) (159,301)

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
S A A~ —|
mEBRERER
For the year ended 30th June 2020 BZ_-_ZFE_FTFANF=+HIFEZF
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FtaE FExT FHT
Cash flows from financing METEBRERE
activities
Capital element of finance leases BMEMEENRZER
payments #> 45(p) - (18)
Capital element of lease rentals BNAEREZEAR
paid s 45(b) (11,642) S
Interest element of lease rentals DNHRERS A
paid D 45(p) (542) -
Dividend paid EARIRE 44 - (407,985)
Net cash used in financing MEEFBHFAZERS
activitles . iiiiiiiiiiiieeiieiieeienen. ... (12184) ... 408,003),
Net decrease in cash HeRESZEEY
and cash equivalents ZFED (71,279) (344,057)
Cash and cash equivalents REVHREe RS
at beginning of the year ZEY 178,228 522,285
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEERES
at end of the year ZEW 106,949 178,228
Analysis of cash and RERBESEEYIW:
cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 24 106,949 178,228
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July 2019 using Mzt @ AEBR -_ET—NAFE+ A - HEHRETE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the WA S EREBMERELERE 165 ©
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1(i). BIEETF A WRERTTES] - BTG
2.10)
The notes on pages 97 to 326 are an integral part of these #HMNEI7THEEI268 2 Wit BLRA MIEHRE
consolidated financial statements. L5 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in video distribution,
film distribution and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights, money lending, leasing of investment
properties, entertainment business, securities investment,
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of type-setting,
translation, printing, design, distribution of financial print
products and other related services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Company is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I,
192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 29th September 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of contingent
consideration receivable, other investments in
equity securities, derivative financial instruments,
contingent consideration payable and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

2

EEEERRBE

CTE
Fr2

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS
16, Leases, and a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

e IR R M AT
2 EEETHEHEZE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ERERME
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETTHEHEEZE®
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HWRBIELE @)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures ST BRE B R I & (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs () JERFE RS & B
(Continued) B #R & 2E R (8)
HKFRS 16, Leases BRI IR ERIFE 165 -
HE
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, ERM B HmELERE 165
and the related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) REBFENE 7R - H
4, Determining whether an arrangement E - kif@ERE &5 ERER
contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases YRR ERELZES)-RE
- incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating FAW - BETLHEE M
the substance of transactions involving the E AEENREZES)-
legal form of a lease. It introduces a single REFY  LEHE - F
accounting model for lessees, which requires BEREHEREZED)-
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset BRREE27Y S RHEE
and a lease liability for all leases, except for EREFEARXZ o AhEMEA
leases that have a lease term of 12 months SIAE —gFHRA - EoK
or less (“short-term leases”) and leases FAA St P A TH & W R A
of low-value assets. The lessor accounting BENMBEAGE  HHEBA
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 12 AskE R 2 HE (5
17 substantially unchanged. HEDREEEEEMER
Sho HHEAESFHEELEAE
BT ERIENT7H - EA L
HRETE o
HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative BV BREERF 165D
and quantitative disclosure requirements SIABIIEEREERRE
which aim to enable users of the financial X BEEEWBmREAE
statements to assess the effect that leases AMEEHEBYBMRA
have on the financial position, financial PHRBAEREREZY
performance and cash flows of an entity. £ .
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as rEER-_ZE-NF+tHRA—
from 1st July 2019. The Group has elected HEVFEAREVB®RE
to use the modified retrospective approach ERFEI69 - AEBEER
and has therefore recognised the cumulative KIERTIBIE - AG P e
effect of initial application as an adjustment AZEFHERRRR_Z
to the opening balance of equity at 1st July —hEFtA—BHVERE
2019. Comparative information has not been MR HREMILESE
) restated and continues to be reported under b BEBRBESSE
i HKAS 17. AIE175% 2% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of
the changes to previous accounting policies
and the transition options applied are set out
below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control.
HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of
an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of
a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that were entered into or changed on
or after 1st July 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1st July 2019,
the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under
HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.

e IR R M AT
2 EEETHEHEZE®

2.1 RBEE
EHHESHRITE @)

(i) R AN EE

B EER (&)
BB B ERIE 1655 -
HE (&)

FEBESBREREH 2T
ERFENFERBRER
ZE—FFHBERIIMT

a. MEZHTE
HETR EHTER
2B - &
B IR E R F 1657
REEFPERERX K
BARERICHEBIBE
EREAImEEER
EET) MEMEEEL
EE - ERFPARLSE
BRI EERGE AR
ZAEPESBRED
BN i - RN
BIEHIRE -

FEM B HREERE16
HAMEEZHEREER
ARAEBR TN
FLA—BR &AL
HBE AL - R
T-NFLA—HAE
YZENME  AEHE
ERABEMEAITEE
% BEGRZAY
RARRERMEES
BEHEMEZEEE
R o Bt - TATREE
B EETERIF 175
RIEEZ BNEBRE
FEMBHREERE16
ARSI SHEE - Mk
ARG BIFHE RS %
BEz KRB ARY
RBREMEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEEREEw@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HWRBIELE @)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures ST BRE B R I & (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs () JERFE RS & B
(Continued) B #R & 2E R (8)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI IR ERIFE 165 -
HE (&)
Lessee accounting and transitional b.  FABASIHEELR
impact BEZE

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement
for a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by HKAS
17. Instead, the Group is required to
capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are exempt.
As far as the Group is concerned, these
newly capitalised leases are primarily
in relation to property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in note 47. For
an explanation of how the Group applies
lessee accounting, see note 2.10(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e.
1st July 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms
and measured the lease liabilities for the
leases previously classified as operating
leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted
using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at 1st July 2019. The weighted
average of the incremental borrowing
rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease
payments was 2.97%.
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BEVBREERZE16
RABRERESGE
HERIFE175R B SRKARM
ABHESEALENR
ESMEREZRTE o
Rz BAREEAEME
A EBEEFBEHESR
b - BIEERRES
BEEERE 17RO
AEEHECHE ¥
ZEERPHEEREER
BEHERI - iARKE
EmE @ ZEFHEXL
THETZHYE - HeS
MEERRE - EWHE
ATFTHFRE - BEASE
B anfa] fE A AT A & 51
BRIRE BRE - BMEE
2.10(i) °

RBEERBUBRSE
ZRIE1658E A (A1 =
T-NAFtA—H)"
AEEBEHRTITHESZ
R YA D RS
reEMEZHERR =
E-hFLtA—-BZHA
R EE M RAR 2
HRTHENRREFE
HERAE - ARNEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of HKFRS
16:

()  the Group elected not to apply
the requirements of HKFRS 16 in
respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets
to leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease
term ends on or before 30th June
2020;

3 2
BEFRECEBERAR —T_TFFH ‘103 o

SRR E BRI E @

FE B #Ta] AL NG 5T & 78

BT 3R & 22 R (%)

BRI AR E 165

HE (&)

b.  ABEAEEEIEER
BEZE (B

REBEREEZE BTG
BEERF16H/ 2 ¥
g KAEERVZER
BRUBHRELEAF16
SR B IAT RS
R RAITRETE

(i)

REBEEETRE
HEBYHRE
AR 1655
mRAEEEK
FREEEEF
HRESHRE BN
B EERE16
SO ERABH
HEH121E AN &
RPAEHPR=F

—EERAST
A2 A R) 2
HEZME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

when measuring the lease liabilities
at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, the Group applied a
single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with
a similar remaining lease term for a
similar class of underlying asset in
a similar economic environment);
and

when measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group
relied on the previous assessment
for onerous contract provisions as
at 30th June 2019 as an alternative
to performing an impairment
review.

2

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

e IR R M AT
2 EEETHEHEZE®

2.1 mEEEE
SHTBEREHRIEE @)

(i) FEHRFHT AN & E
BT 3R & 22 R (%)
BRI AR E 165
HE (&)
b.  ABEAEEEIEER
BEZE (B)

The following table reconciles the
operating lease commitments as
disclosed in note 47 as at 30th June
2019 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1st July 2019:

TREGIK 47T E
R_ZT—hEXA=T
A2 Q&G AEER
—E-NFLA—B#®
RzAEaBEZ B

R AR ¢
HK$'000
TET
Operating lease commitments RZE-NEAA=+HZ
at 30th June 2019 e ERE 22,058
Less: commitments relating to leases W BEREEAHEEEEL
exempt from capitalisation: A
- short-term leases and other leases - RHAEREMFEBESR
with remaining lease term ending i
on or before 30th June 2020 o, BifE W 2 AE (1,997)
- leases of low-value assets -REEEEHE (10)
20,051
Less: total future interest expenses W ARRF BB BB (659)
Present value of remaining lease payments, ~ # THEERNZRE  FAR-Z—NF
discounted using the incremental borrowing A — B Z S & FFI KR
rate at 1st July 2019 19,392
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised mRZE-NEF A=+EER
as at 30th June 2019 JHEHERE 7
Total lease liabilities recognised RZE-NE+tA—ARRHEE
at 1st July 2019 BEEHE 19,399

RTFREXCEBEARAF

Bt N ‘105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 mEEEE)
SHTBEREHRIEE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) FEFE]RANEET & B
(Continued) B3R & 2E Rl (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB & ZERIE 1655 -
HE(8)
Lessee accounting and transitional b.  ABEAGIEEZLR
impact (Continued) BETE ()

The right-of-use assets in relation to
leases previously classified as operating
leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised
for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the balance sheet at
30th June 2019.

So far as the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 on leases previously
classified as finance leases is concerned,
the Group is not required to make
any adjustments at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, other than
changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, instead of “obligations
under finance leases”, these amounts
are included within “lease liabilities”,
and the depreciated carrying amount
of the corresponding leased asset is
identified as a right-of-use asset. There
is no impact on the opening balance of
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

The following table summarises the
impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
the Group's consolidated balance sheet:

Line items in the consolidated
balance sheet impacted by
the adoption of HKFRS 16:

Property, plant and equipment nE - BERZE

Total non-current assets FRBEELE

Obligations under a finance lease ~ BLE T E&E

Lease liabilities (current) HEEE(R)
Current liabilities RBaE

Net current assets RBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERRHER
Lease liabilities (non-current) MEBREGERY)
Total non-current liabilities FhBaELER

REMBERHHRERNF 165
YR RARERRRAR

EFREXEMARART —F-TEFH ‘107 =
o &

e M BB RME

BEEESTHEREE®

MR RIELAE ()
SHTBEREHRIEE @)

(i) FERFTET AT B E
BT 3R & 22 R (%)

BB EERFE 165 -

HE#®

b.  EMEASFEIELR
BEZEE)
T SR Al BR 4N B RS

HEEAFI6REAE
BRABEERBRIY

&

Carrying Capitalisation Carrying
amountat  of operating amount at
30th June lease 1st July

2019 contracts 2019

R=2-7% R=F-1%
AA=tRez HRERRSH  tA-HEZ
NREE Brax HREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR AR

4,649 19,392 24,041
365,110 19,392 384,502
7 (7) -

- 9414 9414
343,670 9,407 353,077
15,914 (9,407) 6,507
381,024 9,985 391,009
- 9,985 9,985

90 9,985 10,075

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C.

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1st July
2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-
of-use asset, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
This results in an insignificant impact on
the reported profit from operations in
the Group's consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

2

BEEESTHEREE®

2.1
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MR RIELAE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C.

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

In the cash flow statement, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid
under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element (see note
45(b)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to
how leases previously classified as
finance leases under HKAS 17 were
treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under HKAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the
adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results
in a significant change in presentation
of cash flows within the cash flow
statement (see note 45(c)).

2

e M BB RME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C.

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

The following tables give an indication
of the estimated impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
result, segment results and cash flows
for the year ended 30th June 2020, by
adjusting the amounts reported under
HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial
statements to compute estimates of the
hypothetical amounts that would have
been recognised under HKAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued to
apply in 2019/20 instead of HKFRS 16,
and by comparing these hypothetical
amounts for 2019/20 with the actual
2018/19 corresponding amounts which
were prepared under HKAS 17.

2

BEEESTHEREE®

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued| 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures ST BRE B R I 5 (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) [ERFETHALNEETEE
(Continued) B3R &2 B (48)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI IR 2R E 165 -
HE (&)
c.  Impact on the financial result, segment c. HIAREEHFEELE
results and cash flows of the Group DEREERBELTREZ
(Continued) FEE)
2020 2019
ZECEF ZE-AE
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to

Addback:  operating Hypothetical ~ Compared
Amounts  HKFRS 16 leases as amounts  to amounts
reported  depreciation if under ~ for2020as  reported for
under  and interest HKAS 17 if under 2019 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
mE: B:REEE  REEE  RREEE
BREE  SEH SN &iEH
REEE  BERN ZURFEL 1% 178
BERE  E6%T ARLERE  FSMz  FEH2
EHI%16% HER 2ftitE®  ZBZBF ZB-nf
fiedze®  REEX (W) BREE SBEAHE
(A) B) (C)  (D=A+B+C)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin T T Tin
Financial result for the year ended ~ SSRAAE BB R4 8

30th June 2020 impacted by ZI6RTEHE
the adoption of HKFRS 16: B g
HEREHBEE

Administrative expenses GGk 80,987) 11,128 (11,624] (81,483) (73,989)
Selling expenses HEER (16,943) an (328) (16,860) (12,572)
Finance costs B A (542) 542 S S S
Loss before taxation from REmEER B

continuing operations B& (28,506) 12,081 (11,952) (28,377) (118,600)
Loss for the year from BREOZERIER

continuing operations Fa (28,365) 12,081 (11,952) (2823)  (118477)
Loss for the year EREE (27570) 12,081 (11952)  (27441) (121575

ETRE(LEBERAT —E-TEER ‘ 111 B4



p
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 A =
8 B W EE
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETTHEHEEZE®
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued| 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures SETBRE B R I 5 (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) FEFE]RANEET & B
(Continued) B3R &2 B (48)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI IR 2R E 165 -
HE (&)
c.  Impact on the financial result, segment c. HIAREEHFEELE
results and cash flows of the Group DEREERBELTREZ
(Continued) FEE)
2020 2019
ZECEF Z3-0E
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to
Addback:  operating Hypothetical ~ Compared
Amounts  HKFRS 16 leases as amounts  to amounts
reported  depreciation ifunder  for2020as reported for
under  and interest HKAS 17 ifunder 2019 under
HKFRS 16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
mE: W REEE  REER  HREER
BRME  eiEN  &iEN &Ry
REEE  BEEH EUSFSH 1% 178
BERE  F16%T ABELERE  fSHz  FEH2
ERIE16% WER 2fteE -B-EF CE-AF
fefzeE  FEEX (W)  BREE SEEGHY
(A B) (C)  [D=A+B+C)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr T Thr i
Reportable segment profitfloss) for ~ SiRAAE BB L 8
the year ended 30th June 2020 ZI6RTEHE
(note 5lal] impacted by ZEITERACTH
the adoption of HKFRS 16: HERTZRA
aH/ (B8
(HEsla) :
- Video distribution, film distribution - 55347« EFATR
and exhibition, licensing and i R RER
sub-ficensing of film rights EMiE 17,355 3,781 (3,813) 17,323 (52,387)
- Trading, wholesaling and -RREERRESER
retailing of optical products B85 WERTE
& and watches products (12,101) 5,694 (5,629) (12,036) (10,679)
b - Entertainment business -RELH (857) 36 (22) (843) (632)
T - Financial printing - BHEEDf (11,134) 2499 (2418 (11,083 (8,503)

i
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

EEE

STHEREEmw

2.1 MREEE@m

(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C. Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash flows of the Group

(Continued)

SETHERE BRI E @

FEF#T AT BASNEET] &8
B EER (&)

BB I ERIZ 1655 -
HE (8

c. HAEKEHHEFRE -
DERERTE T RELZ

Line items in the consolidated statement of SHFAEBHBREERZ16%

cash flows for year ended 30th June 2020

impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16:

Cash generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Z & (18)
2020 2019
ZBCEE ZE-NF
Estimated
amounts
related to
operating Hypothetical ~ Compared
Amounts leases as amounts  to amounts
reported ifunder  for 2020 as reported
under HKAS 17 if under under
HKFRS 16 (notes 1&2) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
REEE
EHEH  REER
£ BHEE  HREER
REEE FELER EAVE -]
HERE KEHEz  FBLR 175
BHZ6E  fhEE  -ECEE fEHe
fie%ze® (W1R2D  BREE SERAUE
(A (B) (C=A+B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Thn Thn
YE HE_ZCEERR
STALEEGARERER
WIER
BERDFEL RS 87,507 (12,177) 75,330 207,249
EEERFELZFRS
89,448 (12,177) 172N 223,247
ENEEREZERE D (11,64 11,635 7 (18]
ENEEREZFIEHS (542) 542 = S
REEDHAZERS (12,184) 1211 (7 (408,003)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHEREZE@®
POLICIES (continued)

of the amounts of the cash flows
in 2019/20 that relate to leases

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued| 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures SETBRE B R I 5 (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) [ERFETHALNEETEE
(Continued) B3R &2 B (48)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB ISR 2R E 1655
HE (&)
c.  Impact on the financial result, segment c. HIAREEHFEELE
results and cash flows of the Group DEREERBELTREZ
(Continued) FEE)
Note 1: The “estimated amounts related MR (ARG EREE
to operating leases” is an estimate HErEBEIRESR

BEEERE7
ER TN/

which would have been classified ZTEFNAER
as operating leases, if HKAS 17 ZBRT - B
had still applied in 2019/20. This eNHEAKEM

estimate assumes that there were
no differences between rentals and
cash flows and that all of the new
leases entered into in 2020 would
have been classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17
had still applied in 2019/20. Any
potential net tax effect is ignored.

EZHER=-ZE
N/ —ZEF2Z
BemEdsta
o BEEAEFR
R ERBSR
FERNFE175RN =
T _TFNAE
BzBRAT M

tHBREREZ
MWEER - BT
ER=-Z—h/
—EFRINZH

HEREEBS
FFERIE1T75R
ENHAKLERNR
g o TMEBEEF
HIEEEH R
et e

Note 2: In this impact table these cash Mis2: U ERF -
outflows are reclassified from ZERE ML B
financing to operating in order to BMEBFHEE

compute hypothetical amounts of
net cash generated from operating

BiE - AHHERE
BRI EAE

activities and net cash used in 1757 R ER 2

financing activities as if HKAS 17 BART  EER

i still applied. BELZFR

b EUARBEEH
&%w FFRAZFHEZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued| 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures ST BRE B R I 5 (@)
(Continued)
(i) Application of new or revised HKFRSs (i) [ERFETHALNEETEE
(Continued) B3R & 2E R (1)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB ISR 2R E 1655
HE (&)
Leasehold investment property d. HEREYF
Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required BRI 53R S 28]
to account for all leasehold properties F165% - WHEHEWHE
as investment properties when these hABRBRAES WA,
properties are held to earn rental S AERIBEMFE -
income and/or for capital appreciation BIREBBBMEZSE
(“leasehold investment properties”). HEMENREMEA
The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not R(IHAEREME]D -
have a significant impact on the Group's AR ARNEBLRTEEZRE

financial statements as the Group
previously elected to apply HKAS 40,
Investment properties, to account for all
of its leasehold properties that were held
for investment purposes as at 30th June
2019. Consequentially, these leasehold
investment properties continue to be
carried at fair value.

REAEFTERFEA0%
[EEWMEIHEMER
—E-NAFEXA=1+H
AREENMBHAEZA
EMEETEER
E R MBS SRS
AEBI 55 1650 AN = [ B
BRERTBEBERTE o
Bt - ZEHRERED
EBBERNTFEER -

BERe Y EEERAT —E-THEER ‘115 €
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued| 2.1 mEEEwm
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures SETBRE B R I 5 (@)
(Continued)
(i) New Standards and amendments to standards (i) [ RERAN 2 FT AT 2E B R
not yet adopted R 2 EET R

THURRTER ~ R ZEF
ARERENZZER-F
—NEFLtA—-BREHTK
FEEBRMERRER - B
I TR PR -

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st
July 2019 and have not been early adopted:

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

RUT RS

Z BB
EEHREN

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1st January 2021
BEAMBREEINETR REAH I
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business 1st January 2020

BEARBREENEIR(ETA) $BeEE —Z-TE-A-H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1st January 2022
EAENBRERIER (BT BaMER R “E--F-f-H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1st January 2020

& HKFRS 7
ERRBREERESR - MEERERE “ECTE-A-A

FAGHERE3ER
BRMBREEUNRTH (B A)

a date to be determined

Amendments to HKFRS 10 & HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

EARBREENE10%R REERABBRARAGERACHCEE AHATE
BEAREERFE8RBTE) HEHTE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Tst June 2020
BANBREENE 165 (BT TREERRSHE MRS ZZCTERA-A
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Tst January 2023
Non-current
EREHEAE R B F) BEESEARDIERD —E-=%-A-H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) New Standards and amendments to standards
not yet adopted (Continued)

2

e M BB RME

BEEESTHEREE®

2.1

MR RIELAE ()
SHTBEREHRIEE @)

(ii) [ RERAY 2 H 2] E R K
R Z 15T A (@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 & HKAS 8

ERGENE 1R RBEBGER S
CHES)

Amendments to HKAS 16

AL RERE 165 (BITA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

B EREIR BT
Amendments to HKFRSs

BEMBRELER (BFTA)

Definition of Material

EAMYER

Property, Plant and Equipment = Proceeds
before Intended use

NE  HERRE - HERGAZMETE

Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

BEAN-BITaNZAA

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

ERANMBGEEN-_T-\FE_Z-TE
B2 EE

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

RUT B8

Z BB
EEHEEN

1st January 2020
“E-ZF-A—H

1st January 2022

T -f-H
1st January 2022

“E--"%#-H—H
1st January 2022

“2--%-A—H

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 22 WEBRR) RIFZERER
(Continued) (%)
Non-controlling interests are presented in S EEN G A EERBEROE
the consolidated balance sheet within equity, HEANEARNTEAE ABGEZDH
separately from equity attributable to the owners 25 o REBEZERENIERERT
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the FEZENEREMEMAFANE
results of the Group are presented on the face EAARE N 2 E W A AR RE A FE I I
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive HEARBEEAZENDE K
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss BRARZzZHEKEBEFEBENAR
and total comprehensive income for the year AER ARGEERR R - Bl ISR
between non-controlling interests and the owners GEYSEREREEBAER o
of the Company. Total comprehensive income HIERERTIBACERREZE
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the BEAFBZEMENTRERNGE
Company and to the non-controlling interests EEABRPEI ATRARE -

even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in AEBEREEHE AR
existing subsidiaries BEEREREDSEE)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that AL BRI B AR R ZES T
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as SEYEKLESIE - AERRER
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made SAER  RAREGEERZAZ
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling R IR E RN SRR E
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the HEEEMNED - BTAREEN
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are TEREE -

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is EAREEKLXENB AR ZEH
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in B BEEALEERZNEB AR
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being ZEPERETEREE  BEEL
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained BEARBEER - IENB XA A
in that former subsidiary at the date when control REXIEHEE B 2 ERBTHER
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount BEANFERR - Mz A G5
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of EeMEEVIHERZATE - 3%
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on (EA) VL ERREE ARG
initial recognition of an investment in an associate BNEZIGERK o

or joint venture. *

BRRA(CEEERAT —E-TEER 119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’'s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.12(b)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition- related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncomes Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

2 EEETTHEHEEZE®

2.2

2.3

|
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A—RRELRERETHER

REERE - PRRBRRREER
PrAER R AT ERR - T
HBEFRIM :

e EREMEEEXRMBENERE
BRMZHBRNEESLR
EDRRBEEGELSR
125 AT R BB B & st E R
1958 8 18 7 FE R K &t

=

8

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 23 FEEEH®m

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by- transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (that is, the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

[nvestments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Investments in associates (Continued)

2.5

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

2

24

2.5

ZHTBERRE@

REHE R A2 E @)
AEBREBEARZEBRES
KREMEEEEFASZE 2EK
MR o M WERRBERRZ
RaEREY  AEBRNGEE
BB REREEFAEEZEH (N
A o ANEEEEENRE ZH
RpEEZRBE Wt R EBIAR
SERBLERRZRESREH
KRR R BREHCEREER
BERIRANERIN - KBRS AR
EEZABEFSAREENEZ Q7]
ZREBD

>
Hﬂi

KGR
CES T PNt e
ERTH AR A ERTIRE
Em—BABRY -

Bt >
)IﬂHaﬁ‘rJ}ﬂ]i

=
Jm

]

REE R
18

BEFEHREERAATE

s HEE BREEBGEMHK
RBEZEE

s HAfF BREEEGEEMHK
RIAEZEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group's interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Chairman of the Company (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net'.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a)

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHEREZE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.7 HNERE @)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and (d) HESIERR

partial disposal o HE
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that HESINEBEIHEREER
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest RBINEBH IR - X
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving HESRKAEHBIEGINE
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes TEHIM B A R RO HIAE - ok
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving HESREAEAEBEGINE
loss of significant influence over an associate BHEENRNERTZEN)
that includes a foreign operation), all of the % BARFRHEB AELZ
currency translation differences accumulated XBHORERANRTHME
in equity in respect of that operation BB EEHEENIEER
attributable to the owners of the Company are Fnld
reclassified to profit or loss.
In the case of a partial disposal that does MBI TSI HAEE KLY
not result in the Group losing control over a BIEEINEBHK B A E W
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, THEMNISHE - BEE
the proportionate share of accumulated i E =R PIER
currency translation differences are re- EETIHEREZATEN
attributed to non-controlling interests and are BEHEAER o LA H M
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other o E (BN ASE R & AT
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the LEERFINBREREZR
Group's ownership interest in associates or Do WA B AEEKLELE
joint ventures that do not result in the Group AEBHRBEEEDE) M
losing significant influence or joint control), T RFERETENEML
the proportionate share of the accumulated PEFHDEEE -
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.

%

£y

é;f;‘%T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

28 W - #as LR E
FiameE - MERBERESRA
BB T E R A REHRIEE B
IR - BERABEEEZSEHEER
BRI -

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

BERAREEZRBRAEAE
SEHREZ AR RKREEN
w7 BEKARBERI SRR ER - A&t
ABENEREEXERLS —HES
BEMER) - CERTHNKRE

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the BEOWRIEER - TBEEMES KR
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and REBATEEENTHRABAR
maintenance are expensed to the consolidated REEEWRERATI A -
statement of comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

ME - HSERRBOITERAUAT
R AT 68 A F B LR AN IR B AR
ENBEERREEFHE

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life HEWE A AFHREE
or lease term £z FHOREE

Machinery and equipment  3-5 years HeEREEE 3E5F

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term FREEE MEFH

Others 5 years Hth B

BENRHREELAIERAFHES
HEPRETR - REBERH

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.12(b)).

B’ o

FEREENEREESNEGR A RE
SR HEREERNRHORZ AT E

S5 (f3E2.12(0) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2.10) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2.28(d).

In the comparative period, when the Group holds
a property interest under an operating lease to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
2.10), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note
2.10.

2

BEEESTHEREE®

2.8

2.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets 210 HEE E

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee
(A)  Policy applicable from 1st July 2019

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

REHWRBER - AREFGEO=
ERABEIHEE - WMEON—BRE
BIAERD BRI B E 2 R HE
RBEBA(E - BizadAmEal
E - WEFPCARETCEHANEE
Z B R A E T ERBAR
DROBMERE - BIRREFIEEE

i3
A ©

(i) AFREBEA

A B=ZF-NFtH—
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BTROIFEERD M
KR EEE D K E0
B OFHE R ARSI
PFEHECE—HER

LN o

7]

REERMKBEH - K&
EEREREEERE
Ea8fE HEER12E
ASATZEHEER
BEEEEZHERR
S o AR EBIEEE
BEIVHEE QX%
BIRERGREREE
HEERHEHEEANL - &
ZERENCHERR
ZHEENRRERRE
BEEER R o

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHEREZE@®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued) 210 HEEE @)
(i) Asalessee (Continued) (i) 1EREBAG@®

(A)  Policy applicable from 1st July 2019 A) BE=ZZFE—IEFLtH—
(Continued) HiEH 2 B (&)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease WEEERERNE - HE
liability is initially recognised at the BEVFEEERNTE
present value of the lease payments ENFIRERR - Wik
payable over the lease term, discounted HEFRAEZFZERE,
using the interest rate implicit in the B WZNES5E
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily T AMEAEREERE
determined, using a relevant incremental MFNE o YIS HERIE
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, BN AFGTEHESR
the lease liability is measured at BREFERERF LR
amortised cost and interest expense is ENEHAE - FrEHE
calculated using the effective interest BER - WHEIETK
method. Variable lease payments that FE 2 (B B sk A 2= 2 7]
do not depend on an index or rate are HBHEKE  ZEUE
not included in the measurement of the HEFIEE L ET AEAT
lease liability and hence are charged to EAgTHECER
profit or loss in the accounting period in A o

which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when R E & AR R
a lease is capitalised is initially measured ZIEREEENNIE
at cost, which comprises the initial RAHE  ERaiEH
amount of the lease liability plus any SaBEzvIFeEME
lease payments made at or before the R FIA B Bisk 2 BITEH
commencement date, and any initial ZAEMBEENE - AR
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, EAZERVTEEK
the cost of the right-of-use assets Ko RERABRT -
also includes an estimate of costs to AEEERRITBIER
dismantle and remove the underlying br R ZBRIERE & E ik
asset or to restore the underlying ENRBEEENZEEM
asset or the site on which it is located, el 2 fRETRR A - M BA
discounted to their present value, less BEREZRERBBRE
any lease incentives received. The right- FRHEWRBEEESE -
of-use asset is subsequently stated at CTRAEEEHEBEK
cost less accumulated depreciation and E REITE RIBEAE
impairment losses (see notes 2.8 and BB R (RWE2.8%
2.12(b)), except for the right-of-use asset 2.12(b)) + HERIRHT
- that meet the definition of investment 29 AR A FEARK
4 property are carried at fair value in ZIREMETERZHER
accordance with note 2.9. B ERIN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  As alessee (Continued

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1st July 2019
(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’'s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in ‘other property,
plant and equipment’ and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2019

In the comparative period, as a
leasee the Group classified leases as
finance lease if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group. Leases which
did not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
were classified as operating leases, with
the following exceptions:

2 EEETHEHEZE®

210 HEEE®
(=Y :PNC)

(A)

(B)

B-E-NFtH—
H B 2 B (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHEREZE@®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued) 210 HEEE®
(i)  As alessee (Continued) (i) EARFEBA@E
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2019 (B) R=ZF—NEFEtHA—
(Continued) H 518 2 B 7% ()
(a)  Classification of assets leased to the (a) HHETAEE

Group BEZTHE

= property held under operating = A EHE
leases that would otherwise BEERE
meet the definition of an ft 7 H B
investment property was FaeEKE
classified as an investment Y ETEE
property on a property- M %
by-property basis and, if REEYE
classified as investment HEESEER
property, was accounted for "EWE -
as if held under a finance fii > 48 B I%
lease (see note 2.9); and By - B

ABRAFARE
20 & DA b &
HERE—
B (R
29 &

- land held for own use under - NAKEHEE
an operating lease, the fair BEEA -
value of which could not be il AR
measured separately from SRS
the fair value of a building HAFER
situated thereon at the BERELEZ
inception of the lease, was BFEH AT
accounted for as being held BErHAFE
under a finance lease, unless B - Hb 3% A
the building was also clearly BMEMER
held under an operating BAE &
lease. For these purposes, 7T B e LA £
the inception of the lease LHERAE
was the time that the lease HIEF I o
was first entered into by the REME -
Group, or taken over from the HEMRLE
previous lessee. I fE 18 AN &

ER=pN A
HE - 8
3 EIRETiEWN 23
$ I 12 F 1 B
é'?’-{ M o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued) 20 MEEE @)
(i)  As alessee (Continued) (i) {EARFEBEAGE
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2019 (B) R=—ZFE—NFLtH—
(Continued) H 58 2 B % (%)
(b)  Assets acquired under finance leases ) UBEHE
EREREE
Where the Group acquired the use fis] 75 5= [ DA Bh &
of assets under finance leases, HEEGEED
the amounts representing the FRAE  AEE
fair value of the leased asset, EEAYESLE
or, if lower, the present value of BMEEXEEE
the minimum lease payments of AR E (AR
such assets were recognised as BERE)SH

property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, were recorded as
obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation was provided at
rates which wrote off the cost of
the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it was
likely the Group would obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2.8.
Impairment losses were accounted
for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note
2.12(b). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments were charged
to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

EERAT( EEERAT —E-TEER ‘135 =

ERRME - %
22 KRB A
e B ERIRH
BREEEREA
RIWSRMEME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  As alessee (Continued

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1st July 2019
(Continued)

(c)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group had the use of
assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were
charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they
were incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held
under an operating lease was
amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease
term except where the property
is classified as an investment
property (see note 2.9).

2

BEEESTHEREE®

210 HEEE®

(i) MERFEEA@®

B) R=F-NFtH—
H BIE 2 B & (1)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2.28(d).

e M BB RME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities and
derivative financial instruments

(a)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are
as follows:

Investments in equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which
transaction costs are recognised directly
in profit or loss. For an explanation of how
the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 3.3. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.28(f).

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZHTBERREE@
POLICIES (continued)
1 Other investments in equity securities and HARAFEFRE &
derivative financial instruments (Continued) TEER I AEw®m

(b)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits,
loans receivable, accounts and other
receivables and loans to associates);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15
(see note 2.18);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
and derivative financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

2 EEE

STHEREEwm

22 EEEENEERE®

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZESiTBERE@

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a) Creditlosses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment,
the Group considers changes in the risk of
default occurring on the loan to which the loan
commitment relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For margin client receivables, the Group
considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral
value (“LTV") to make its assessment. The
Group considers a margin client receivable is
in default when payments under the margin
call requirement are 30 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a margin client receivable to be in
default when there is a margin shortfall which
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full,
taking into account the pledged securities
held by the Group. A margin client receivable
is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument'’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2.28(e) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(a)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit losses from financial instruments,
contract assets and lease receivables
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment including
right-of-use assets;

- other intangible assets;

2 EEETTHEHEEZE®
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- film related deposits;

= film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associates in the Company's balance
sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash-inflows independently
(that is, a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.

2

BEEESTHEREE®

212 ZE

(b)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

=

e N EERIE®

Hth & =R (E ()

FERIR BRI

EEEREMBRSE
HEEMREERBR
A EleRE - BIREs
hiERRERSE - BHR
TEABUBERARE
BEEBELIEER
PEZBREEEEM (K
AL BN P o B AE
AEENREE - 2HE&
R LB D 5 AL (3
ZAEBA)NEMEE
MREE - HEEMK
EENDRERREE
B AR SRR & A
(ngest8) e MEE
(WREEETE) °

BN EEE

WA EEE AT @SR
B {5t 3R R 4F )
B BRREEERERES
BEm o

fieh 38 1 4F 2 30 K AR
BEE - AR EEER
Bl AEETE M) & ERRE(E
ASBR o P (O] Rl (E &
BRI L FER
ABEHA o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(c)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2.12(a) and (b)).

2.13 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually and
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 7.5 years of the brand
name.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZESiTBERE@

POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued) 2.13

(c) Computer software

The computer software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation, and impairment
loss (see note 2.12(b)). Amortisation is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
method over the assets’ estimated useful
lives of 5 years.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHERE@®
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Inventories 215178
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net GFERK AR R FERE R
realisable value. EEVIER -
Cost is calculated using the weighted average RAADIREFE R A ARGTERE
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, EMEBERAN Sl ARET
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in HEEHR TR REBORKME
bringing the inventories to their present location and 2 B o
condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in AR EATEHSEKBRETHN
the ordinary course of business less the estimated e E R G TR AR KA E
costs of completion and the estimated costs SHEFTERAA -

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of EFELER FEGFEMNERRE
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the FERBRAEERBBEANER AR
period in which the related revenue is recognised. ¥ o EMEEMRE ] ERFED
The amount of any write-down of inventories to SRR METEEER MR ER
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are EEHRENERAEAY - #AFE
recognised as an expense in the period the write- R B £ ] 185 [2] 5 B8 pA 13 (2] 3% A= B
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal FMRRERRAERINTFESENRN
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a HUR ©

reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Film rights and films in progress

(a)

(b)

(c)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Cost includes
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. The balance of film production costs
not yet due at the end of each reporting period
are disclosed as commitments. Cost of films
is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication
that assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.17 EX MR &
BYEBI S A ERERE YR
T2 RAEERE AL
BUERT BAREMZ TS - 12

2.17 Film related deposits

Film related deposits comprise deposits paid for
the acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artists and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under EinamAEBASTRERETLR
agreements for the acquisition and production of VEZ BT 8RR B A ER A B 25 o
film rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision BB 2 BBEIRERAEEE
for film related deposits is made based on future EZRRBRAREZ @I 2E

revenue generated for the Group and the carrying HE{EMmMEL -
value of film related deposits.
2.18 Contract assets and contract liabilities 218 5 HEERGHAEE

BREEEASERREGRITER
BRFEHER T B E AT HER
Wz (RFTEE2.28) B HER - & HE
BRI 2120 P BERE T RS
EEERNE - YERDRRENE
B A B AR 1 B EE 8T 0 FR = R R
R(RKEE2.19) -

A contract asset is recognised when the group
recognises revenue (see note 2.28) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.12(a) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see note 2.19).

BHABEARERERER RS
AEPXNRERER(RME

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2.28). A contract 2.28) - MRS BB EIFHFENT
liability would also be recognised if the Group has 7N E% [ B SR AE R i s T HSCER A AT K
an unconditional right to receive non-refundable BERE - AEHBETIERR -
consideration before the Group recognises the ERBEBRAT  HERRFETE

related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.19).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 2.28).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEEESTHEREE®

2.19 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2.18).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.12(a)).

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If the collection of
loans receivable is expected to be one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2.12(a)).

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.12(a).

2.19 FEUR AR R EL A e Wi kTR

2.21

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

JE W TR IR I AN 6% [ 7B AR AR A
MRERER - RZHHZAR
EBRIHLE—BRER - BWERKE
TR REAGM - WAKREERK
FRERI U B AT a5 O B HERR -
AERERE N2 R—HANEE
(RFE2.18) ©

JE U R I DA B R ) RO R S K
TREESBEREEBEEY (R
2.12(a)) °

2.20 Loans receivable 2.20 FEUE R

RUEERBNBEEEBREPET
BEPZER - HWEREREFR
—EFHARYE - RMIDERREHE
E - RZRAUZINRIFRBDEE -

U ERNFARNFEER - Hi&
A EBRF XL @R AR S
EEERETE RN E2.120) -

ReMREFEY

REeRBRSEEMRABERITRTA
A RITEHEREEERAE
BRE  UREHRRBMERE
HZERERBAGT=ERARNZHE
B Bk S HARK B AN BURE 2 3R 2 1 3
WREBREERR - RERREE
BYRET2.12(a) 85 2 BURFY
HRHMERES -



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

2.23 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.24 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

e M BB RME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax 2.25 P15 %4

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax loses and unused
tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 FT 15374 (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESBEEREEw@

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 FT 15374 (&)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2.9, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the end of the reporting period unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SETBEREE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Income Tax (Continued) 2.25 FT{5 54 i50)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BN AAMBIRERIBESR K E

movements therein, are presented separately from ggenplynm AERKE - K

each other and are not offset. Current tax assets NAIAEEREBEA LN E

are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred BRI EREMBIEAE TN

tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the HRFEUTHBRARERNBIRT

Company or the Group has the legally enforceable FTHENMBEERENMIER

right to set off current tax assets against current tax & - ARRER A& 2 RIRET A

liabilities and the following additional conditions are BEEHEE -

met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - HEHBRNBEEEREEM
the Company or the Group intends either to T AR ASBEFEIZ
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset FRHEAELE  FAREE
and settle the liability simultaneously; or EYRNEZEE X

- in the case of deferred tax assets and - BREERBEEELEBEM
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied 5 FERR—BBEER
by the same taxation authority on either: HIA T EBEBURFT SR ATE

&

e the same taxable entity; or . E—ERTERS : 3k

e different taxable entities, which, in . TRIERHERE @ Mz
each future period in which significant EERTEERKREHE
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or R EERELETHIES
assets are expected to be settled or BREEENBFENE
recovered, intend to realise the current JEFR TE & EE AT LAUS B 89
tax assets and settle the current tax ARG - DUSRREE mfﬁ
liabilities on a net basis or realise and EHNIREEREESR
settle simultaneously. BT IE B B & R

SRREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

2 EEETTHEHEEZE®

2.26 &
(i)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 2.27(ii).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with
note 2.27(ii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

2
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(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

2.28 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue ad other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
at a point in time when the customers take
possession of and accept the products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised at a point in time
upon the delivery of the pre-recorded audio
visual products and the materials for video
features including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contracts.

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised at a point
in time when the film is shown and the right
to receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note
2.12(a)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Revenue and other income (Continued)

(f)

(g)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Financial printing and translation services

Revenue from provision of financial printing
and translation services is recognised overtime
by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation, which is determined based on
the Group's inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation.

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEESTTHEREZE@®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and 229 FHERE 2 IEMBBEE N
discontinued operations (Continued) BRI REEE @
(i)  Non-current assets held for sale (Continued) () FEHEZFRBEE
(&)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan EREEBM ORI REKE—
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all LGN k-
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are g - THAKERGEBR
classified as held for sale when the above HERRBZMB AR ZIE
criteria for classification as held for sale TRE R  ZHB A RK AT
are met, regardless of whether the Group EEERBERFE LA
will retain a non-controlling interest in the o ERBIELHE 2 G
subsidiary after the sale. DERFERE o

Immediately before classification as held ERsBEARELNE A -
for sale, the measurement of the non- FEmEEE(RHEARPFT
current assets (and all individual assets and ERNEREERER 2=
liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up- HERBESEAMEAZ
to-date in accordance with the accounting SETBORER - i - Y15
policies before the classification. Then, on DEARBELERREEDN
initial classification as held for sale and until BAl - EREBEECATIR
disposal, the non-current assets (except ETEERIN L E4AR
for certain assets as explained below), or REFRABLEAFERBEE
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower MAFRHBREEER - LA
of their carrying amount and fair value less SEMAARMPBERT
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this T RATEBEREEZEFHN
measurement policy so far as the financial BRABEEREBEEE - AR
statements of the Group and the Company BRAMELEZEE @&
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets ECTBERWBAR - B
arising from employee benefits, financial RAIREERAINIRE)MNZ
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, BEME -  ZEBEEIEFE
associates and joint ventures) and investment HE - e EERBH 2P
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, Frit 2 BURRT= ©

would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification MR ERBFIEEE RERE
as held for sale, and on subsequent RELECENMEMEL
remeasurement while held for sale, are ZBEBEHRNIERER -
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non- —B—BEFRDEERDE
current asset is classified as held for sale, or ARBEREXRBREELDEA

. is included in a disposal group that is classified BELE2HEARF - %

1Y as held for sale, the non-current asset is not HIERBEERBTBIRT
depreciated or amortised. B o
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e M BB RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of comprehensive
income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZHTBERRE@
POLICIES (continued)
2.30 Related parties 2.30 BAE AL
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s (@ MWEBUTAL  BIZALIK
family, is related to the Group if that person: PAT 2B EAEE B
JE
()  has control or joint control over the (i)  FEHlsEREHARE
Group; ;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; (i) HAKBEERTE:
or 54
(i) is a member of the key management (il ALXEEFAEEZTA
personnel of the Group or the Group's AICEEETEEKE -
parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)  WfFE TIHEAEE - Blsx
following conditions applies: FREHAEEGFHE
()  The entity and the Group are members () HEBEASEER-—
of the same group (which means that SEZKERR(ANE
each parent, subsidiary and fellow SRR WBARIKE
subsidiary is related to the others). ESL IV EINGIE A AnR =T
) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint iy —HMEBRS—EE
venture of the other entity (or an MEE R AEE R
associate or joint venture of a member 7 (BZ—ERBRKE
of a group of which the other entity is a NAZEBEETKER
member). R E RRIREER
Gl
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MEEEHYAR—F=
same third party. FHEERA] o
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third (iv), —HERBRE=-SEE
entity and the other entity is an associate VEEQAR  MB—F&
of the third entity. BAZFE=-HFEBRNEG
YN
%
By
R,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

2

=T

e M BB RME

ZHTBERREE@

2.30 FAEA (@

(b) RS TIMER GRS - AR
BEREAEEGHE (B

BAAEENEAE
JEEENES
SRR O BE B AR A AT

<

< (a) Frage I A 42
/\l—JT %U

(vi)

(FTEBIATHE

ﬁi?ﬁ Z - WIEY-F
aﬁl(‘kuxéiﬁfél’]!
AEEEBREKSE -

(vii)

ERNEETAKER
B EE—HFD) MAE
Bk AEEZ B RARR
HEBEEABRE -

(viii)

i sl

FATZABRRIEEZBEISE
JEERA R B AT ZALE
ZREKE °

Iﬂﬂ*& i

FREXCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, that is, a currency
other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily
Renminbi (“RMB") (2019: RMB).

The following table details the
Group’'s exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

e M BB RME

FEEREERSMIAZ
NE

3.1 B EREZ=®
(a) THIEERE @@
(i)  EMERGE)

(i) FEZZEE
72 (1)

Exposure to foreign
currencies (expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)

P 2 SNE B B
(LB THIR)
2020 2019
—BoRF  —TNF
Renminbi Renminbi
AR¥ AR
‘000 '000
Fr FIT
Cash and cash RERBEEED
equivalents 1,232 381
Accounts receivable JE U AR 3K 56,476 1,905
Financial assets included T A[EMNET& -
in “deposits paid, TENTFRIE R H At
prepayments and FEUGRIE] 2 &'
other receivables” BE 5,202 27,110
Accounts payable FET AR X (11) -
Other payables and H bt sRIE R
accrued charges RS2 (37,300) (28,228)
25,599 1,168

BRRA(CEEERAT —E-TEER ‘ 143
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HiEREERSRTIAEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A E@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBREERZE®
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE (@)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EHEFEGE)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
The following table indicates TEREI N HE
the instantaneous change in HIRAS B EEG
the Group's loss after tax (and B KA BB E
accumulated losses) that would fEEMNZ A LR
arise if foreign exchange rates to FE)(BREMBEE
which the Group has significant 2 B 2 R 5
exposure at the end of the TE) ¥R E BBk
reporting period had changed at TR (kR
that date, assuming all other risk [E518) B A A BB
variables remained constant. 2
2020 2019
“BIER “E-hEF
(Increase)/ (Increase)/
decrease decrease
in loss in loss
after tax and after tax and
Increase/ (increase)/ Increase/ (increase)/
(decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
in foreign in accumulated inforeign  in accumulated
exchange rates losses  exchange rates losses
BRB&ER BREi%ER
() wWD (gm,/ mo
SHEER REGER HINE B & REEAR
7/ (TE) (gm) /WD /(TR (gm,/ B
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET
RMB AR 5% 1,280 5% 58
(5%) (1,280) (5%) (58)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ loss/profit after
tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2019.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate loans
receivable (see note 21) from money
lending business. The management
considered that the risk is insignificant
as the amounts are carried at amortised
cost and not remeasured in the financial
statements in response to changes in
interest rates. Therefore, no sensitivity
analysis for the years ended 30th June
2020 and 2019 was disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DNF{E@

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigREBe A=
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THiZERE (@)

(i) Equity price risk (i) ARAEJE Bz

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from changes in the prices
of listed securities, unlisted investment
funds and unlisted limited partnership.
The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

The Group's trading securities are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of

AEBEBERELDE
- FLTREEER
FLEMBEREBEERM
EENREZDER -
ERGRERESTCR
155 P T e O (B R B

}Hfo

AEBZRHEFTIN
BEMERHMBRA
AL - BEAKEHR
HREHFRETIERE
ERIEHFBRIEEEH# K
FEMERZMBRA

the Hang Seng Index and Index of the AIGEMIE 8t & H At 1T
Growth Enterprise Market on the Stock XEREZRRNERE

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
other industry indicators, as well as the
Group's liquidity needs.

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified as
other financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, the board
of directors manages the exposure
to equity price risk by maintaining a

Al ARAEEZ RS
BeHmBEMEL -

IO RBIEERBERA
FEARNEMSRE
EZHLEMREESR
FEMARAGBEEM
FOEEREBKER
TRRER M EHRNERE

portfolio of investments funds with ESHEEBTERER
different risk and return profiles. Bz o

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020



3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) ~ Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2020, it is estimated
that an increase/decrease of 10%
(2019: 10%) in the fair value of the
Group's trading securities with all other
variables held constant would have
decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$276,000
(2019: decreased/increased the Group's
loss after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$726,000).

At 30th June 2020, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 10% (2019:
10%) in the fair value of unlisted
investment funds and unlisted limited
partnership classified as other financial
assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased in the Group’s loss after tax
(and decreased/increased accumulated
losses) by HK$167,000 (2019:
decreased/increased the Group's loss
after tax (and decreased/increased
accumulated losses) by HK$720,000).
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.7

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
default. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit rating assigned by
rating agency, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products and watches products,
and provisions of financial printing services,
in order to minimize the credit risk, the
management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an on-going basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position
and condition are performed on each and
every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Receivables
due from customers are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is
usually within 0-90 days from the trade date.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from its customers.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising
from video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights business, in order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an on-going basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position
and condition are performed on each and
every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Sales of
videogram products are with credit terms of
7-60 days from the trade date. Sales from film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights are on open account terms. Sales to
retail customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

In respect of businesses mentioned above, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor and customer. The default risk of the
industry in which debtors or customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. The Group had no concentration
of credit risk in respect of accounts receivable
from these businesses with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable from these businesses
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For
accounts receivable arising from trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of
financial printing services, these receivables
are normally settled within 6 months. The
Group has assessed that the expected
credit loss for these receivables as at 30th
June 2020 and 30th June 2019 based on
historical settlement records and looking-
forward information (including the economic
environment) and impairment loss allowance
was recognised on these accounts receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable arising from businesses
other than securities brokerage and margin
financing businesses as at 30th June 2020.

At 30th June 2020

3 BEEREENEMIAEZ
NE

3.

B S [ Bes R == )

(b) 1=
x

&=k )
H#FELRFIRAE

R LUINERE 2 FEW IR
(#8)
THREHER-_Z-_ZTF XA
—+THREBAEEKRBEES
BERFTFRBEES 22
EEEWERZ Z EER KK
OZ&# -

\
N
Vi

—E-FFNA=1H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BREEE BEEE BEEE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TR
Trading, wholesaling and REEM  BEKR
retailing of optical HEERES
products, watches and HERBELK
jewellery
Current (not past due) A (R = 556 = 556
31-90 days past due BN E0A - 147 = 147
91-365 days past due #8912365H = 9% = 9%
798 - 798
Provision of financial printing  $2{tt &1 & ED I AR 3%
services
Current (not past due) N (R ) 4.10-100.00 5,061 (221) 4,840
1-30 days past due B#1230H 4.40-100.00 265 (81) 184
31-90 days past due BH1Z0H 4.40~100.00 346 (76) 270
91-365 days past due HBH912365A 4.60-100.00 608 557) 51
Over 365 days past due #E365A L £ 100.00 21 (21) -
6,301 (956) 5,345

RTFREXCEBARRR —

FER

A
A
ficig



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigREBe A=
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Accounts receivable from businesses other KEZBFLELER FIRAE
than securities brokerage and margin financing EHUIEHZERRL
businesses (Continued) (#8)
At 30th June 2020 (Continued) R-ZE-ZFEFNH=1+H
(%)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
AHEEE BREE gt REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET FTEL
Video distribution, film RERT EFRAOR

distribution and exhibition, ~ HH - RERERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ FIREEK

of film rights

Current (not past due) BlkileSat) 0.10-150 1519 2) 1517
1-30 days past due BEE0A 1.50 64 (1) 63
31-90 days past due AH3IE0A 0.15-1.50 8,715 (2) 8,713
91-365 days past due #1H1912365H 0.15-1.50 54,115 (82) 54,033
Over 365 days past due #3658 M £ 0.25-1.50 14 = 141
64,554 (87) 64,467

Entertainment business et
Current (not past due) MHGaH) 26.88 14 4) 10
1-30 days past due BE12308 26.88 12 4) 8
31-90 days past due BH1Z0H 0.15-26.88 1,498 (6) 1,492
91-365 days past due HH912365H 26.88 11 (4) 7
Over 365 days past due #E365A L £ 0.25-26.88 967 (5) 962
2,502 (23) 2,479
Total it 74,155 (1,066) 73,089
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk for
accounts receivable arising from businesses
other than securities brokerage and margin
financing businesses as at 30th June 2019.

3 BEEREENEMIAEZ
NE

3.1

B S [ Bes R 2= )
(b) EERKE@E

KEEFELRFRHBE
RIELUS 5 2 FEW AR

(&

TREHERZ-_Z-NEFXA
=tREBAKEXER S
REMTERBERG 2N
ESCY LG A Y3
AZE&R -

At 30th June 2019 R-ZE-NFNA=1H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BEEEE BEAE BERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Trading, wholesaling and REER EERAE
retailing of optical EmES  HER
products, watches and TEEY
jewellery
Current (not past due) BlkileSat) = 1,502 = 1,502
31-90 days past due BHIZ0H = 362 = 362
91-365 days past due #H912365H 9.00 167 (15) 152
Over 365 days past due #3658 M £ 100.00 5,157 (5,157) =
7,188 (5,172) 2,016
Provision of financial printing  $2{tt &1 & ED I AR 3%
services
Current (not past due) N (R ) = 2,739 S 2,739
1-30 days past due BHNZ30H S 67 S 67
31-90 days past due BH1E90H = 61 = 61
2,867 - 2,867
BEFREVEBERAR —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing
businesses (Continued)

At 30th June 2019 (Continued)

Video distribution, film RERT EYRAR
distribution and exhibition, K - RERERE
licensing and sub-licensing ~ F/MEEH

3 BXEREERSMIAZ
NE

3.1 B EREZ=®
(b) EERKE@E

KEEFELRFRABE
RIELUSP 5 2 FEW AR

(%)
R F—NEAA=FA

()

Gross

Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BHEER AREE EERE REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TEL TEL

of film rights
Current (not past due) S (R ) = 3327 S 3,327
1-30 days past due BH1Z30A = 47 = a7
31-90 days past due BH1Z90H = 128 = 128
91-365 days past due BH4912365A = 17 = 17
Over 365 days past due BH65H M = 1,180 = 1,180
5,124 - 5,124
Entertainment business e
Current (not past due) A (R - 92 = 92
1-30 days past due BE30A = 33 S 33
31-90 days past due BHIZ90H = 14 S 14
91-365 days past due #H912365H = 499 = 499
Over 365 days past due #H365A ML L - 496 = 496
1134 - 1,134
Total Hit 16,313 (5,172) 11,141
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

Accounts receivable from businesses other
than securities brokerage and margin financing

businesses (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
in respect of accounts receivable from businesses

FEEREERSMIAZ
NE

B S [ Bes R == )

(b)

(B
KEEFELRFRABE
RIELUSP 5 2 FEW AR
(&
KEEFEGLRITRBE
B AIPZFE 2 JEH IR

other than securities brokerage and margin L RER B
financing business
2020 2019
“E-FF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Balance at 30th June 2018 RZE-N\FXA=+H
under HKAS 39 BEEFERE39RIE
T HE = 5,515
Impact on initial application R ERE BN BRE
of HKFRS 9 ERFEIF o E = 788
Balance at 1st July RNtA—RZ&EH 5,172 6,303
Amounts written off EiEE R (5,172) (351)
Current year change in BHREEEBATES
expected credit loss 1,066 (780)
Balance at 30th June RANB=1+RHz4&% 1,066 5,172

The following significant change in the gross
carrying amounts of the above accounts
receivable contributed to the decrease in loss
allowance during the year ended 30th June

2020:

- a write-off of accounts receivable with a
gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$5,172,000 (2019: HK$351,000)
resulted in a decrease in loss allowance
of approximately HK$5,172,000 (2019:

HK$351,000).

EERAT( EEERAT —E-TEER ‘185 =

A ERBERBEREZ T
MEREPHHEHRE T
TERNA=ZTHALFEZES
BEERD

- WMEBE®@ELD
5,172,000 0 (=& —
N4 : 351,000 70) 2
FEUBR B S IE R
S #)5,172,000 7T
(ZZ— N4 : 351,000
EIT) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from securities brokerage
and margin financing businesses

In order to manage the credit risk in the
accounts receivable due from clients arising
from securities brokerage and margin
financing business, individual credit evaluation
are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Accounts receivable
from cash clients related to a wide range of
customers who generally settle the accounts
receivable within two days after trade date
and are secured by the portfolio of securities
of the cash clients. Credit risk arising from
the accounts receivable due from cash
clients is therefore considered minimal. For
margin clients, the Group normally obtains
liquid securities as collateral based on the
customers’ margin requirements. The margin
requirement is closely monitored on a daily
basis by the designated team. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the credit risk
is significantly reduced. Market conditions
and adequacy of securities collateral and
margin deposits of each margin account are
monitored by management on a daily basis.
Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

3

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE

3.1

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

B S [ e R 2= )

(b)

(B

KEEFELRFRABE
R 2 ERIRL

RERRKESRL IR
MEXBEPEAZEER
B MAERFP(BREAZR
FREP)BHARZMENE
BRffh - BRUAREEF 2K
REZZ—RNRHEEM
AAXNERKERNEFE
B WARBSFASER
BRIREEFPERELZ
EERBEN RFREP
mE - AEE-RERER
FPzRrEZBEREBRSE
SEREARD  FEEKE
FHRESBSETEIE
e AN AEEERER
& HIR R T & TR (8 Bl FE R
BHZAWEEE - LERR
AT B FR 1E TR YR
BEER - -BULmME - ARa
EXRREERREXRET
fF-EEEEBRERMR
AREFREP ZEHER
mEkARRESZEBRHM -
MERE  SEARESR
SBITER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

EREEREMIAZ

NEE@®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EREZ=®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Accounts receivable from securities brokerage KEFEHLLR ﬁyﬁ =
and margin financing businesses (Continued) B E l/!ZHEf
The credit quality and the maximum exposure ERAREPERZEEH
to credit risk of accounts receivable from ?&?ﬁﬁﬁ SO EZ

margin clients is mainly based on LTV unless
other information is available without undue
cost or effort.

In respect of accounts receivable from

NEREERREELER
HE RIFBFBEZHAK
ZAHRARSEMBER -

EJEﬁHﬁZ%%E@EM =D

brokers, credit risks are considered to be low AEE-—MREERE ﬁ*ﬁé%
as the Group normally enters into transactions EIH%I[E(‘%W%EE%%@
with brokers which are registered with ZREETRS  BWEER
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation g -

in the industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has no significant concentration risk. (2019:
72% and 99% of the total amounts receivable
due from clients arising from securities
brokerage and margin financing business was
due from the largest counterparty and the five
largest counterparties respectively.)

=)

=T

RBEHRR  AEETES
REFRR - (ZF—NF -
AEACLRFTRME X
BELERKEFRREEDN
72% X 99% 7 B2k B f& K ¥
FHARAREFH °)

RE(EEBARDT —ZE_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from securities brokerage
and margin financing businesses (Continued)

An analysis of changes in ECLs for accounts
receivable from margin clients is as follows:

3 UBEREEREMIAZ

NEE@®

3.1 B EREZ=®

(b) EEREER @)

KEEFELRFRABE
R 2 FE W AR ()

KEFREPZEKERZ
EHEEEREZH TN

T

For the year ended 30th June 2020
HE-Z-EEXRACTALEE

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(E-§) (E=fR) (E=4) BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL Tin Tin TiEn
Balance at 30th June 2019  R-E-AEXA=THE
and 1st July 2019 ZE-AEtA-HZ
3 - - 1,500 1,500
Accounts receivables repaid ~ FRE 2 EUEF
during the year - - (1,500) (1,500)
Balance as at 30th June 2020 H-ZT-T%
NAZTRZER - - - -
Avising from EER
~Margin clients -HREP - - - -
ECLs rate BHEERER
~Margin clients -HREP N/A T EF N/A TER N/A M E A N/A T EF

Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable from securities brokerage
and margin financing businesses (Continued)

An analysis of changes in ECLs for accounts

3 BEEREERESMIAC
NE

3.1 B REREZ=®

(b)

= B R B ()

KEFBFELRFRAE
FH 2 EWAR (@)
KEFREFZEBERERZ

receivable from margin clients is as follows: EHEEBEZY ST
T
For the year ended 30th June 2019
BZ-B-NEAAZHHLEE
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
(E-§) (E=fR) (E=8) ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FiEx T
Balance at 30th June 2018  EBEFEAIE39ET
under HKAS 39 RZE-NE
ARBETRZER - - 18,000 18,000
Impact on initial adoption of ~ HIFEAEBHBRE
HKFRS 9 ERZEOR 2 - - - -
Balance at 1st July 2018 RZE-N\¥
tA-AzEH - = 18,000 18,000
Accounts receivables repaid  FRER 2 BUER
during the year - - (3,500) (3,500)
Write-offs iz - - (13,000) (13,000)
Balance as at 30th June 2019 M=Z—N4F
~AZ TR &R - = 1,500 1500
Arising from EXB
- Margin clients -FREP - - 1,500 1,500
ECLs rate EHEEEFER
- Margin clients -HREF NATER NA TR 100% 100%

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH

8

i

¥

‘ 189 4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BrigREBe A=
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Loans receivable EWREZ

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

In respect of loans receivable (including loan
to an associate) from customers and third
parties, the objective of the Group’s measures
to manage credit risk is to control the potential
exposure to recoverability problem. The Group
manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its new and existing customers before
payment terms and conditions are concluded
by assessing the credit qualities of the
customers and the third parties, taking into
account its financial position, past settlement
experience, collateral held and other factors.
Loans receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis, management reviews the
loans receivable at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment allowance is
made. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Interest income are usually billed on
a quarterly basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as for 100%
(2019: 100%) of the loans receivable are due
from the Group's six (2019: nine) debtors.

HEREPRE=TTZER
(BERT-—RBERRZE
RME - AREEEREER
2 E ¥ e B AR R 5 AT BE
ey AT e R e RET
RE SRR R AR AT - N4k
BEBFREPRFE=ZTZ
EEEXREEEMBMNR -
BEXMNER  HEZER
m M EMEAF)EEEDTH
EHEFPRBREEFZEE
Rk o UE RAERRIE
RERERE  EEERNE
HE BB RKERZ AT
O£ RRAETERN - BEED
A E & BB AF ST R RLE S
Beoptms  BEEERR
AEBEZEERBCBER
Ko MBRA—RRFEL

H o
7t

REBHER  AAEE
100% (ZFE—1%F : 100%)
FERERHREAEE N
ZEBACZE—REFE 1L
&) AEEAEREERRE
I:Flo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HiEREERESRTIAEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B ERREZE®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE@E
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the gross amount VHQE R(BEIER T — &
of loans receivable (including loan to an NElZ B BENEES DN
associate) is as follows: (N
For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE-E-EERA=-TALEE
Purchased
Lifetime Lifetime or
expected expected originated
12-month credit loss credit loss credit-
expected - not credit - credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired (“POCI") Total
BAS
P
HE
20%E 2HRS ((BAS
12EREE FEFE-  GEFR- FiRE
EEBER  FEENE EEHE B a5
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(#E-§) (#E=R) (=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR i ThL Tian
Balance at 30th June 2019 RZE-NEARZTHZ
g 5910 30,998 33444 1,760 .11
New loans originated RETER 6,225 = = 690 6,915
Loans repaid during the year EREERER
(other than write-offs) (sgkon) (4,660) (7.199) (31,392) - (43251)
Transfer to lifetime Er e
expected credit loss EEFE
- creditimpaired -EERE
(Stage 3) (#=R - (23,799) 23799 e S
Total transfer between stages ~ RERZFMBRAE - (23,799) 23799 - -
Write-offs i - - (23,799 - (23,799
Balance at 30th June 2020 R-BE-EEXRZTHZ
& 7475 = 2,052 2450 11977
Representing: f%&:
Loans receivable EUWER 7475 . S S 7475
Loan to an associate RT-fBENAZER = = 2,052 2450 4502
7475 - 2062 260 1977 A
vk
EEMA( R EERAT —E-TEEH ‘ 191 M€
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIRE bR EZE
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE 5 (48)

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BE-E-AERA=TALEE

Purchased

Lifetime Lifetime or

expected expected  originated

12-month  creditloss  credit loss credit-

expected - not credit - credit impaired
credit loss impaired impaired ("POCI") Total

BAR

REGE

BE

RHES 20ES - 7%
12EA%EN GEEE- GEFE- RERE
BEFR HEERE  FEHE R 3
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(E-8) (E=8) (E=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT i T T BT
Balance at 1st July 2018 R=E-NFtA-H2

g 60,545 = 4,340 - 64,885
New loans originated R HER 41,000 S S 1,760 42,760
Loans repaid during the year ~~ FACEEEH
(other than write-offs) (#8BR5M) (17,400 - (896) - 18,296)
Transfer to lifetime L B
expected credit loss FEBE
- not credit impaired - ¥EERE
(Stage 2) (E=f) 30,998) 30,998 = = =
Transfer to lifetime ERZ20RY
expected credit loss FEBR
- credit impaired -f5ERfE
(Stage 3) (E=H) (47,200) = 47,200 = =
Total transfer between stages S EH 2 HHERAR (78,198) 30,998 47,200 = =
Write-offs i - - (17,200) - (17,2001
Exchange difference EiZH (37) - - - (37)
Balance at 30th June 2019  R-ZE-AERA=TAHZ
5 5910 30,998 33,444 1,760 72,112
Representing: R%:
Loan receivable ERE 5,910 30,998 30,000 - 66,908
Loan to an associate BY-BBLNR 7 ES S = 3,444 1,760 5,204
5910 30,99 33444 1,760 2112

% g 1 92 Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HiEREERESRTIAEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NE
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IR EEEZE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREME @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEW B 5 (48)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding HEBHEEBERENE
ECL allowances is as follows: Elleakng (NN
For the year ended 30th June 2020
B2-E-ZERA-HHLEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
BAY
BEEE
E-% ] F=4 HE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TEn TEn TAR
Balance at R-E-N§
30th June 2019 AAZTHZER 163 5,115 788 128 6,194
New loans originated REZHER 171 = = 16 187
Loans repaid during the year ~ FACEEEH
(other than write-offs) (Missbaon) (112) 1,188) (32) - 1,332
Transfer to lifetime EAR R
expected credit loss EEFE
- credit impaired -RERE
(Stage 3) (E=R) - (3,927) 3927 = =
Total transfer between stages  £ER zFkEHESE = (3,927) 3,927 S =
Net remeasurement of FRE G HERFE
expected credit loss arising £ 2 BEEEEEL
from the transfer between ~ BHEFE
stages during the year - - 19,873 - 19,873
Movement due tochangein ~ EERREHEH
credit risk L 37 = 1,295 2,306 3,638
Write-offs b - - 23,799) - 23,799)
Balance at 30th June 2020 R-ZF-FEXA=TH
a3 ] 259 = 2,052 2,450 4761
Arising from: EER:
Loans receivable RUER 259 S S S 259
Loan to an associate RY-MBenazER = S 2,052 2,450 4,502
259 - 2,062 2,450 4,761

RTFREXCEBEARAF

TECTEFY

—_—
©
w
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b
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e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREHMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIRE bR EZE
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER @
Loans receivable (Continued) FEWE 5 (48)

For the year ended 30th June 2019
BECE-NERASTALEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

BAg

REGE
£-R b E=8 HE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAR TAr TAr TAR

Balance at 30th June 2018  R=E-NE;xB=1H

itk - - - - -
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 SF#VE BB =28
SR TE 3,763 - 101 - 3,864
Balance at 1st July 2018 RZE-\E+tA-H
kit 3,763 = 101 - 3,864
New loans originated REZHER 57 = = 13 70
Loans repaid during the year ~ FNEEEEF
(other than write-offs) (Hism o) (604) - (20) - (624)
Transfer to lifetime BRE2HEY
expected credit loss EEFE
- not credit impaired -FRERE
(Stage 2) (E=f) (2,432) 2432 - - -
Transfer to lifetime ERZ2 RS
expected credit loss BEBR
- credit impaired -f5ERfE
(Stage 3) #E=R) (633) - 633 = =
Total transfer between stages S E# 2 HAEREE (3,085) 2432 633 S =

Net remeasurement of FRER HERE
expected creditloss arising £ BEEEHIEL
from the transfer between EFIEFE

stages during the year - 2,683 16,567 - 19,250
Movement due tochangein ~ EERREHEH
oredit risk LR 12 = 707 115 834
Write-offs i - - (17,200 - (17,200
Balance at 30th June 2019  R=E-AEAXB=1H
i o33 163 5115 783 128 6,194
Arising from: Ekg:
Loans receivable EWER 163 5115 = 5278
Loan to an associate BRT-BBEQFZER = S 768 128 916
i\ 163 5115 788 128 6,194
g

7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

For other receivables, includes other
receivables and amounts due from joint
operation partners, credit checks are part of
the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amounts of other
receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has certain concentrations of credit
risk of 32% (2019: 28%) of the total other
receivables was due from the Group's largest
debtor and 58% (2019: 78%) of the total
other receivables due from the Group's five
largest debtors of the total other receivables
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables using lifetime ECLs for each
debtor individually with significant balances.
As at 30th June 2020, based on historical
settlement record and risk of default for
each debtor and forward-looking information
(including the economic environment), write-
back of loss allowance of HK$257,000
was recognized during the year 30th June
2020 (2019: charge for loss allowance of
HK$8,073,000).

e M BB RME

FEEREERSMIAZ
NE

3.1 B EREZ=®
(b) EERKE@E
By IE

FhE AR FE UK IR (B R E A R
WA R WS EXBBH
RBE)ME  EERER/L
FREREFZ D - A
BREREFREEBHREK
oo MH REBERE®RE
IRt E E A B YRR 2 7]
Yool FREE - DA BE AR B SRR
B SREE A B SR E B 1R o

RBERR NEBESS
FEES+TRR  HPHEAM
JEW R IBATEMNI2% (= F —
NEF 1 28%) BEWRAEE &K
RNEBHARFKIE - mHMmE
WK IE B FERE8% (ZE— A,
F :78%) AN B B AL E
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to the parent company's board
approval. The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 BiifEMREEREMIEZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IR EEEZE®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBEZRMRE
As at 30th June 2020 R-ZE-ZBFXA=1+H
More than More than Total
1 year but 2yearshut  contractual
Within 1 year less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
- —ENE MENLE  ANANE
FREX WEUR BENRN  BERESE HEf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Ti#n TR TR TR
Accounts payable ERER 19,301 = = 19,301 19,301
Financial liabiities included in -~ ST A[E {58
“other payables and RE L]
accrued charges” and RIEMET2]
“deposits received” LEREE 160,950 = = 160,950 160,950
Contingent consideration ERRARE
payable 20,400 - - 20,400 20,400
Lease liabilties (Note 28) HEEE(MH2) 10,057 4,940 891 15,388 15,475
210,708 4,940 891 216,539 216,126
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 MizE : AEESVIPIREER]

using the modified retrospective approach
and adjusted the opening balances at 1st
July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Lease liabilities include amounts
recognised at the date of transition to
HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS
17 and amounts relating to new leases
entered into during the year. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.1(i).

EFRELEBER DA

BAEAT MR
HEBIF165E - WAR
R_ZE—AF+A—H
ZERIEE S - LARER
BHECHERRE &%
EHELNERBSET
ERIFE17HTESER
KEiE - HEAER
ERARNERASTE
BN 75 T ED ALK
EHECZHERBESR
BB BEHREERE 16
SEBHRAZECELE
BENAILFHAEZ
SR BB EE
BERTTEY - &0
F2.10) °
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e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AEE@®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BFFRkE A& @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBEEREE @
As at 30th June 2019 RZZE-NFRA=TH
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within 1 year less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

—%M s MENE  RDARR
IERL RENRA RFUA RERELRE REf
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR TR TR TAT ThR

Accounts payable ENEZ 10821 S S 10821 10,821
Financial iabiities includedin st ATEfERFUE

“other payables and RE L]

accrued charges” and RIEK:T2]

"deposits received"” JERAR 105,313 = = 105,313 105,313
Obligations under finance lease ~ BYEMREAZ 7 = = 7 7
Amount due to an associate [Eff—HEEna5E 272 = = 272 272
Contingent consideration ERFARE

payable 20,400 - - 20,400 20,400

139,266 - - 139,266 139,266

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E @
(Continued)
3.2 Capital management 32 BRNER

The Group's objectives when managing capital AEENEAEEEEREAEE
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue FEZEMNRE N A AR FIREE R
as a going concern in order to provide returns for MeHMERSE ARGz - I
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders B RENE RSB REE K

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to Ao fbAN  BHERHEERERE
reduce the cost of capital. In addition, a subsidiary Bg((FESDRFTNAEENNE

of the Group licensed by the Securities and Futures RABE—HETEFMBE (BK
Commission (“SFC"”) is obliged to meet the BER)ARAUTHRERMBARDET
regulatory liquid capital requirements under the HEEERBMERENK -
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules

("FRR") at all times.

RERIRHBEELRERE  AREH
SREXNTERROBEZE [
BRFEEEAR  BITHRMOIHE

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets. For the subsidiary BE - HMBEGRETOMMBARM
licensed by the SFC, the Group ensures this licensed = AEEBRZEFENBARIR
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate BESEEREE  RUASTRERK

S

& AREXEBA B BRI
BYERBESR 2FR LA ITAERE
feam-BE_T-N\F A=+

to support the level of activities with sufficient
buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the
level of business activities. During the year ended AIEFE  BFWBARE &I
30th June 2018, the licensed subsidiary ceased its HER - WEFHMBEARTEEE
business. This licensed subsidiary complied with the ZEZEERZTE-NFANA=T
liquid capital requirements under FRR at all times A It FE AR RS BRI REIR
during the years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019. BRAMRENEEAREK -

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued) 32 BEREIE @

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet,
plus net debt, where applicable.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group recognises right-of-use assets
and corresponding lease liabilities for almost all
leases previously accounted for as operating leases
from 1st July 2019. This caused a significant
increase in the Group's total debt when comparing
to its position as at 30th June 2019.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The Group's adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the
end of the current and previous reporting periods
and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 was as

R

B BHRRHEE

3 BEEREENEMIAEZ
NE

32 BERE®E @
A H R R RS HR - B
RBEEEBYEREENE 6
B 2 HRFER A AL &N

follows: ™~
30th June 1st July 30th June
Note 2020 2019 2019
—EC-BF —_FT-NEF ZET-hHF
Mz NA=+H +A—RH X~A=+H
(Note) (Note)
(B3) (F33)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FET
Current liabilities: mENEE
Lease liabilities HERE 28 9,863 9,414 7
9,863 9,414 7
Non-current liabilities: ERBELE
Lease liabilities HERE 28 5,612 9,985 -
Total debt BIET 15,475 19,399 7
Less: Cash and cash B BRekBEeE
equivalent £ 24 (106,949) (178,228) (178,228)
Adjusted net debt BARTER (91,474) (158,829 (178,221)
Total equity 1R T 354,892 380,934 380,934
Adjusted capital BABREAR 354,892 380,934 380,934
Adjusted net debt-to- RARFERER N/A N/A N/A
capital ratio [z TEA TEA N iE A
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Bz : A"EECDEREBITBWEE XE

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

Under this approach, the comparative information as
at 30th June 2019 is not restated. See note 2.1(i).

REBIBHRELERE 165 - I
AE-_ZE-NELA—BZHY
HEHRURRCHRIEE S ST
BB BAKEREZHE
BHzHERE-

FEUFET RZE-NFRA
=THRZEREHITTEN - R
MEE2.100) ©
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. Valuation reports with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
are prepared by the team at each annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved
by the directors of the Company. Discussion
of the valuation process and results with the
directors and the audit committee is held once
a year, to coincide with the reporting date.

3

FEEREERSRMIAZ
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33 AYEF=E

(i)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AVEIE®

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) BEERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZAR (E)

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2020 categorised into
RZB-ZENA=TRZAVEFESEA

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2019 categorised into
RIT-NERAZTHZATENENEA

Fair value at Fair value at
30th June 30th June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2019
b S22 “E-0F
~A=TA ~A=TH
£-8 EZH F=R  2AYE F-8 £ £z  Z0VE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH7R THT TR TH7R TFiEn TR TR TEn
Recurring fairvalue ~ E¥#ATE
measurements iR
Assets: EE:
Other financial assets ~ EMAREE
- Unlisted -FrmRE
investment b5
funds (Note & iz = S 0 E7/) = e 317 317
-Derivative financial - $T4 4R
instruments I
Note a) (Hiita) - = 8,336 8336 = = 2,058 2,058
- Unlisted limited -FETAR
partnership AEbE
Note a) (Hita) = S 1,350 1,350 = = 7199 7199
Trading securities R9EH
(Note d) (Hizkd) - - 3,300 3,300 - - 8,691 8,691
Contingent RYSARE
consideration (Kizkb)
receivable (Note b) - - - - - - - -
- - BB 1330 - - M 182
Liabilities: BfF:
Contingent ERSARE
consideration (Rzkc)
payable (Note c) - - (20,400) (20,400) - - (20,400) (20,400)
- - 40 (2040 - - WA 040
1
A
%
EFRE(EMERAT —T-TEER 203 & -%-
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2020, there
were no transfer between Level 1, Level 2
or transfer into or out of Level 3. (2019: the
Group reclassified two listed equity security,
amounted to HK$1,791,000, from Level 1
to Level 3 due to suspension of trading. The
listed equity security suspended trading as at
30th June 2019 and was still suspended from
trading up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. The transfer
between Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy is deemed to have occurred at the
end of the reporting period. Apart from the
above, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3 during the years ended 30th June 2019.)

Notes:

(a) For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy, the fair
values are determined based on the net
asset values of those investment funds
and limited partnership determined with
reference to third party valuation of underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of
related expenses. When the net asset values
of the unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership increases/decreases by 10%
(2019: 10%), the fair value will increase/
decrease by HK$167,000 (2019: HK$752,000).
The higher the net assets values, the higher
the fair value.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2019, the
Group entered into certain arrangement to
dispose one of the unlisted investment funds
at a fixed consideration in December 2021. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the arrangement constituted a derivative
contract which should be recognised as a
derivative financial instrument (“DFI") (note
16(i)). The DFl is net of deferred day one gain,
which arise from the difference between
its fair value at initial recognition and its
transaction price of HK$Nil. The deferred day
one gain is amortised over the period from
March 2019 to December 2021. The valuation
techniques and key inputs used for the DFI in
Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

Valuation
techniques
HER*
Derivative financial Marking-to-market
instruments approach and

discounted cash

flow approach
PTHESRIEA mEHEZER

BRREREE

e M BB RME

3 BEEREERESMIAC
NE

33 RYEFE®
) BRATFEFEZSH
EERBE®
AS=E2/ AT )
W - (8)

@@ (&)

HE-_ZT—NAF A=
ALLFEE  AEBETVE
FLRYEUR—_E-—F+
ZAREEREBELEES
—TEIE L THIRERSD - &
AEEERE  ZELTH
BR—DITEAN B
FTHERAEBTEEBTA
(M€ T AN (RK
16() e PTHES BT AL
MBRELE B » JhmE
RERIH HEREENAF
BEEERSEERBHESE
ETELMES - BLEH
AR —ZE—hE=A
ET-—F+= AHME
RS - RIREHEIER - M
BEZRATFEAEZTE

TRIAMERZMEER
EREEHABBNOT
Significant
unobservable input Range
ERTUEE
BARE &
HK$
BT

Fair value of equity interest ~ HK$322,000

in unlisted investment (2019: HK$317,000)

fund

RIFELTREESZ 322,000/ 7T

WAEAFE (ZZ—Ah%F : 317,000 7T)

Credit value adjustment 7.06%-11.89%

factor (2019: 4.85%~13.3%)

EEBERAERER 7.06%-11.89% A
(ZZ—NF : 485%-13.3%) -

)
EPRALEBERAT —E-TEFRH 205
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, it was estimated
that a 5% increase or decrease in the fair
value of the unlisted investment fund while
holding all other variables constant would not
significantly affect the value of the DFI. As
a result, no sensitivity analysis for the year
ended 30th June 2020 was disclosed for the
impact of changes in the fair value of the

unlisted investment fund.

As at 30th June 2020, a 5% increase or
decrease in the credit value adjustment
factor while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase the
carrying amount of the DFI by approximately
HK$442,000 (2019: HK$724,000) or
HK$442,000 (2019: HK$715,000),

respectively.

3

EREEREMIAZ

NEE@®

33 RYEFE®
RATESEZSE
EERBE®
AS=E2/ AT )

W - (8)

(i)
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3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A E@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)
Notes: (Continued) izt : (88
(a)  (Continued) @ (&
The following table represents the changes in TRBFAB=ZHLFE
other financial assets included in Level 3 fair HEZHEMESREEZE
value measurements: g :
Unlisted Unlisted
investment limited
funds Derivative financial instruments partnership Total
kLt
E EREE
REES TEERIE i @t
Deferred
day
Gross  one gain Net
B

B ERGE F8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TER TEL TEL TEL TEL

As at 1st July 2018 RZZ-N\&
tA-A 1,049 - - - 64,833 65,882
Addition NE - 15,500 (15,500) - - -
Gainfllosses) included in st ABH ZUiE/
profit or loss (B8) (732) 422 = 422 (19,127) (19,437)
Amortisation of defered ~ EXLEANEZ
day one gain B = = 1,636 1636 S 1,636
Return of capital BARH - - - = (38,507) (38,507)
As at 30th June 2019 RZB-NE
and 1st July 2019 ANAZTHER
—F-NE
+A-H 317 15,922 (13,864) 2,058 7,199 9,574
Gainsflloss) included in it ABRZ U/
profit or loss (E#) 5 733 = 733 (4,319) (3,581)
Amortisation of defered ~ EXLEHANEZ
day one gain B = = 5,545 5,545 = 5,545
Return of capital EXEH = = = = (1,530) (1,530)
As at 30th June 2020 RZBZ%E e |
~A=TH 322 16,655 (8,319) 8,336 1,350 10,008 \
A
EFREULEBERAT —T-TEER 207
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(b)  The valuation techniques and key inputs used
for contingent consideration receivable in

Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

Valuation
techniques

EER%

Discounted cash
flow approach

Contingent consideration
receivable

FEMHARE BHRREREZE

The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the acquisition of AP
Group Investment Holdings Limited (AP
Group”) as detailed in note 22.

3 UBEREEREMIAZ

NEE@®

33 AFEFT=Ew@
(i) BRATEIEZSH

EEREE®

ASSEEZ/IC)

MisE - ()

() M|BEHR UB=FR
FEFAEZEWSHARE
FiERZEETERETE
WA

Significant

unobservable input Range

ERFAEBE

BARE &E
HK$
BT

Expected net loss (2019:

same)

RHFER(CEZ %

81R)
Discount rate
BB K
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

33 RYEFE®
RATESEZSE
EERBE®
AS=E2/ AT )

W - (8)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i)
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, the
contingent consideration receivable is
determined by reference to the financial
statements of AP Group and its subsidiaries
for the years ended 31st December 2016
and 2017, in which the consolidated results
showed a net loss position. As at 30th June
2020 and 2019, it was estimated that a 5%
increase or decrease in the expected net loss
of AP Group while holding all other variables
constant would not significantly affect the
value of contingent consideration receivable.

As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, it was
estimated that a 5% increase or decrease in
the discount rate used while holding all other
variables constant would not significantly
affect the value of contingent consideration
receivable.

(b)

RTFREXCEBEARAF

B

RZZEZZEFRZFT—N
EXA=Z1+H - EREA
REDBREEHEBRRE
WBARBZE-Z—~F
EZF—+F+-A=+
—HBIEFERBHRE(E
FIREEBEERFEEMR
MVEBEE R-_E-_TF
E=ZZFE—NAFXA=1+
A BREFBEMESH
B B5rEREERE
HEEEB LA TH%
BreRErERKEA
REMEE -

RZE-—TFER_T—H
FRA=1+8 " WFAELE
thEEHFTE  FER
2 BRI8 K38 sk e A5 %
HEE T EHEREAR
BzEEEEATE -
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e M BRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

33 A FEEF=E®

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i)

fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance

NEE@®

BAFEFEZEH

BEREE®
R FPEZR @

faE - ()

(I IC-))

ZEE=RRTEHEZ

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are EHRNFEANSEINT ¢
as follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FiET
Contingent consideration WS ARE :
receivable:
At the beginning of the year R &E#] = 3,796
Total loss included in profit FFABRC EERRE
or loss - (3,796)
At the end of the year RER - -
2020 2019
—EB-EH ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET
Total loss included in profitor ~ BRREHRIZTAE 2
loss for assets held at the BEFAB=mZ
end of the reporting period iRk - (3,796)

év | 21 0 \ Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
=
& L



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

The valuation techniques and key inputs used
for contingent consideration payable in Level
3 fair value measurement at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Valuation
techniques

EER%

Discounted cash
flow approach

Contingent consideration
payable

ERHARE BHEREREZE

The fair value of the contingent consideration
payable represented the profit guarantee
in relation to the adjustments to the
consideration from the disposal of AP Group
as detailed in note 31.

3 UBEREERESMIAZ

NEE@®

33 AFEFT=Ew@
(i) BRATEIEZSH

BE
AF
P EE -
(c)
Significant
unobservable input
BERRAEE
WARE

Expected net loss (2019:
same)

REFERCTE-NEF:
)

RTFREXCEBEARAF

kEE @
Z4R (@)

(&

RERERIR - B AR
BEZMAFEFERE
Bz EEREREEHA
IR -

Range

EE

HK$

BT

Expected loss of
HK$1,875,845
(2019: same)

TEHAKG181,875,845/8 T
)

N HAREN QT EE
HBEHETHEBHORE
HBABMEMNRE R
B EE31RE AL o
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e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the contingent
consideration payable is determined by
reference to the financial statements of
AP Group and its subsidiaries for the years
ended 31st December 2016 and 2017, in
which the consolidated results showed a
net loss position. As at 30th June 2020 and
30th June 2019, it was estimated that a 5%
increase or decrease in the expected net loss
of AP Group while holding all other variables
constant would not significantly affect the
value of contingent consideration payable.
The amount would become payable once the
actual results of AP Group is finalised and no
discount factor is applied to the amount. As
a result, no sensitivity analysis for the years
ended 30th June 2020 and 30th June 2019
were disclosed for the impact of changes in
expected net loss and discount rate.

3

B ERE
DN E@

SENEMTAZ

NEEFT=E@®

(i)
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e M BB RME

3 FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENTANDFAIR 3 HKEKREEREMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A E@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFTE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFEZEEH
fair value (Continued) BEEREBE®E
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEZAR (E)
Notes: (Continued) izt : (88
(c)  (Continued) © &
The movement during the year in the balance ZEEF=HATEFEZ
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are HEHENFRASEMT
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FaT FEL
Contingent consideration EARARE :
payable:
At the beginning of the year and RETDRER
at the end of the year (20,400) (20,400)

RFRECEBARRAR =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

FEEREERSRMIAZ
NE

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 AFEFT=Ew@

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) BEERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy represent
investment in a listed equity security
suspended from trading.

The fair value of those equity instruments
is mainly valued based on Guideline Publicly
Traded Company (the “"GPTC") method
whereas the key inputs to the valuation
models include the market multiples, share
prices of similar companies that are traded
in a public market and discount for lack
of marketability. The discount for lack of
marketability used are unobservable input.
As at 30th June 2020, if any of the significant
unobservable input above was 5% higher/
lower while all the other variables were held
constant, the changes in fair value of the
listed equity security would not be significant

faE - ()

(d)

DENRAFEAEFRE
=BRETERBRERAF
BARZEZREEER—
BLETERAZBSF(BER
BHE)ZKRE -

RERFTAEZAFET
BREIIRHERXI QA
(ME3I AR B ARIE
EITEE BZHET
HEEB FBH ARG
PREAHTSBETRS
ZRBARZHHEEL
B (B K $ = T I5 AT 1E
ZHE - FTAZHBREZM
GUREZ R AT I
REAHE N =F
FRNA=+H - LT
EEDNGEIR 3PN ¢
Re/BEL%mATE E

to the Group. SR TE - Bl LT
BRABH 2 A FEEBE

AEBEMEFLNEK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND FAIR 3 HERREERERMIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS N {E @
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 33 RYEFE®
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) TBAFEFTEZEEH
fair value (Continued) EERBE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) o FEZAR (E)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  (Continued)

The movement during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are

faE - ()
o @&

HESMATET B
RERZ BT :

as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Listed equity security suspended LETRAES
from trading (BEEEE
At the beginning of the year REH) 8,691 9,465
Transfer from Level 1 EREEE R = 1,791
Total loss included in profit or ABEZER
loss #as (5,391) (2,565)
At the end of the year RER 3,300 8,691
2020 2019
—E-EH —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Total loss included in profit or PR EHIR
loss for assets held at the BEEEA
end of the reporting period bi-Enwd) <piECb (5,391) (2,565)

(ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 30th June 2020 and 2019.

EPREX(CEMARLT —T-TEEH 215 N4
| 4 i ..;‘?

(ii)

WA FEIEZ
cREERERE
ANESBIR A AN S B SH A A A
ReemTAZEAERAE
RZEBEZZEFER_FT—NF
NAZTBZRAFEEZRT
j( °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

4  CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BERSTHLEERHER

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually HE - BREHEEREETE YR

evaluated and are based on historical experience and BRALHBMEMERETIE B

other factors, including expectations of future events that FEBBATEREBEENRREY

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. TEOR) o

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) BRI HELERR
The Group makes estimates and assumptions Zli'iliﬁi?ﬂ’ﬁﬂjffﬂxﬂfﬁ““ Fr
concerning the future. The resulting accounting gHHENETEE  ROgH
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal ,\f REERER - EEEAERE
the related actual results. The estimates and BT ESBREENEEMEENER
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing HEELERNABRNGHEEMREFR
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of U o

assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(i)  Impairment of film rights, films in progress () SBME - BHEpz
and film related deposits EYNEFHBIEZ
WA
The Group assesses annually whether there RIEMFE2FT S 2 S FTEUR -
is any indication for impairment on the film REEREBEET  EXE
rights, films in progress and film related TR REMERER
deposits for video distribution, film distribution W % 2 58 & F 77 & &2 I
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing - BERZEFRETR
of film rights segment and further assesses Rl &= A W IR AR E D
if they have suffered any impairment, in £ MEIREARERET
accordance with the accounting policy stated HE— R o
in note 2.
&
{3
4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the Group assessed
that there were impairment indication for
certain films included in films rights, film in
progress and film related deposit with gross
carrying amount of approximately HK$950,000,
HK$16,954,000 and HK$25,157,000
respectively because of the change of
comparable market information and expected
performance. As at 30th June 2020, these film
rights, film in progress and film related deposit
have been reduced to their recoverable
amount of approximately HK$46,000,
HK$13,205,000 and HK$13,801,000
respectively. The recoverable amount was
determined on a title-by-title basis, and is
assessed with reference to a value-in-use
calculation at the end of the reporting period,
which was derived from discounting the
projected cash flow forecast using a discount
rate of 11% (2019: 14%). Key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflow include the budget
film exhibition income, budget licensing and
sub-licensing income revenue and discount
rate. Such estimation is based on the historical
box office of the same director and main cast
members, the market comparable data of films
with the same theme, and management’s
expectations of the market development. The
discount rate used is before tax and reflected
current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.

4

=)

=T

e M BB RME

BRI EERA T @

(a)

AR HE MMER®

(i)

SERE - BER 2z
EFNEFHBEEZ
BB ()
RZZE_ZEFA=+A8"
AEBEFHEEALES N
/950,000 7T + 16,954,000
BT 225,157,000 T 2 &

TEX(BEREZRE -
SEPEFNEXHB

RIFERETR - REAR
AALLBRMISANRBHE
RZE8Y R-T_FTERX

A=1H ZEETRE -
HEFEXZNEXHEBI

ED R ZE A KO g FEL
46,000/ 7T ~ 13,205,000/
7L X% 13,801,000/ 7T » AJ UK
C&BHIREGHELELERE
EWBERBREHRZE
REEEETE - ME
REEDERIT%(ZE—H
F o 14%) 2 B EXALIRTE
Elﬁﬁimu%? %ﬁ‘uuj EE‘%
i/llhA,‘EA—-I—Z{E}EH{ETEE-I—
HIZRBEERESTTH
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AR S REE K
EYREEBEERR 2T
fif o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Impairment of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits (Continued)

Taking into account the impairment
assessment performed by the management,
an impairment loss of film rights of
approximately HK$904,000 (2019:
HK$165,000), an impairment loss of
film related deposits of approximately
HK$11,356,000 (2019: HK$67,000), and
an impairment loss of films in progress
of approximately HK$3,749,000 (2019:
HK$Nil) were recognised respectively in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30th June 2020
to reduce the carrying amounts of certain
film rights, films in progress and film related
deposits to their recoverable amounts. The
directors and management have considered
and assessed reasonably possible changes for
other key assumptions and have not identified
any instances that could cause the carrying
amount of film rights, film in progress and
film related deposits to exceed its recoverable
amount as at 30th June 2020.

As at 30th June 2020, the aggregate carrying
amount of film rights, films in progress
and film related deposits amounted to
approximately HK$290,106,000 (2019:
HK$309,730,000).

4

BERESTHERHEH @

(a)

R HE MMERR®

(i)

EME - RIFHZ

EXRETHEET 22
;JEXE nﬁ

et R EBEET ZRMERT
o EEREREBEBBELY
904,000 L (ZE— L7 -
165,000 7T) « ERAEMET
& RERIE#)11,356,000/5
71(_ — 1 : 67,000/
T RBERERREEE
493,749,000 L (ZZF— N,
&F /%E)E, TRIRNEZE =
E_TFERNAZTHIEFE
ZirEEERERFER
LA E TEZME - ZEF
B REZHABIT 2 2ER
EREHATKE S  -ES
&aﬁr‘a%r@&qﬂﬁﬁtfm
FTERBZAEA RS
B BB A al u%ﬁz*
FRE - BERERERET
I 2 REEBLER
TE-TEXNA=+RHZA
W Bl & ERIER -
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BEXIRE RIETEY
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e M BB RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

Accounts receivable are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting
period to determine the expected credit
losses. The management bases the estimates
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and
forecast general economic conditions. Credit
risk assessments focus on the customers’
past history of making payments when due
and current ability and willingness to pay,
taking into account the financial position
of the customers and the macroeconomic
environment in which the customers operate.
If the financial conditions of the customers
and/or the macroeconomic environment of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision may be reputed. If
the financial conditions of these customers
were to deteriorate, additional provision for
impairment may be required. As at 30th
June 2020, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$73,105,000 (2019: HK$11,161,000).

4

=T

RIS EERA T @

(a) BAREETLEERERR®

(ii)

FEUR BRFR < R B B 1

EREBREREHAENE
WEER - NEEHEHEEE
B BREZIAFTUABERE
EEEEHAER W@
BABTREZRYEA LA
HA B B OB MR 2 SR {E 1E
HAE - EERRBFHESD
REFEREIHE 2 B EM K
RER A K B AT Z 88 T R A
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e M BRRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Estimated valuation of investment properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on property valuation techniques which
involve, inter alia, certain estimates including
comparable sales in the relevant market,
appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
condition. As at 30th June 2020, the carrying
amount of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$31,460,000 (2019:
HK$31,460,000).

Estimation of fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss that are not
traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material
effect on the fair value of the financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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e M BB RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Estimation of fair value financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the carrying amount
of other financial assets amounted to
approximately HK$10,008,000 (2019:
HK$9,574,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised, and is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are
realised. In determining the deferred tax
assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax
rate for each entity within the Group at each
tax jurisdiction and the profitability of each
entity, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these
estimates and the actual outcome will impact
the Group's results in the period in which
the actual outcome is determined. As at 30th
June 2020, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets amounted to approximately
HK$271,000 (2019: HK$341,000).
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ReHEE RRER®

(iv)

(v)

FEBREBEREAFEAR
ZEMEENATFE
{5t (&)
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e M BRRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(vi)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Impairment of loans receivable and other
receivables

The impairment loss for using the expected
credit loss model is subjected to a number of
key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. The expected
credit losses for loans receivable and other
receivables are derived from estimates
whereby management takes into consideration
historical data, the historical loss experience
and other adjustment factors. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions and the judgment based
on management’s historical experience.
Management reviews the selection of
those parameters and the application of the
assumptions regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss. As
at 30th June 2020, the carrying amount of
loans receivable, loan to an associate, amount
due from an associate and financial assets
included in deposits paid, prepayments and
other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$7,216,000 (2019: HK$61,630,000), HK$Nil
(2019: HK$4,288,000), HK$53,000 (2019:
HK$Nil), and HK$19,549,000 respectively
(2019: HK$81,143,000).
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e M BB RME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible
assets with a finite useful life on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives reflect management’s
estimate of the period that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the other intangible assets. At 30th
June 2020, the carrying amount of other
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$2,239,000 (2019: HK$2,387,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’'s management reviews the
inventory ageing analysis periodically, and
makes allowance on an annual basis for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer marketable. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items through
management’s estimation of the net realisable
value for such obsolete and slow-moving
items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At 30th
June 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately HK$10,963,000
(2019: HK$9,217,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ix)

(x)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Fair value of contingent consideration
receivable and payable

The fair value of contingent consideration
receivable and payable was determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group's
management uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions,
including the discount rates and estimation of
future performance. Changes in assumptions
used could materially affect the fair value
of the balances and, as a result, affect the
Group's financial condition and results of
operation. At 30th June 2020, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration
receivable and contingent consideration
payable amounted to HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil)
and HK$20,400,000 (2019: HK$20,400,000)
respectively.

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates
are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the associates and joint
ventures. Recoverable amount is the greater
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Management evaluates the recovery of
the investments based on such estimates and
is confident that the allowance for impairment,
where necessary, is adequate. During the year
ended 30th June 2020, impairment losses of
HKS$NIl (2019: HK$1,065,000) were recognised
in respect of interests in associates. As at
30th June 2020, the carrying amount of the
interests in associates amounted to HK$Nil
(2019: HK$1,085,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements to
produce and distribute television series, films and
webisodes. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2019: from 5% to 90%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as, under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent is
required from all parties to the agreements for all
relevant activities. The Group’s joint arrangements
involve the joint control by the venturers of the
assets contributed to the joint arrangement and
dedicated to the purposes of each joint arrangement
for the benefits of the venturers. Each venturer
may take a share of the output from the assets
and each bears an agreed share of the expenses
incurred. These joint arrangements do not involve
the establishment of a corporation, partnership or
other entity, or a financial structure that is separate
from the venturers themselves. Therefore, these
arrangements are classified as joint operations of
the Group and the Group recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2.5. The
determination of the relevant activities under joint
operations requires management’s significant
judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION o EBE R
The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which AEEZRIPIEDBTEEER - MEEH
are organised by business lines (products and services). &%ﬁ‘%(%uu TR R o LA ER

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Chairman of the Company,
being the Group’'s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing
which are classified as discontinued operations for the
year ended 30th June 2019 and 2020.

The Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

Continuing operations

- Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products

NERRRFEARRFEFE(RAEE
TELERRE(ZBEEERRED)A
MEKERTA—HZHA -

R-ZE-N\FRA=ZTHLFE  r&
BRIERBE-_ZT-NFR-_ZT_TF
NAZTHALEFESBRDRUELER
BOBEFELRFRBEE

REBMEZFIATAI2|MDEL -

- BBRET ERETRHR KL
KER B E

- REERNEERERES  H#LER

and watches products =&
- Leasing of investment properties - HHEKEYME
- Securities investments - BHERA
- Money lending - WE
- Entertainment business - IREAER

- Financial printing services

Discontinued operation

- Securities brokerage and margin financing (ceased
during the year ended 30th June 2018)

- WEEIRI AR

B & FETE
- BARERARRAMR-Z-N
EXAS+BIEELLL)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations. The profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently
with the Group’'s loss before tax from continuing
operations except fair value change of contingent
consideration receivable, impairment loss of
interest in an associate, fair value change of other
financial assets, amortisation of deferred day one
gain in respect of derivative instruments, finance
income, unallocated finance costs, share of loss of
associates, and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other intangible
assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, unallocated loan receivable, unallocated time
deposits with maturity over 3 months at acquisition,
unallocated cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax
assets, loan to an associate, amount due from an
associate, contingent consideration receivable, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities, contingent consideration payable
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a)

5 DIER @
(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and @ BE

liabilities (Continued) &f@l 1ﬁ ()

 E_E_EFR-_F-NFARH
ZHHUEFE  BHTAKREEE
BERREREERDEMD FR

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment

of segment performance for the years ended 30th BEH 2 AEE 25D BER N
June 2020 and 2019 is set out below: o
2020
23
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
bt B ] BRILEEEE
Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,
film and
distribution retailing
and of optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and  Leasing of Total for and Total for
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing margin  discontinued
of film rights products  properties  investments lending business printing ~ Elimination  operations financing operations Total
BERT
E¥EAR  BEERR
H# - Bk HRER BAL
RAREY FAUE it KREE  BREER f-£3 4
R HEREE RENE R5RE HE REXH BHBER pis RBeE FREE &t @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
7 AT TER  TER  TER 7 TR TER  TER TAR T TRR
Segment revenue SPhE
Disaggregate by timng of ~ RHERIRHAH
revenue recognition
~Point in time -¥-BE 154,864 51,018 - - - 2,042 - - 207924 3 3 207,957
- Over time -k - - - - - - 9814 - 9,814 - - 9,814
-Revenue outof scopeof - BB L%
HKFRS 15 FIRERI
ey - - 1,140 - 7,889 - - - 9,029 - - 9,029
Exteral revenue Sl 154,864 51,018 1,140 - 7,889 2,042 9814 - 226,167 3 3 226,800
Inter-segment sales HPRERE © - - © o = 3N (3n) = = = =
154,864 51,018 1,140 - 7,889 2,042 10,185 (31) 226,167 3 3 226,800
Segment results 17,355 (12.101) 928 (5,754) (13370) (857) (11,134) (31) (25,304) 9% 9% (24,509)
Fair value change of other
financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or
loss (3581) - (3581)
Amortisation of deferred
day one gain in respect
of derivative financial
instruments 5,545 - 5,545
Finance income BBKA 2,987 - 2,987
Finance cost BRI () @)
Share of losses of ABELDER
ass0ciates (1,085) - (1,085)
Unallocated corporate FARLER
expenses (7,085) = (7,065)
Loss before tax BREEE (28,506) 7% (21.11)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER@®

Py N2 ALl =k > =
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) PEME -~ F4E - BE
. ey, . EE .
liabilities (Continued) NE &)
2020
-8ogE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAL
RREERR EEH
Video
distribution, Trading,
film  wholesaling,
distribution ~ and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ productsand ~ Leasing of Totalfor  brokerage
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial ~ continuing  and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business printing  operations financing Total

#EBG.  BRERR
YRR HRER
B RER 285" ki KREE  BRERR
BREVRE  HBRIE  REMR 35 B BERE  HROR  XBAE  FRER it
HKS'000 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
i TR TR TEn  TiEn i TR TER TRL TR

Assets
Segment assets 37,841 27,63 31502 3,300 1348 4250 6,537 446,414 4,950 451,364
Other financial assets 10,008 - 10,008
Deferred tax assets m - m
Amount due from an associate 53 - 53
Unallocated other intangible TANE
assets 1858 - 1,858
Unallocated loans receivable FIRERER 5,868 = 5,868
Unallocated time deposits with REARIISEEE
maturity over 3 months at
acquisition 108,640 - 108,640
Unallocated cash and cash
equivalents 102,976 o 102,976
Unallocated corporate assets 2,750 o 2,750
Total consolidated assets GRRELE 678,838 4950 683788
Liabilities &R
Segment liabities ABEfR 253,615 20,659 21 8512 400 2208 6,543 292,188 802 292,990
Taxation payable AHE 5,960 o 5,960
Deferred tax libilties 84 - 84
Contingent consideration
payable 20,400 0 20,400
Unallocated corporate liabiliies 9,462 - 9462
Total consolidated liabilties 328,094 802 328,896
o
o,
v
BFREXCEBARAT —T-TFEH 229
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

liabilities (Continued)

Other information

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of right-of-use assets

Additions of unallocated property,
plant and equipment

Additions of unallocated
right-of-use assets

Total additions of property, plant
and equipment

Additions of intangible assets

Additions of film rights and fims in
progress

Additions of film related deposits

Depreciation

Unallocated depreciation

Amortisation of film rights

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Unallocated depreciation of
right-of-use assets

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Total depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss of other intangible
assets

Impairment loss of right-of-use
assets

Impairment loss of film rights and
films in progress

Impairment loss of film related
deposits

Change in ECLs

- Accounts receivable

- Loans receivable

- Other receivables
Unallocated change in ECLs

Total change in ECLs

Fair value change of trading
securities

FERREAE
RERDENR B8R
E
FEASREREAE

b
[REREZRE
AORERERELSE

AEVAEZRE

fEREHEE

[EREREREER

SHMERREZEY

£9:

Segment revenue, results, assets and

5 DEER@®

(a)

DEpUES - EAE - 7
INE=RERC )

5

2020
-gogE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B&L
RREERR EEH
Video
distribution, Trading,
film  wholesaling,
distribution and retailing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ productsand ~ Leasing of Totalfor  brokerage
sub-licensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial ~ continuing ~ and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business printing  operations financing Total
BERT REERR
EYRGR HHER
HER - BB 285" it kREE  BREER
AREYRE HRREE RENR BERE HE BREE DR 24 fRRE ait
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThT ThT ThR ThT TR TR TR TEn Fin ThR
1] 1513 2% - - 2 1399 3078 - 3018
25 6113 - - - - 1352 7690 - 7,690
56 - 56
541 - 541
11,365 - 11,365
- - - - - - 1414 1414 - 1414
30,089 - - - - - - 30,089 - 30,089
30,007 - - - - - - 30,007 - 30,007
104 2,566 n - - 1 310 2,992 - 2,992
- - - - - - - 3% - 35
44,149 - - - - - - 44,149 - 44,149
3,628 5,39 - - - 3% 2413 141 - 141
- - - - - - - 68 - 68
- 148 - - - - 249 397 - 397
59,112 - 59,112
- - - - - - 1,090 1,090 - 1,090
- - - - - - 1,165 1165 - 1,165
- - - - - - 2,069 2,069 - 2,069
4,653 - - - - - - 4,653 - 4,653
11,356 - - - - - - 11,356 - 11,356
87 - - - - B 956 1,066 (1,500) (434)
121 o o o 18,653 - - 18,780 - 18,780
(647) - - - 386 4 - (257) - (257)
3586 - 3,586
8175 (1,500) 2,675
- - - 5,391 - - - 5,391 - 5,391

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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e M BB RME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEPER @

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and (a) E5 - BE
liabilities (Continued] 1 ()
2019
ZENE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HREEZE BEIHEERH

Video Trading,
distribution,  wholesaling,

fim and
distribution retailing

and of optical Securities
exhibition, products brokerage
licensing and and Leasing of Total for and Total for
subicensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing margin -~ discontinued
of fim rights products properties  investments lending business printing Elimination operations financing operations Total
BERT
BYRTR REERR
1 Bk EHER BEL
REREY 8% i BANE  BREER fEE S

g HEREE REnE E5RE HE BEEH Bl it 2ieE ARRE a3t &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000  HK$'000
TER TERL TR TEn TEL TERL TiEn TEL TERL TERL TEL TERL

Segment revenue AP
Disaggregate by timng of AR EABHSH
revenue recognition
~Pointin time -3-K% 7782 35,601 - - - 5793 - 49,226 196 196 49422
- Over time -RER - - - - - - 3649 = 3649 = = 3649
-Revenue outof scopeof - EVEETEHEEE
HKFRS 15 F15RHEMN
e - - 1,107 - 7681 - - - 8,79 - - 879
External revenue SNE 7782 35,651 1,107 - 7,687 5793 3649 - 61,669 196 196 61,865
Inter-segment sales AUmEE - - - - - - 625 625) - - - -
7,782 35,661 1,107 - 7681 5793 4214 (625) 61,669 196 196 61,865
Segment results i | (52,387) (10,679) 2904 (4,597 (12,981) (632) (8,503) - (86,8751 3.118) 3118 (89,993
Fair value change of EARARELATE
contingent consideration L&)
receivable 3,796) - (3,796)
Impairment loss of interest ~ R—-TBEAT 28R
in an associate JREEE (1,065) - (1,085)

Fair valug change of other ~ EBBEEATEAR

financial assets carred at ZEMEREEIL

fairvalue through profitor ~~ FEZE

loss (19.437) - (19437)
Amortisation of deferred ATESRIAZER

day one gain in respect El:Leawg 5

of derivative financial

instruments 1636 - 1636
Finance income BRKA 2392 - 239
Share of losses of HEBERIEE

associates (725) - (725)
Unallocated corporate RARDERR

expenses (10,730 - (10,730)
Loss before tax BRAER (118,600 e (121,718

BFREVCEBEBRRA —T_TFER
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e M RREE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

DEER @

(a) o EFUER
N aEwm®

N
\%
n

2019
—E-hE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BEEEZE fEES S
Video
distrioution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retaiing
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-ficensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing ~ and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business printing operations financing Total
#EHT REERR
EPEAR EHER
B B R 285 it BEEE BRERR
SREYRE  HURTE RENE  EARE HE REER PR shEE  AREE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin Fin Fhn TEr TEn T T Tk Fin
Assets &g
Segment assets AHRE 385,615 8412 31488 8691 59,922 5497 4,846 519471 13,736 533,207
Interests in associates RBERD R 1,085 S 1,085
Other financial assets EheREE 9,574 S 9574
Deferred tax assets EeRasE k2 - 3
Loan to an associate RF-EBENTZ
i 4288 - 4,288
Tax recoverable AHERE - 224 2242
Tax certicate A 4 - %
Unallocated other intangible AOREMEYEE
assets 1858 - 1858
Unallocated loan receivables AARERER 1881 = 1881
Unallocated cash and cash AARAE RS
equivalents El:) 169,055 - 169,08
Unallocated corporate assets FORLEEE 1118 S 1,118
Total consolidated assets GLEEER 708716 15978 72469
Liabilities &R
Segment liabiities ABaE 287,519 6,679 29 - - 7238 2184 303,849 818 304,667
Taxation payable it i) 6,730 S 6730
Deferred tax fabiltes ETRARR 90 - 90
Contingent consideration ENFARE
payable 20400 - 20400
Unallocated corporate liabilies FOREEEE 11,873 o 1873
Total consoldated liabilties GRAREE 342942 818 343760

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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e M BB RME

7EE R @
(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5
(a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities (Continued) 1 (&)
2019
ZE-NE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
REEERH HEES
Video
distribution, Trading,
film wholesaling,
distribution and retalling
and exhibition, of optical Securities
licensingand ~ products and Leasing of Total for brokerage
sub-ficensing watches  investment Securities Money  Entertainment Financial continuing ~~ and margin
of film rights products properties  investments lending business printing operations financing Total
HEHT REERR
BYEAR H5ER
B R R 285 g BEEE BRERR
SREYRE  HURTE REnz FRE HE REER PR shEE  AREE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FER Fin FEL
Other information Efbgn
Additions of property, plant and RENE  BERRE
equipment 9 3636 7 - - 1 144 3797 - 3797
Additions of unallocated RERAENE  HE
property, plant and equipment JEL | 2% - 2%
Total additions of property, plant RENE  BERRE
and equipment @ 3821 - 3821
Adaitons of fims in progress HBREHIEY 155,495 - S S S S S 15,495 - 1549
Additons of fim related deposits BB 2M 4047 - - - - - - 20471 -
Depreciation it 3 1470 3 - - 8 647 2459 51 2510
Unallocated depreciation FARAE 385 - 385
Amortsation of fim rights BYME R 1747 = S S S S S 1747 S 1747
Amortisation of brand name ez wg - 148 - - - - - 148 S 148
Total depreciation and TEREHEE
amortisation 4739 51 4,79
Wite-off of property, plants and HENE  BRRRE
equipment - 4 - - - - 1,607 1,611 - 1611
Impairment loss of fim rights SYMEREER 165 - - - - - - 165 - 165
Impairment loss of fim related BT HERE
deposits 67 - - - - - - 67 - 67
Change in ECLs PAX:S-Pait:i
EEZY:
- Account receivable - B 1) (137) - - - il 8 780) 3,500) 4,280)
- Loans receivable -BHER - - - - 18710 = = 18710 = 18710
- Other receivables - AR 7620 130 S S 430 (185) = 7,995 = 7,995
Unallocated change in ECLs AR ERERER
29 898 - 898
Total change in ECLs EHREEERDNE 26823 (3,500) 23303
Increase in fai value of FENELTEEN
investment property - - (2,100) - - - - 2,100 - (2,100)
Fair value change of trading REEHFLTEED
securities 2 S 2 5288 o & o 5,288 o 5288
EFREVCEBERDAF —T_TFEFH
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e M BRRHE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DIER @
(b) Geographical information (b) Hbig &}
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The RRBMNES - REBEZEBE
Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong EMNREBRPH -
and the PRC.
The revenue information below is based on the TR EER DA EFTE AE
location of the operations. i
2020
—ECEF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
FRBEE
(TEfEem
TAERIEE
& BEEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ExT F&T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 75 (FriEih) 83,456 314,385
Macau R 230 =
PRC and other Asian countries AR R B gr R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (B8 KIBFIERIN) 142,365 26,691
Others Hi 716 =
226,767 341,076
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (FrfEb) 33 =
Total @t 226,800 341,076
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

e M BB RME

5 DEER@®

(b) Geographical information (Continued) (b) HuBELE R @)
2019
—E-NF
Non-current
assets (other
than financial
instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
EMBEE
(T"eEiEeR
THRIEE
Was HIBEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FTiEHs) 39,702 315,547
Macau Ll 154 -
PRC and other Asian countries B R E A S MBI R
(other than Hong Kong and Macau) (BB RBPIBRIN 21,766 33,764
Others Hi 47 S
61,669 349,311
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREEK
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (FriEs) 196 =
Total @t 61,865 349,311
\
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e M BRRHE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Information about major customers

For the year ended 30th June 2020, one of the
customers from video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights segment contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue amounting to approximately
HK$23,460,000 (2019: there is no single customer
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
entertainment business, trading, wholesaling and
retailing of optical products and watch products and
provision of financial printing services, such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under the
sales contracts as their performance has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

5

o EBE F @)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W - HBERRE
Other properties,
plant and
equipment
leased for own Machinery
use carried Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
atcost  improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
RHANR
HENMERRN
Efehg
BERRE  HEVERE  AEREE  KAREE RE BOERR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tin Tk T Tin T
Costs A
At 1st July 2018 RZE-N\FtA-H - 10,285 25,746 2,726 3,739 10,267 52,763
Additions e - 1,962 - 29 - 1,564 3,821
Disposals e - (845) (21) (308) - (674) (1,848)
Wiite-off it - (1,281) - (341) - (796) 2418
Exchange realignment EXBE - (377) - (58) 5) (30) 470)
At 30th June 2019 RZZ-NE/A=1A - 9744 25,725 2314 3734 10,331 51,848
Impact on initial application of B REME KR
HKFRS 16 (Note) LERIS16%E 25
2() 19,392 = = = = = 19,392
At 1st July 2019 RZE-NFth-H 19,392 9,744 25,125 2314 3734 10,331 71,240
Additions NE 8231 2331 1 313 - 489 11,365
Disposals e - - - (29) - [153) (181)
Wite-off it - (248) - (473) - - (721)
Exchange realignment B 8% (125) %) - (40) 5 (27 (299)
Lease modification REEY 339) - - - - - (339)
Y RIBZERAAZIN L. 2 U A LI L UM,
Accumulated depreciation ~ EitFERBERE
and impairment loss
At 1st July 2018 R=E-\E£A-H - 8314 25719 2137 1,853 9,035 47,058
Depreciation charge (Note 33)  FTEZR (Hf333) = 1,382 15 204 813 481 289
Disposals HeE - (750) (21) (287) - (436) (1,494)
Wite-off it - (559) - (76) - (172) (807)
Exchange realignment EiEE - (363) - (55) ) (30) (453)
At 30th June 2019 and RZE-NEFrA=1A
st July 2019 R=E-hEtA-A = 8024 25713 1923 2,661 8878 47,199
Depreciation charge (Note 33)  FTEZf (Hf333) 11,539 1,635 1 163 714 504 14,566
Disposals £ - - - (28) - (153) (181)
Write-off i - (248) - (473) - - (121)
Exchange realignment B ) (88) - (30) 72 (26) (224)
Impairment (Note 33) FA(H333) 2,069 743 = 39 S 308 3159
A RBZREAAZIE L. B e Lt e [ R L N L
Net carrying amount REFE
At 30th June 2020 RZE-ZEXA=1H 13,559 1,663 2 492 426 1129 17.2n
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NFRAZTA - 1,720 12 391 1,073 1,453 4649
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Mizk: AEBEFEREITEREEXER
modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening BEAMBRELERNE 165 - WHE -
balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets ZE-NFLRA—BZEEHRIA o
relating to leases which were previously classified as HRECABIEESGFHERNE 175 i
operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 2.1(i). NEAKENECHEEREZHEA ¥l
REEE - RMEE2.10) ©
EFMET(EBERAT —T-TEEH 237




Notes to the Consolidated Financial

e M BRRHE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the carrying amount of machinery
and equipment held by the Group under finance leases is
approximately HK$Nil (2019: HK$9,000).

Depreciation of approximately HK$411,000 (2019:
HK$10,000) has been charged to “cost of revenue” and
approximately 14,155,000 (2019: HK$2,885,000) has been
charged to “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy,
property, plant and equipment (note 2.8) and right-of-use
assets (note 2.10(i)) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. During the year,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for financial printing business were fully impaired as
the value-in-use of those assets are estimated by the
management of the Group to be HK$Nil because of the
past poor financial performance of the business segment
and it is foreseen that those assets will not be able to be
used to generate positive future cash inflow.

The impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1,090,000
(2019: HK$Nil) and HK$2,069,000 (2019: HK$Nil)
were recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income respectively.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

Statements

M - BERFRE®

N_B-TEXASTA  ARERE
BAREHE 2 RS RRELEEED
BEBT(ZE—AF : 9,000870) ¢

WEHNA411,0008 L (=2 —NF
10,0008 L) ERERA 2 AN ER 2[R
AR R IR - M#14,155,00078 7T
(ZZ— N5 : 2,885,000/ 7T) ERERA
PHERMERZ[TTRERIFNE -

REAREZEFTHE WX - #aE
K (MEz.e) REREEE M=
2.100) IAANEL R 5T T & KO BB
B - RAEE - MREHRBIEHZWE
W RREAREREEEDEORE
FRREASASEEREEMFZETEELRE
REEATET  NHEZEBDHBE
MBRRRERBEHZEEEREBEER
REELRFRERA °

M WELREBEARGFEREEE 2R
BEEE D RI#1,090,0008 L (ZF— A1
F o THIT) 2,069,000 T (—E— N
F EELERNEEE2EKRERARE

7
e

(a) EREEE
REMEERAE D 2 EARAE

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: REFESTAT
As at As at
30th June 1st July
2020 2019
R-ZBE-EF RZZT—NF
ANB=+H +A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other properties leased forown  IZEITERAAREE
used, carried at depreciated cost ~ JAYEE R E M 13,441 19,392
Motor vehicle leased for own used, Z&ITEKRNARHEE
carried at depreciation cost LAEE AR RE 118 -
13,559 19,392

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ¥ HMERZRE®
(Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FHREEE®
The analysis of expenses items in relation to leases REERRNEERBRAYIES D
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: M
2020 2019
—E-EE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
(Note)
(F %)
Depreciation charge of LEAEERMNEISH
right-of-use assets by class of FRAEEEBRITE
underlying asset: (Note 33) (Bt7£33)
Other properties leased MELEE AN
for own use H bz 11,432 S
Motor vehicle leased MENEE A RE
for own use 107 -
11,539 -
Impairment loss of right-of-use FRAEEERERBE
assets (Note 33) (B13£33) 2,069 =
Interest on lease liabilities HESEF S FIEE33)
(Note 33) 542 -
Expense relating to short-term EHAMEE R THEER
leases and other leases with —EZFFA=TH
remaining lease term ending HZARIEMEMAE
on or before 30th June 2020 FEREF 2 (M95E33)
(Note 33) 2,887 =
Expense relating to leases of HEREEEEMEBRX
low-value assets (Note 33) (Pff5£33) 64 =
Total minimum lease payments RIBEBAGTERE175%
for leases previously classified RN BERKCEHRER
as operating leases under HE&EBAENR
HKAS 17 #aza = 12,780
Variable lease payments not WEFAHEAEFEY
included in the measurement of AIEREMR
lease liabilities 633 912

EFRELEBARAT —T-TEEH ‘239 €



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1st July 2019. The Group as a lease is
required to recognise the depreciation of right-
of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2.1(i).

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were approximately HK$8,231,000. This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under a new tenancy agreement.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 45(c) and 28 respectively.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its office, warehouse and retail stores
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. The lease of
retail stores contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on sales generated from the retail
stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in
retail stores in Hong Kong and the PRC where the
Group operates. Other than the retail stores, other
leases do not include variable lease payments.

Other leases

The Group leases a motor vehicle under leases
expiring in one year. The leases include an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated
and include an option to purchase the motor vehicle
at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. The lease does not
include variable lease payments.

6

M - BERFRE®

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1 BEYE

2020 2019
e —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

At fair value BAFRE
At the beginning of the year REY] 31,460 29,360
Fair value change N EEE = 2,100
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties

(a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

LEMEZ NV ERE

(a)

NFEER
TREVNRREHRIRE H ML
AR WIREEMBREELNSE
138 A FEAEIFAEEN=Z5
BATFESHIENREBLEY
ENFEE - SHEAFEAENSR
REME R EFTERHABIED
ATEREMEEEEFNAT

FIREE: EEAF1RABAR
BFTEMATE  BINETERHE
BmiEHaREEXRENREHR

BRE

F22REE - ERF2RBARE
AENLQTE BIRFAEIRN
AERG A EE  RNMERERT
AERNBARE - THBREA
BBEEINTEHERESNHA
g

EIRMEE  LEATAIBENE
ABBENRFE

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 A =
e MR
7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REVE®
Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties SEYEZ N FERE @
(Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEERGE
Fair value measurements at
30th June 2020 categorised into
R-B-_ZFEAA=TALTEHEREAR
Fair value at Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
30th June 2020 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-EZEF
~A=1+H
ZAYE F1%K FE28% FE3R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEx
Recurring fair value EEEATE
measurement iE
Investment properties: BEME
- Residential = Hong Kong -FE-FF 31,460 = = 31,460
Fair value measurements at
30th June 2019 categorised into
RZZE—NENA=ZTRAFEFESREA
Fair value at Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
30th June 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—NF
ANA=tH
ZRAFE FR FoR £33k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FEL FAT FET
Recurring fair value KEENFE
measurement FTE
Investment properties: REME
- Residential = Hong Kong -FE-B% 31,460 = = 31,460
During the year ended 30th June 2020, there BHE_Z2-_FEFNA=THIHF
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, B EFIRES2H 2 EB RS
or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil). The % BEIRIEEALEL(CE—
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between NE &) - AEENBEEER
% levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the WMEBREREHANEENATFE
reporting period in which they occur. ERPERER 2 ENER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

All investment properties of the Group were
revalued as at 30th June 2020. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who have
amongst their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The management of the Group has discussions with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation
techniques

E1E7 %
REBZERENR

Investment properties
in Hong Kong
— Residential properties Direct comparison
approach

-EEME BERLEOR

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using direct comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or discount specific
to the quality of the Group’s properties compared
to recent sales of comparable transactions. Higher
discount for lower quality properties will result in a
lower fair value measurement.

e M BB RME

7 REYHw@
SEME 7 N EFTE @)

(a) DFEFHRGE
AEBERERENEON T _F
FRA=THETEMR - HETH
B EENTT - B B IRIRFH A
BRRRET > ZRRFDETIR
BARREBMBEEER - HWAHEY
K EV P MO AN P B B R B T
B - RBRERREE BT
HER - AEEEREEC SR Em
A miAERR,AEER -

(b) BEEIRLFEFTEZEH

Range of
Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
FABEEZ@A TUEREARE
HE ZEE

10%-15% (2019:
14%—16%)
10%-15%
(ZF—N%F:
14%~16%)

Discount on quality
of properties

MR E RIETE

MR EB 2 RANEZ AFEDE
REBLEAEE - KESEA(H
BB S T R B
RMEE  AERAREDEE
£ 215 T BT (A
RPLERAAIELAE - RIEL
ENE BBFRTERRELA
FEEHE -

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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e M BRRHE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 7 REVE®
Fair Value Measurement of Investment Properties WEMFEZ A FEFE®W
(Continued)
(b) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (b)) BEFERAFEFEZER
(Continued) (#&)
The movements during the year in the balance FANEIR AT EFELEBNED
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as wmr
follows:
2020 2019
—EZEF —ZT-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investment properties REWME
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-5B
At the beginning of the year REH] 31,460 29,360
Fair value change NEES) = 2,100
At the end of the year RER 31,460 31,460
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e M BB RME

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HME\EEEE
Computer Club
software  Brand name  membership Total
BB G mEaRE 28 kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL TET TET
Cost %N
At 1st July 2018 and —NF+A—H
30th June 2019 —NERA
=1H - 1,108 1,858 2,966
Addition NE 1,414 - - 1,414
At 30th June 2020 RZB-BEXA=1H 1414 1,108 1,858 4,380
Accumulated amortisation R EHERHEFE
and impairment losses
At 1st July 2018 R-Z-N\E+HA—H - 431 - 431
Amortisation for the year FREH(HFE33)
(Note 33) - 148 - 148
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NE A=1H - 579 - 579
Amortisation for the year R (EE33)
(Note 33) 249 148 - 397
Impairment (Note 33) A (f3E33) 1,165 S S 1,165
At 30th June 2020 RZEZZF A=TH 1,414 727 = 2,141
Carrying amount REE
At 30th June 2020 RZE-TF A=FH - 381 1,858 2,239
At 30th June 2019 RZZ-NFRA=1H = 529 1,858 2,387
In accordance with the Group's accounting policy *EB%KEIZA#BZM(W%Z 13(f))
(note 2.13(f)), computer software is stated at cost B SR AR 25T 8 MR E B 1A
less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss. PIBR « MANEE - B ERIZS 2 B
During the year, computer software for financial printing BHEEREE RAARAREBEEEER
business was fully impaired as the value-in-use of the AERBHCEREEASAET - A
computer software is estimated by the management of &%ﬁ%’\ HBATHBRERERES
the Group to be HK$Nil because of the past poor financial B REEZAREAERKESR
performance of the business segment and it is foreseen )\ °
that the computer software will not be able to be used to
generate positive future cash inflow.
The impairment loss of the other intangible assets HarfmA 8 E 2 MIBEEZ1,165,000%8
of approximately HK$1,165,000 (2019: HK$Nil) T(ZE—NF  ZEBL)ERGEEEE
was recognised in the consolidated statement of W R AR ©
comprehensive income.
BEFREVEBERAR —TTFFH
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S A =
e Bk
9 FILMRIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS 9 EFWEREERZESR
Film Films in
rights progress Total
HEr
B MmE ZE¥ k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL T FAL
Cost B A
At 1st July 2018 RZZ—-N\F+A—H 76,470 79,652 156,122
Additions NE - 155,495 155,495
Transfers from films in progress ERAREPEY 41,100 (41,100) -
Transfers from film related deposits ERaETEE & 968 150 1,118
Write-off of expired film rights FHIE R 2 WsE (16,292) - (16,292)
At 30th June 2019 and 1st July 2019 RZZE-AFRA=ZTHK
—E-NF+A—H 102,246 194,197 296,443
Additions NE 124 29,965 30,089
Refund of film production cost (Note (i)  REETZEIEER
(P aE () (3,864) - (3,864)
Transfer from film related deposits BEREXEE ¢ 8,955 78 9,033
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 M (5,707) - (5,707)
L A80thune2020 o REESEFAASTR 100784 224240 325994
Accumulated amortisation and Rt RAE
impairment
At 1st July 2018 R-ZE—-N\Ft+tHA—H 75,519 - 75,519
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) FNEH(F15E33) 1,747 - 1,747
Impairment (Note 33) BB (H3E33) 165 S 165
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 M (16,292) - (16,292)
At 30th June 2019 and 1st July 2019 RZB-NEAA=ZTHEK
-+ HA—A 61,139 = 61,139
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) FrEE(HEES3) 44,149 = 44,149
Impairment (Note 33) RE (H3E33) 904 3,749 4,653
Write-off of expired film rights SIERE NI 2 35 (5,707) - (5,707)
.. P30t June2020 L B \CESEEOACSTALL L. 000485 3749 104234
Carrying amount IREE
At 30th June 2020 R-ZE-ZFA=1H 1,269 220,491 221,760
At 30th June 2019 RZZ-NFRA=TH 41,107 194,197 235,304
Note (i) During the year, the Group received a refund of M) REAR - AEEE —HEFEED
film production cost from a film production house AR -—F2ETRHEBRAERLD
amounting approximately HK$3,864,000 on a film 3 864, 00078 7T * Z B TINEFHE
that recognised as film rights last year. RE RN o
Amortisation of approximately HK$44,149,000 (2019: B S FEHA44,149,0008 L (ZE—Hh
3 HK$1,747,000) is included in the cost of revenue in the F 0 1,747,0008 D) st AR 2 E K E
_ consolidated statement of comprehensive income. FKZWERPARA o
k.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress

The Group observes whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
segment are subject to any impairment indication, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
2.16 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the cast
or scale of each films, current market condition, the trade
history, current financial position and popularity of film
outline stories. Management has further performed an
assessment on the recoverable amount of the film rights
and film in progress based on each film sales forecast. As
at 30th June 2020, the Group assessed that there were
impairment indication for certain films included in films
rights and film in progress with gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$950,000 and HK$16,954,000
respectively because of the change of comparable market
information and expected performance. As at 30th June
2020, these film rights and film in progress have been
reduced to its recoverable amount of approximately
HK$46,000 and HK$13,205,000 respectively. The
recoverable amount was determined on a title-by-title
basis, and is assessed with reference to a value-in-use
calculation at the end of the reporting period, which
was derived from discounting the projected cash flow
forecast using a discount rate of 11% (2019: 14%). Key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations related to
the estimation of cash inflow include the budget film
exhibition income, budget licensing and sub-licensing
income revenue and discount rate. Such estimation is
based on the historical box office of the same director and
main cast members, the market comparable data of films
with the same theme, and management’'s expectations
of the market development. The discount rate used is
before tax and reflected current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the film
production business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(Continued)

Impairment test for film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

Taking into account the impairment assessment
performed by the management, an impairment loss
of film rights of approximately HK$904,000 (2019:
HK$165,000) and an impairment loss of films in progress
of approximately HK$3,749,000 (2019: HK$Nil) were
recognised respectively in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 30th June
2020 to reduce the carrying amounts of certain film rights
and films in progress to their recoverable amounts. The
directors and management have considered and assessed
reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions
and have not identified any instances that could cause
the carrying amounts of film rights and film in progress to
exceed their recoverable amounts as at 30th June 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 10 FENBAFA
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at LWTAR-ZE-_EFNA=THZEE
30th June 2020. WBARRBE -
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
HEE
EfA HfHE  dmEER
BRREE ¥E  BEEEW
AL/ ALY VEER  HEER EER
£R REARRER BRIRARE IERRRERMY (%) t (%) S BI%)
Universe Films (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in 100% - -
Limited* limited liabilty Hong Kong
company
iBRES EBRRER100ET RERR &%
EREAAT
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Subrlicensing of film - 100% -
Company Limited liability company rights and television
series, film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
SEPRENERRA Eh BRELLA EERRAZE BREYMERERE
EYMMNRILRRE
Unigue Model Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
&% ARRELT EBRER005T BERRE &R
Universe Digital Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Distribution of films in - 100% -
Limited liahility company deferred HK$10,000 various vidgogram
formats in Hong Kong
ETHESLRRAT B5 BREALT  EERRAOOGET  WFREEHAEA
S ERREAR A
10,0007
Universe Management Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,0005%  Provision of management - 100% -
Limited liability company deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group
in Hong Kong
BROEERERAA BE ARAMAT ERRER0000ET  MAKEREERRE -
SERRES 305
10,000% 7

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10 EENBARI@
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)

258
54 RkAR  mEER
§0ARE  BE REEED

AL/ ALY VEER  HEER EER
£R RtRREEH BERRAHE IERRRERMY (%) HBI(%) SAI(%)
Universe Entertainment Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 Investment in films - 100% -

limited liability production and licensing
company of film rights in
Hong Kong
STREERAT ABRRES ERRRA2ET RABYRERRILEY
EREAAT Wi B
Universe (China) Development Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Investment holding in Hong - 100% -
Limited ligbility company Kong and investment in
television series
production in the
Peaple’s Republic of
China ("PRC")
SRR ARARAR Bk ARELAT ERRRR2ET REBR B8 RRE

T
REARANA(RE)

Globalink Advertising Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Advertising agent for the - 100% -
liahility company Group in Hong Kong
Eh BRELLA ERRRR2ET ASEVEERE BE

Universe International Technology ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for the - 100% -
Limited liability company Group in Hong Kong

STERHRARAR BE BREEAT ERRBA2ET AEEZRERE B4

Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100% -
Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong

ETEAEEARAA Eh BRELAT ERRRAI0ET ERRNEA B

Films Station Production Limited*  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Films production in - 100% -

liability company Hong Kong

Bt BRELAA ERRRA2ET YR BR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TEMBAR @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRRE ¥E  BEBEW
AL/ ALY VEER  HEER EER
£R RtRREEH BERRAHE IERRRERMY (%) HBI(%) SAI(%)
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Licensing and sub-ficensing - 100% -
liahility company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
STREERAT Eh BRELAT ERRRA2ET &w&wa% i
HRREREE &%
Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HKS2 Sub-icensing of film rights - 100% -
Limited* ligbility company in Hong Kong
&% ARRILA ERRBRAZET BREYWE B
Wide Avenue Holdings Limited* ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in the 100% - -
limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
iBRUES . ERRBERET RESR  EBRAES
EREAAT
Universe Martix Films Investment  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films - 100% -
Limited liahility company production
ETUREYREABRAA B% BRELLA ERRBERET REETHE
STAREEETEA0R) PRC, limited liabilty RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in - 100% -
BRAR company the PRC
"t BREALT ARE1,000,0007 #1188  hE
FFHEREIRERAF PRC, limited liability RMB3,000,000 Advertising agent for S 100% S
company the Group in PRC
HE - ARRILT AR3,000,0007 REBZEERE  HE
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in the 100% - -
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability British Virgin Islands
company
BIREU BRIERAT iBRNES . ERRRA100%T RESR  RERTES
EREAAT
e |
vl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TEMBAR @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRRE ¥E  BEBEW
AL/ ALY VEER  HEER EER
£R RtRREEH BERRAHE IERRRERMY (%) HBI(%) SAI(%)
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100% -
limited liability
company
K ERERAT ARRAES ERRRAIET E5RE
BREFAA
Fragrant River Finance Group The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BIHBEEERAA iBRUES EBRRER100ET REBR - B
EREAAR
Fragrant River Asia Investment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited limited liability Hong Kong
company
BIDNREBRAR iBRUES ERRRA100%T REBR - B
EREAAR
Urban King Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
SEAERERLA iBRUES ERRRA100%T REBR - Bk
EREAAR
Precise Reach Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
REXEERAT iBRUES ERRRA100%T REBR - Bk
EREAAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10 TEMBAR @

Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)
H&E
Efh HftHE  mEER
BRRRE ¥E  BEBEW
AL/ ALY VEER  HEER EER
£R RtRREEH BERRAHE IERRRERMY (%) HBI(%) SAI(%)
Great Harbour Enterprises Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US§100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
RAKARDA iBENES ERERER100ET REBR - B
BREFAA
Gold Summit International Limited  The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
BEERARAT iBRUES EBRER100ET REBR - B
EREALR
Rising Fame International Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong
company
REERERAT iBRUES . ERRER100ET REBR - B
EREAAR
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability Hong Kong, British Virgin
company Islands and the PRC
STEERRAA iBRUES . ERRBERET RERR Bk
EREAAR ABRUESRPE
Universe Intenational Holdings Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Limited liahility company Hong Kong
STERERERAR Bk BRELAT LERRAI00AT REBR B
China Jianxin Credit Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Money lending in - 100% -
Limited liability company Hong Kong
TEREEERRAA BE BRELAT EBRREA100ET HE -
1
v
EFRE(LRBMERAT —E-TEEH 253 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

R

Formex Financial Press Limited
FaHEER AR AR

Fragrant River Entertainment
Investment Limited
BIRERERRAA

Rising Fame Investment Limited

FAREARLT

Fine Ocean Limited

BUARAT

Winston Asia Limited*

Universe Watch and Jewellery
Group Co Ltd
FTRENESEERAA

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

R ANY AL
REARERN

Hong Kong, limited
liahility company

Bf BRELAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BRRLLA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
ER BRELAT

Hong Kong, limited
ligbility company
Bh BRELLA

The British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

ABRRES
BREAAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BE - BRELAA

Particulars of
issued share capital

BRIRAFE
Ordlinary HK$100

ERRBER008T
Ordinary HK$100
ERRER00ET
Ordinary HK$3,000,000

bt
3,000,000 7C

Ordinary HK$5,000,001

LRRER
5,000,001% T

Ordinary US83,319

LRRRAIN9ET

Ordinary HK$73,944,225

LRRRA
73,944 2055

10 EENBE L@

Principal
activities and
place of operation

IERRRERMY
Financial printing services

in Hong Kong
SRR R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBR B

Securities investments

E5RE

Optical shops

REE

Investment holding in
Hong Kong and the PRC

REmR FARTE

Investment holding in

Hong Kong and the PRC
RESR - BERTE

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Proportion
of ordinary
shares
directly
held by
parent (%)

B
BATRE
EER
B (%)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares
held by
other group
entities
(%)

H&E
Httma
b2
MERR
S (%)

100%

100%

100%

90%

100%

100%

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests (%)

LR
RRERH
EER
(%)

10%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

10 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 10 EENBARI@
Proportion
Proportion  of ordinary  Proportion
of ordinary shares  of ordinary
shares heldby  shares held
Place of incorporation/ Principal directly  other group by non-
establishment and kind ~ Particulars of activities and held by entities  controlling
Name of legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%) (%) interests (%)

258
54 RkAR  mEER
§0ARE  BE REEED

AMEYL/ AL VEER  HEER LaEk
£R REEEER BERRAHE IERRRERMY 5% HBI(%) SAI(%)
RITHEBRERAR PRC, limited iabilty Ordinary RMB27,500,000  Wholesale and retail of - 100% =

company watches and optical
products in the PRC
HE - ARRIAT LERRA HENTEERR
AR27,500,0007C REER o
EREA(RIARARY PRC, limited iabilty Ordinary HK$9,000,000  Wholesale and retail of - 100% =
company watches in the PRC
HE - ARRIAT LERRA BENTEEE
9,000,000% T
Garona (HK) Limited* Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$300,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
liability company watches in Hong Kong

&% ARALAA ERRRA000ET  HENTEER ER

China Jianxin Financial Services Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$34,900,000  Securities brokerage and - 100% -
Limited liability company margin financing
(The business was
discontinued during
the year ended
30th June 2018}
hEREERREARLA &% BRELLT ERRER ERBLRARRE
34,900,007 Fxmnez
ZE-\E~A=1H
EEBRID)
i No registered Chinese name for the companies * FAYNCING i3l =y
. No registered English name for the companies u FAYNCINE 3Ry

BEREX(CEMERAT —T-TFEH 255 M9




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REFE QT 2R
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Cost of investments in associates, BERE DT KA
unlisted FELET 42,314 42,314
Share of post-acquisition profits FEME BB 18 s T 1,197 2,282
Less: Disposal (Note (i) s BB EE (M) (35,530) -
Less: Accumulated impairment loss  J& : 25TEIEEIE (38,758) (38,758)
Less: Dividend received B BIARE (4,753) (4,753)
Derecognised accumulated EELESEKRIEERER
impairment loss due to disposal BB BB (BT EE (i)
(Note (i) 35,530 =
- 1,085
Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of RBERRREBSHE QR ZFHBER
the reporting period are as follows: T
Place of Principal place  Proportion of registered
Name of entity incorporation of business capital held by the Group  Principal activity Note
AEBHEL
ERER AL IEEEHY EREALA TEER i3
2020 2019
SRS _TNF
Glory International Entertainment British Virgin Hong Kong - 49%  Advertising, promotion, provision (i)
Limited ("Glory International ) Islands {“BVI") of public relations services,
holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film
production and other cultural
events
VRERREERLA(VRER])  HERRES & BERE HE RELH
(ZBRa#EE]) Tl ABREREQEL
B EFREREN
Xt /EEU
Hong Kong Optical Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 34.5% 345%  Trading, wholesaling and (i)
("HK Optical ") retailing of optical products
EAXEREARAA(KERE) BA & 8% HERTERRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Glory International operates in Hong Kong and is engaged
in the provision of advertising, promotion, provision of
public relations services, holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film production and other cultural
events.

During the year ended 30th June 2019, in view of the
financial performance of Glory International, the Group
performed an impairment assessment on its investment
in Glory International whereby the recoverable amount
of HK$1,085,000 of Glory International was determined
based on fair value less cost to sale by reference to
sharing of net asset value of Glory International. Following
the impairment assessment, an amount of approximately
HK$1,065,000 was recognised as impairment loss in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the year ended 30th June 2019.

Glory International has been loss-making in recent years.
As at 31st December 2019, Glory International recorded
net liabilities of approximately HK$1,957,000. The Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to assess the
fair value of the Glory International by the Adjusted Net
Assets Value method. Based on the business valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer which
was not connected with the Group, the fair value of a
49% equity interest in the Glory International as at 31st
December 2019 is nil.

On 4th March 2020, the shareholders of Glory International
offered a share repurchase proposal, pursuant to the
proposal, four shareholders had agreed to purchase the
49% equity interests of Glory International held by the
Group in full at a consideration of HK$4.

On 5th March 2020, the disposal of the 49% equity
interest of Glory International was approved through a
resolution in writing of all directors of the Group.

Upon the completion of the disposal on 9th March
2020, the corresponding interest in the associate of
HK$35,530,000 and the accumulated impairment of
HK$35,530,000 were derecognised.

The investment in HK Optical was fully impaired as at
30th June 2020 and 2019 and the Group discontinued
recognising its share of accumulated losses during the
years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019 as the Group's
share of losses of HK Optical exceeded its interest in the
associate.
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e M BB RME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RREE

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 11 REZE QR 2R @
Summarised financial information of material FEBENT 2 EER
associates Bz
Summarised financial information of the material REeABR EMNAREZEFEHAE I
associate, adjusted for any differences in accounting ERGAM B HRRTNEEE®ETAD
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the MNEZEBERRIVBERBERZ W
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below: T
Glory International TR E PR

2019

—T-hEF

HK$'000

Gross amounts of the associate's NSk FET
Non-current assets FERBEE 3,512
Current assets MENVEE 8,018
Non-current liabilities FERBEE -
Current liabilities TEEE (9,316)
Dividend received from the associate during the year SR Y B & A R AR B -
Revenue gy 3,756
Loss for the year FREE (1,480)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEANE =
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHSERHE (1,480)

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 11 REZE QR 2 ER @
Summarised financial information of material FEBENR 2HBER
associates (Continued) BE @
Glory International (Continued) FRBIRR (&
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial bt 2 BB BN ARG B S R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in BRORBE A Em c REENSH
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial B -
statements:
2019
—h&E
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of Glory International KRR 2 FEE 2,214
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBRURBRER 2 A EERS
interest in Glory International Lo 151 49%
1,085
Goodwill [EES 35,531
36,616
Impairment loss VEREL S (35,531)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBERKIBER 2 w2 IREE
Glory International 1,085
BFRECERBERAR —ZT_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 1 REERQNTZER
Aggregate information of associates that is not [ERIFEE R E AR ZEA
individually material ‘xR
HK Optical EERE
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
The unrecognised share of (loss)/profit P& N R RERZ
of associates e (B518), & (1,561) 563
The cumulative unrecognised B N R BT RER
share of loss of associates FE(h A (1,838) (277)

Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group's interests in these
associates

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity

AEBRZEFHE QA
Z W BB AR

method in these consolidated financial statements. MEmEYIER o
12 AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE 12 FEURBEA(S— R
FRIE
The amount due from/to an associate is unsecured, FE U FE < — I EE 5

interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximates its

fair value.

Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

13 ZERE sz A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHRR SESHRTAENERBERN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period I
are as follows:
As at 30th June 2020 R-ZZE_ZFFA=1H
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit  at amortised
or loss cost Total
ERBRE BEHEKA
BALEAE SR
LERMEE CREE B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET THERT
Other financial assets HibemaE 10,008 = 10,008
Trading securities RGES 3,300 = 3,300
Accounts receivable FEUERR = 73,105 73,105
Financial assets included in FAIERET S - BN
“deposits paid, prepayments PO R A U FRIE
and other receivables” ZERBE = 19,549 19,549
Loans receivable FIER = 7,216 7,216
Amount due from an associate FEI— B & RN R 2 B = 53 53
Bank balances and cash RTEHRERS
- trust accounts - ERERP = 780 780
Time deposits with maturity over REABIISHEBB=MAZ
three months at acquisition EHER = 108,640 108,640
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEY = 106,949 106,949
13,308 316,292 329,600

EFREVLEBERLQF

ZECTEFR

4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 13 BB 2T Ew®

(Continued)
As at 30th June 2020 (continued) RZZEZTEFXH=1TH®
Financial Liabilities Ea A=A
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- Contingent amortised
consideration cost Total
AFEAR DS £2]o%N
ZERERE 5Bk
- HAKE SHBE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 FH5 FH7
Accounts payable FERTER R = 19,301 19,301
Financial liabilities included in STATE TR
"other payables and accrued charges"” RFEF ]
and "deposits received” KB 2]
ZERaR - 160,950 160,950
Lease liabilities MEERE = 15,475 15,475
Contingent consideration payable B SHAKE 20,400 = 20,400
20,400 195,726 216,126
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 13 BERES 2EMIAEm@

(Continued)
As at 30th June 2019 R-_ZE—-NFRA=1H
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial
assets
measured at Financial
fair value assets
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BEBR KA
BATEAR il
JEREE SREE Faks)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THT THT
Other financial assets HtemEE 9,574 = 9,574
Trading securities R5EH 8,691 = 8,691
Accounts receivable JEUTHR R - 11,161
Financial assets included in FAIERET S - BN
“deposits paid, prepayments IR R H MR FR
and other receivables” LEREE = 81,143 81,143
Loans receivable EWER = 61,630 61,630
Loan to an associate BT —HBERAZ
B - 4,288 4,288
Bank balances and cash BIEBRERS
- trust accounts - 55ERP = 869 869
Cash and cash equivalents ReLALEEY = 178,228 178,228
18,265 337,319 355,584

BRRA(CEEERAT —E-TEER 263




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 13 BEE S 2EMIAEm®

(Continued)
As at 30th June 2019 (Continued) RZZFE—NLFNA=TH®
Financial Liabilities ==
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- Contingent amortised
consideration cost Total
BBBERE
AEEAR LB S PR AR
JERAE i
- HARE SREE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TET TET
Accounts payable FERTER R = 10,821 10,821
Amount due to an associate e — FW‘M“ = 2,725 2,725
Financial liabilities included in ATATE AR 508
"other payables and accrued charges” RIER ]
and “deposits received” RIEMETE]
ZeRAR - 105,313 105,313
Obligations under finance lease RMEMERIE - 7 7
Contingent consideration payable [EfRSAKE 20,400 = 20,400
20,400 118,866 139,266
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e M BB RME

14 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND

14 BF£ > FAEFEREM

OTHER RECEIVABLES FE Y k18
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
R=B=BF RKN_ZE-NF
NA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current portion JE BPHA &R
Rental deposit Heile 407 1,596
At 30th June RA<A=1+H 407 1,596
Current portion BRERER &
Prepayments TEfRTFRIE 1,878 7,954
Interest receivable JE MR B, 1,004 429
Amounts due from joint operation FEW & & TE R RIE
partners 1,564 28,941
Rental deposits and other deposits & &I & R EMETE 4,507 11,929
Other receivables H b e sk A 12,162 39,123
Less: loss allowance B BEEE (95) (875)
At 30th June RAA=+H 21,020 87,501

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense after more than one
year is approximately HK$407,000 (2019: HK$1,596,000).
All of the other deposits paid, prepayments and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense within one year.

NEBIBEIAS R — F % U = R A H
THEMET SR A407,0008 7T

—Z=— N4 11,596,000/ 7T)

- TAH

BN E - BAFKIEARE MR IR
BIRAR —FAKR O HER B -

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 15 BEEHEBEEERERE

(a) The movements in deferred tax assets and (a) PAFER  ELEHRIE
liahilities during the year are as follows: BENBEBEZE
mT
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Tax losses Total
HIEEE Febec]
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1st July 2018 RZE—N\F+A—H 274 274
Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 67 67
At 30th June 2019 and RZZE—NFAA=+HK
1st July 2019 —ZE-NFtHA—H 341 341
Charge to profit or loss RIBFHIBR (70) (70)
At 30th June 2020 NZEZTFA=1H 271 271
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Total

IEBIETE W

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1st July 2018 RZZE—-N\F+H—H (440) (440)

Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 350 350
At 30th June 2019 and RZZE—NFEAA=+HK

1st July 2019 —E-NFtHA—H (90) (90)

Credit to profit or loss RIEEFETA 6 6

At 30th June 2020 R-ZE-_FTF,XA=1+H (84) (84)

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 15

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

The movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year are as follows:
(Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated balance sheet. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

IEFE

(a)

e M BB RME

ERREEREBE@®

RAFEER @ ELEFIA
BERBEZE
N

RERAMTME - ETECHES

ERBFEERGEEEABRANK
o TRAMMBHRE BAME A
AEBREHRBEROMN

2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Net deferred tax assets REEEEBBERA
recognised in the WRAEERIBEE
consolidated balance sheet HRE 271 341
Net deferred tax liabilities R EEBBERNA
recognised in the EROEERIBEE
consolidated balance sheet HEE (84) (90)
187 251

Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax
losses carried forward are to be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$360,440,000 (2019: HK$312,014,000) as at
30th June 2020 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the above tax
losses, approximately HK$32,902,000 (2019:
HK$25,017,000) can only be carried forward for a
maximum period of five years. Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

=)

=T

(b)

ERAEARPBATBEBRZETH
HEEEENRKERRBEN
HAREHEABARABRZER
T TR o

RARARICEFR A TN - REE
WA -_E-_ZEF,A=1THZHH
THE51849360,440,0008 L (==
fﬁﬁ © 312,014,000/ 7T) #E R

BELERBEE » FAllFHEEES
#932,902,0008 (=T — N5 :
25,017,000 L) R R 4E s & %
ﬁizﬁﬁﬁﬁ E{th 518 AL S0 4 IR B
b

RE(EEBARDT —ZE_TFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 16

Ht R EmEE

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
RZE-ZF RZZT—NF
ANA=1H ~NAZ=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5T FET TFET
Financial assets measured at fair ZERBEZEZ DA FEAR
value through profit or loss ZEe@MEE
Unlisted investment funds JELEMIEES 322 317
Unlisted limited partnership FLEMBEREBLE 1,350 7,199
Derivative financial instruments PTEsmT A (i) 8,336 2,058
10,008 9,574
Notes: st -
(i) As at 30th June 2020 and 30th June 2019, unlisted (i) R-_E-_ZEFFAZTHER=Z—

investment funds included the equity securities issued
by a private equity fund (the “Fund”) with a carrying
amount of HK$322,000 and HK$317,000 respectively.
The Fund was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability in February 2014 and principally engaged
in investing in social media businesses since 2015. The
Group subscripted for the shares of the Fund (the “Fund
Shares”) since the year ended 30th June 2015 with an
aggregate consideration of HK$19,493,000. The manager
of the Fund (the “Fund Manager”) had been delegated
authority to manage the Fund.

Since the subscription of the Fund Shares by the Group,
the fair value of the Fund significantly decreased because
of the under performance of the Fund investment. As
informed by the Fund Manager in December 2018, in view
of the real litigation risks and regulatory risks surrounding
the Fund Manager's holding company and the fact that the
underlying investment was loss making, the Fund Manager
decided to divest the underlying investment held by the
Fund at a price significantly below the its investment cost.
In addition, a fellow subsidiary of the Fund Manager (the
“Purchaser”) also agreed to provide a conditional offer (the
“Offer”) to buy-back the Fund Shares held by the Group
at a consideration of approximately HK$17.8 million by
reference to the Group's share of net assets of the Fund
as at 31st December 2017.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

NERNRA=1+80  FELHHREES
(RE—BEABERAES((EE)HT
ZBAFESR) 2 RHEESD B A322,000
BT N317,00087L - LR -F
—mME-_AEHSHEFMKYZE
BATF A E—AFERIBRER
ERAREREER ASEEHE=
E-—RAENA=TBFEEREER
SZ2BH(TESKRMD])  RERESR
19,493,000/ 7L - He 2 KB ([HE LK
BEEREEEES -

BASERBESROHUE  Ee 2
RFPEREZTR REZESKRER
BARE - BNESEER_FT-N\F
ToAAE  ERNEHRESKER
A m 2 EEF AR KR N EE R A
REELHBARERGER E2K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

16 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIALASSETS 16 HfttFERBERmEE @

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MisE : (88)

() (Continued) (IE-))
On 1st March 2019, the Group accepted the Offer RZE—NF=ZA—8  xE£EESX
to dispose of the Fund Shares at a consideration of B4 URELI78EBETHEES
approximately HK$17.8 million (the “Disposal”). The B (THESE]D - BHEDBIE34E
Purchaser was to settle the consideration of the Disposal ARSI NEEETEZRETFEAE
to the Group in cash by 34 monthly instalments, whereby (i) B - HA(i)491,483,0008 AR -Z
approximately HK$1,483,000 was to be paid on or before —AE=AZ+ N Bz A Kdii)
29th March 2019 and (ii) approximately HK$494,000 #)494,0008 TLER T —NEFHNAZE
on or before the last business day of each consecutive ZE I F+ZARBAZREEE
month from April 2019 to December 2021. Completion A2 A - REF BRI L il i
of the Disposal is conditional upon the Purchaser having RBYEINEESHE2RETAEE
paid the consideration of the Disposal to the Group in full % HEFBEAEEK MEERKRH
in accordance with the schedule described above, and BRAEERHFKRIEESFSHE2NRE
the Fund Shares will be transferred to the Purchaser on BREETES - ARBIESERRB B
receipt of the consideration of the Disposal in full by the AT HEBR—MITEEH - UKRB%
Group. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RETRELEESRD - HEER
arrangement constitute a derivatives contract to dispose of ANEeRTIA(ITEERmIAD - R
the Fund Shares at a fixed consideration in the future and BEASESEEAENEIEEMGLE
should be recognised as a derivative financial instrument MERMEKHERS  TETESE
("DFI"). Based on the business valuation report issued KR HERB N AFEL /1558
by an independent professional valuer not connected BT miTASRmITANKAEDD
with the Group, the fair value of the derivative contract KHNBREEE R - TTRRERY
was approximately HK$15.5 million at the date of initial SHERENRAFEEEXZ S ERBN
recognition and the carrying amount of DFI is net of the EHEATALMES - BiEH ARG
deferred day one gain arising from the difference between RZE-—NhE=-RE_F=_—F+=
its fair value at initial recognition and its transaction price A EAR A #E S -

of HK$NIl. The deferred day one gain is amortised over the
period from March 2019 to December 2021.

(i) During the year ended 30th June 2020, the net gain in fair (i) #HEZZFE-_ZFEFA=+HILFE
value of the unlisted investment fund of approximately FEMKEESE A $1§Hﬁlm@%’ﬁ%’]
HK$5,000 and net loss in the fair value of the unlisted 50008t RIELTEREGBRLEZR
limited partnership of approximately HK$4,319,000 FEEIBF5E474,319,000/ 8 TR E
were recognised in the consolidated statement of 2HERERNERER -

comprehensive income.

(i)~ During the year ended 30th June 2019, the net loss in fair (i) BEZZT-AFARAZ=ZTAHLEE
value of the unlisted investment fund of approximately FEETEEESHAQ ?@Eﬁ;ﬁ@‘%ﬁ%’]
HK$732,000 and net loss in the fair value of the unlisted 732,000 T I FTEREBEEN
limited partnership of approximately HK$19,127,000 NFEEIEFEELI19,127,00078 LA 4R
were recognised in the consolidated statement of AEEBERANERR -

comprehensive income.

XIEEBBERAR ZTTFEFH

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

17 TRADING SECURITIES 17 R5FESH

2020 2019
e —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT

Listed equity securities — ETRAFS -FHIEER
held for trading 3,300 8,691
Market value of listed securities EmEScHE 3,300 8,691

Trading Securities are presented within ‘operating
activities’ as part of changes in working capital in the
consolidated statement of cash flows (Note 45).

As at 30th June 2020, the trading securities of
HK$3,300,000 (2019: approximately HK$8,691,000)
represents listed equity securities suspended from
trading. The fair value of those securities is determined
based on valuation techniques and input as stated in note
3.3(i)(d).

EALBESEHN—Bn  XHHFFH
WABAERERERANZIEEEE (M
$¥45) o

RZE-_ZTFXNA=Z+TH P&
43,300,000 c(ZF—NLF 4
8,691,000 ) EEEFEEE 2 EK
KEHR - ZEFBHFZAFEDIREN T
3.3()(d) Tt 2 (HE A AR ABEE

on

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

18 SEXEBER

AEEBFUETAEERBTH  UD
RIEERBEITMBEREER(ZZE—N
F ) +ABPER(CE—NEF
TR AR ABAKE (T —NEF
—8B) c AEBMNZERLEBRPEAN
F5%ZE90%(ZZF—NF : 5% 290%)
22X NZITETENA=T

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute two television
series (2019: four), sixteen films (2019: nineteen) and
five webisodes (2019: one) respectively. The Group has
participating interests ranging from 5% to 90% (2019:
from 5% to 90%) in these joint operations. As at 30th

June 2020, the aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
relating to the Group's interests in these joint operation

B ABAREREEA %

=

B ¥
#amF - ENERAMBRRTERAZE

arrangements are as follows: EXABAEBENT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress BRRENEER 2
B 15,605 58,502
Film related deposits B ABE© 29,020 36,429
Accounts receivable and other JFE US2 BR 3 % L b UK
receivables KIE 58,787 9,369
103,412 104,300
Liabilities afE
Accounts payable and other JE A~ BR 3R B2 EL A E A
payables A 9,895 6,565
Deposits received BlkET & 995 28,309
Contract liabilities AHBEE 825 72,231
11,715 107,105
2020 2019
—2-FF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue Uz 143,566 11,206
Expenses EH (79,404) (21,714)
Profit/(loss) after income tax BRATER &R H, (BE) 64,162 (10,508)

=)
=

FREYLEBBRAR

ZECTEFR

4
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e M BRRHE

19 INVENTORIES 19 F8
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Raw materials R 160 186
Finished goods B Gh 10,803 9,031
10,963 9,217

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in consolidated statement of

comprehensive income is as follows:

RRABNE LA NG 2ERERA

FEFEZ MM

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZT-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFECZEEE 41,010 24,634

Write down of inventories FEMR 421 2,679
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & #{U  [2l (Ff 51)

(Note i) (406) (59)

41,025 27,254

Note i:  The amount resulted from the utilisation of obsolete
inventories that were written down in prior years.

Mz FAHESFREDHBERNBEFEM

MHREFE -
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e M BB RME

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20 FEURBRFX
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
. —T-NF
NA=1H ~NAZ=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Accounts receivable arising BERERFTRAME
from securities brokerage ERELEZEREMR !
and margin financing
business:
- Brokers and cash clients (Note a) — &4 MIRE&E P (MizFa) 16 20
~ Margin clients -HFREP = 1,500
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE - (1,500)
Net (Note b) 58 (M 5Eb) - -
16 20
Accounts receivable arising HthEKELE BWNER
from other businesses:

Accounts receivable — others FEURBR I — E A 74,155 16,313
Less: Impairment loss (Note 3.1(b)) & : JE{EEE (M 5E3.1(b) (1,066) (5,172)
NetNoteo) AR 73089 11041
Accounts receivable — net FEUWERR — R 5B 73,105 11,161

FEW AR R < AREE B E N FERE -

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate
their fair values.

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Accounts receivable arising from brokers and cash clients

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from
brokers and cash clients which are past due but not
impaired as of the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

20

FE U BR 7R @)

p

(a)

Rt

BERBREEPELE ZBYFRR

HEMESHKR CafiERREZE
Wi se RIRE B P RN Z Rk D a0
T~

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired I R 58 ER IR AR B - -
Less than 1 month past due wE LR ER - -
More than 1 month past due wHARE B 18 A 16 20
16 20

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
brokers and cash clients, which arise from the securities
brokerage and margin financing business, are within two
days after trade date.

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers. These receivables are secured by
their portfolio of securities. As at 30th June 2020, the
total market value of their portfolios of securities was
approximately HK$3,000 (2019: HK$4,000). Included in
the Group's accounts receivable are cash clients with a
total carrying amount of approximately HK$16,000 (2019:
HK$20,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period but for which the Group has not provided for
impairment as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality. The Group believes that the amounts are
still considered recoverable. No accounts receivable due
from past due cash clients which are not fully secured
by the listed securities of the respective cash clients, are
considered impaired as at 30th June 2020 and 30th June
2019. Accounts receivable due from cash clients bear
interest at commercial rates when they become past due.
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e M BB RME

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 20 FEURBRFX cm)
Notes: (Continued) MizE : (48)

REPES ZBIEERR

(b)  Accounts receivable arising from margin clients (b)

Accounts receivable from margin clients, which arise from
the securities brokerage and margin financing business,
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement
date.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities as
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities
for securities trading. The amount of credit facilities
granted to them is determined by the discounted value
of securities accepted by the Group. Additional funds
or collaterals are required if the outstanding amount
exceeds the discounted value of securities deposited. The
listed securities of the margin clients can be sold at the
Group's discretion to settle any margin call requirements
imposed by their respective securities transactions. As
at 30th June 2020 and 30th June 2019, no collateral was
pledged for accounts receivable from margin clients.
Account receivable due from margin client bear interest at
commercial rate.

Accounts receivable due from margin clients of HK$Nil
(2019: approximately HK$1,500,000) which are not fully
secured by the listed securities of the respective margin
clients are considered impaired as at 30th June 2020.
Impairment loss of approximately HK$1,500,000 (2019:
HK$3,500,000) and HK$Nil (2019: HK$13,000,000) was
recovered and written off respectively during the year
ended 30th June 2020.

No ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from margin
clients is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the business in margin
financing.

KEE@T%%‘M&&HE@%%%WEH&
FEEPERNEERERIREXRE

?—F)?&%)E/AWZKEIEW‘”%?RW
CHAEBBERGZEERE -
TBZ CREFEZEEREBREDNERASE
R BHFUMBEEETE - W RE
}a/f%ﬁtﬁfﬁﬁlz E5H 2 BHIR(EE -
AIREZENNES BTG - FREF
B £ %TEE$EIE’J| HE - B
BEREZBEFX DM ERE
IRBEEERK -RZZT_TF A=
+ERZE-NAFAA=+H IE
HERAFEREPEXNERERR - &
WHFRE P RIIREEFERETE -

FBRFEEFEREBT(ZE—AN
F 1 491,500,000 70) W R A B FF
BEPLTEA2REER KT
TEXNAZTHERBRE: -#ZE
TE-TEXNA=ZTHILFEE  BE
E518491,500,0008 (=T — LF :
3,500,000 L) REBFTL(ZE— N
£ 113,000,000 7T) 7 Bl 2 U =1 K dit
34 o

HRARAREZRS  ENFRBE
ZEBUME - MRk T I 8w RS
BE BUERERTREFPERRER
BEMBRRIIT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Accounts receivable arising from other businesses

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
arising from other businesses, presented based on the
invoice dates or date of revenue recognition:

20

Jﬁ LI& E‘ETA (%)

GEE

(c)

(&)
HAb ST E 4 2 FEUIR R
NTAREZANINEERBHZ

Sl 2 BT E L 2 BUIR R Z BRIk
DT

2020 2019

—EEH —E-NEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

1 to 90 days 1£290H 17,576 8,693
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 297 262
Over 180 days 180H LA E 55,216 2,186
73,089 11,141

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7
days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.
Sales from trading and wholesaling of optical products
and watches products, and provisions of financial printing
services are with credit terms of 0—90 days. Sales to retail
customers are made in cash or via major credit cards.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts receivable arising from other
business are set out in note 3.1(b).

Included in accounts receivable is a receivable for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights, with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB49,365,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,079,000) as at 30th June 2020.
Arbitration is undergoing between the Group and the
customers for this accounts receivable. The director
of the Company obtained legal opinion on the Group's
right to recover the amount and assessed that there is
no recoverability problem for this accounts receivable
and there are no material adverse effect on the business
operation and financial position of the Group as at 30th
June 2020.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

fﬁ%ﬁﬁéuﬂuwﬂ%ﬁﬁ%mieoa?\

o BEMY - BEREREYRE
Zﬁﬁ%ﬁj%uﬂﬁﬁﬂ/KLﬂ c REBEM
LERERE I RILBEZHENRIR
HEEER RS 2 BB A0E908 T
L -RMTZERFHEHURESEAR
BERETEEARET AEEEHE
BEBERERNEERHZERHEE R

EBERIFERTBENEFEL - A&
BHETFETEREEFE -

EEAEENEEBR A MER
FEE@F‘EH&HE $BE%E’J1;TH|§AE’HE
FEBEEHNHIEES Db

FEH&ZEE Il?%b_/\_v_qﬁz/\ﬂ +
AEREEL & AR 49,365,0007T (18
B R 454,079,000/ 7T) Z 8118 31T
BRETAME BEREREFZR
W7 IR - LKEIE?ﬁEZ%JH&
BEREEERPETHE - AQ

$Eaf2!&%luﬂz@ﬁﬁ%%§ﬁz&£ﬁ H)l
BEEER K mUREERY
mOEHmE BHAEER =T
*==¢ﬁﬁ*+52¥%%%§&ﬂﬁ%
HA D 4 B K ANF F 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BB RME

21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21 EBWEF
(a) Loans receivable from third parties a) BWE=FEK
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
R-B-EF RZZT—NF
ANA=t1H ~A=+A
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loans to third parties BRIFE=A2EX 7,475 66,908
Less: loss allowance o BERE (259) (5,278)
7,216 61,630
The maturity profile of the loans  IRIEZIHI B 27| 2 I E X
receivable, based on the BIHERIT ¢
maturity date is as follows:
- Non-current - JERNEA - -
- Current - B &H 7,216 61,630
7,216 61,630

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is

EREFNEEERSTOT

as follows:

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
R-ZE-EF RZT—IF
~A=1+H ~A=+A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Unsecured loans EEPE K
Not past due 3 > 48 HA 5,832 23,710
Less than 30 days past due BHEIB0OR AT = 5,198
31-60 days past due #HI31E60H = 8,000

Secured loans BEBER
Less than 30 days past due BEAB0OHIAT 1,643 =
60-91 days past due #HI60Z=91H = 30,000
7,475 66,908
Less: loss allowance W R ERE (259) (5,278)
7,216 61,630

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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21

(a)

(b)

LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21 EBEWE R
Loans receivable from third parties (continued) a) BWRE=FEZ®@®
Except for unsecured loans receivable from third REWE=-FTEEREX
parties of (i) HK$4,382,000 which is denominated (i)4,382,0008 ST IA AR ®EHE -
in Renminbi, interest bearing and repayable with B RIL W E R E EFEEE
fixed terms agreed (i) HK$Nil (2019: HK$910,000) (NZEBT(ZZE—NF : 910,000/%
which is denominated in Renminbi, interest-free and TAARKEEE - £ ERIZESE
repayable with fixed terms agreed and (i) HK$Nil =FBEMEE FEEE - Ri)
(2019: 1,000,000) which is denominated in Hong ZHET(ZZE— % : 1,000,000%
Kong dollars, interest bearing and repayable with TO)LAETTEE ~ ST ERIRBER
fixed terms agreed, all remaining loans receivable EEFHEEIN - FTESRT 2K
are due from third party customers, which arose FoHARFEZFRBEBNNERES
from the money lending business in Hong Kong, FREEA @ JThLABTLETE « T B RI%
and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, interest BEFREMNEEFHEE -
bearing and repayable with fixed terms agreed with
the customers.
As at 30th June 2020, the secured loan receivables RZZZZTFARA=TH UAR
of HK$1,643,000 which is denominated in WEHE © 5T R RIR W E R E E FH
Renminbi, interest bearing and repayable with BiE 2B ERE 1,643,000
fixed terms agreed is secured by 20% investment BITUAR EM B 220% K E D
share of unreleased film. (As at 30th June 2019, BHEF - (RZT-—NFRA=T
the secured loan receivable of HK$30,000,000 is H - B E Y E 30,000,000/
secured by second mortgage on a property located TTA—BM R BB ENE
in Hong Kong.) I o)
Loan to an associate b) BT —HEBERRILZ
As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
R-ZZB-BF RZZT—hHF
AA=+H ~A=+A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FEx FHET
Loan to an associate, i 1) /NG
unsecured ZE - EEE (i) 4,502 5,204
Less: Impairment Loss W OREEE (4,502) (916)
= 4,288
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

Loan to an associate (Continued)

The maturity profile of the loan to an associate,
based on maturity date is as follows:

- SERNER (BT AE)

— Non-current (Note (i)

()  The unsecured loan to HK Optical is
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
term of repayment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each
balance sheet date is the carrying amount of the
loans receivable.

All the loans receivable from third parties are
entered with contractual maturity within 1 to 2
years. The Group seeks to maintain tight control
over its loans receivable in order to minimise credit
risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’
financial positions.

Loans receivable from third parties are bearing
interest at rates ranging from 8.5% to 12% per
annum (2019: 3% to 18% per annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$7,889,000
(2019: HK$7,687,000) has been recognised
in ‘revenue’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

21

=)

=T

e M BB RME

Jﬁqﬂgz A (48)

(b)

- I /NI

B o
H K (#8)

ST AREEIMEET R A A
A2 ER 7 BERARR -

2020 2019
—g=8F —T A%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB TR

- 4,288

() BFXERFZEEAER
SEER - T EREETE
B -

REBEEABRAYRANEERER
B REWE R BREE

B RRE =T EFFIRI A HEIH
BN F1E29R - AEEHNE
iﬂi%ﬁrﬂ{ﬁ RN AE R A B BT 755K
R RS SRR BAR IE S
WIHMEEH DRERE -

KEE=ZFEREFZENT8.5%
E12%2FEREHE(ZE—N
F:FF3%ZE18%) °

M B A 497,889,000 T (=F—
NE ¢ 7,687,000 70) ERGEAE D
MR 2 [ AR -

RE(EEBARDT —ZE_TFFR
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CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the acquisition
of AP Group during the year ended 30th June 2016
as detailed in note (i) below. Contingent consideration
receivable is measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The movement of the fair value of
contingent consideration receivable is as follows:

22

W ARE

EWHAREBZAFEEEANBEEF
—ANERNAZTELEFERESHEE
ZREZAEEB & FERGHRT
SCBFEE()) o FEMSK AR ER RE BARIE
NEEHE - BRSARBATECE
E) N

2020 2019
= e & —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

At fair value: BAFYE
At beginning of the year REY] = 3,796
Fair value change NEEEE) = (3,796)
At end of the year RER - -

Note: o5 -

(i) Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
in relation to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, the vendors shall, and the
guarantors shall procure the vendors to, pay to the Group
the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

“A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP"” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

i HREZRHE

BREREBEHEETLZEEW
# O MEVHEEA T RF-HA—
ARz —+F+-_A=+—H
LHREZBEZESBRREEN IR
16,000,000/ 7T + BIE 75 fE R AE R AJE
fR1EE HARE Tt A5 1m A 5 B S A
AReR(HAESED

A = 20,400,000/ 7T — (NP/2) x 5x 51%

Hep

[AIFBAR TTRHEZ AR S 2 8E
54

INPJHEE =T —A"F—A—HREZ
T—+tF+_A=+—HLHHEZH
FFEE - WEFFEAEE  AEF
TREEERAGES o
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e M BB RME

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 22 FEWSHAKE@®
RECEIVABLE (continued)
The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable ERKARER_ZE=_FFA=+H
as at 30th June 2020 is determined based on the ZRAFEUARRBERE(ZZT—HLF : 1
valuation performed by the director of the Company (2019: EDEITHHBERZE - AT ENEFIBEH
same). Details of fair value measurement are set out in RHIE3.3
note 3.3.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH — 23 RITHEERKRIRE -
TRUST ACCOUNTS SR
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with AEBRFBRIETHRBILIELERS
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its LWFMERRXKARTEENTRR
normal course of business. These clients’ monies are o ZEXFPHREGFTHN— @A £
maintained in one or more trust accounts. The Group has EARP #HRAEEAHEPRIEE
recognised the corresponding amount in accounts payable ZEAIEMBAMAZEET  WFRE
to the respective customers in current liabilities section AR PEREENENERER AEEH
as the Group is liable for any loss or misappropriation TEEAEFPRIBEEEERFER - 5
of clients’ monies. The Group is not allowed to use the ARFHIRITEBRIBEEEFRBER
clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The trust PMIETHESRBE(EFRIE)EBFTR
accounts bank balances are restricted and governed by MZEBRE
the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20 RERBASZEBYURK
TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER BANIHAEB=EAZ
THREE MONTHS AT ACQUISITION I
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Cash at bank RITIFH 106,817 178,054
Cash in hand FEE® 132 174
Time deposits EHFR 108,640 =
Total cash and bank balances W& MIRTTHEBARE 215,589 178,228
Less: Time deposits with maturity over & : RAEEARZIHI B BB
three months at acquisition =8 Az TH8FER (108,640) =
Cash and cash equivalents and RekReFEMUR
consolidated statement of RERERER
cash flows 106,949 178,228

EFREVLEBERLQF

¥

ZECTEFR

281 S+

0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24 BERREEZEYWURRN

TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER BAREZIHIEEB=EA 2
THREE MONTHS AT ACQUISITION (Continued) EHFR @
Included in the cash and bank balances at 30th June 2020 —ECEFANAZTHZRE RIRTTE
was a total sum being the equivalent of approximately FRIE MR FEE PR 455,725,000 T (=&
HK$55,725,000 (2019: HK$48,649,000) which was —JL9F : 48,649,000 ) FIE - T8
maintained in mainland China and is subject to foreign A EIRRE + SZHMEE SHEBIFTIR ©

exchange control regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FEHRREA B RESABITEDZR X
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for EZFHAEGE c REASEYIE
varying periods depending on the cash requirements EZHF BRI EFE 2 EEFER
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time I EREVR TR E BT RFEGFTE 27
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with B o RITHESRTFERRT BEE R AL K
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. EERIFZIRIT -
25 SHARE CAPITAL 2% PRI
2020 2019
et 35 —T-NF
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RHEE EE ROHE mEE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR’ BT Fh% FHET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of 20018 T2
HK$0.01 each L@ 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
Ordinary shares of FR0.01BTZ
HK$0.01 each LA 906,632 9,066 906,632 9,066
There are no movements in the issued share capital of ARNEREBEE_E_FEFR_FT—NF
the Company during the years ended 30th June 2020 and ANAZTRLEFEEZEETRARES
2019. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted
on 2nd December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
share option schemes include the Company's directors,
including non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the
Group or any invested entity, holders of securities of
the Group or any invested entity and persons or entities
providing research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity. According to
the provision of the Share Option Scheme, share options
granted during the term of the Share Option Scheme
and remaining unexercised immediately prior to the end
thereof shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant notwithstanding the expiry of
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is
settled in gross shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Scheme, a share option granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or to any of their associates are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the directors,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years
from the dates of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in
the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined
by the directors at their sole discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is determined by the directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There are no share options outstanding during the years
ended 30th June 2020 and 2019.
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND 21 BRiM&RE - HitfR R

ACCUMULATED LOSSES AITEE
(a) Group a) A&EE
Other reserves
HibRs
Available-
for-sale
Reserves investment
Share arisingon  Reorganisation reserve  Translation ~ Contributed Accumulated
Premium  consolidation reserve  (recycling) reserve surplus  Sub-total losses Total
e
G4ER RERE
REE  FERE EAQRE (TRE)  EXGE  REEH Nt BiER ]
(Note ) (Noteii)  (Notev) (Note i) (Note iv)
(Hi3t) (M&E) (W& (HeEii) (Ht&Eiv)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
Tin TR Tér  TEn Tin Tér  TEn Tér  TEn

At st July 2018 RZF-NEtA-A 928,358 87 60,577 6,629 (512) - 67,565 (88,094) 907,829
Impact on iitial applcation of HKFRS 9 B RER BG5S
Pl 2 - - - (6,629) - - 16,629) (21 (6,650
At st July 2018 RZE-NEtA-A 928,358 87 60,577 - (512) - 60,936 (88,115) 901,179
Reduction of shares premium HIRRAEE (893,345 S S = S 893,345 893345 o S
Dividend peid EfiRE = - - - - (0795 (407988) - (407,98)
Currency translation difference BHREEE - - = = m = 1 = m
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (121,200 (121,200)
At30th June 2019 and 1stJuly 2019 R-E-NERA=THER
“E-N\FtA-H 35,013 871 60577 - (341) 485360  B46A6T  (209315) 372,165
Currency translation difference BRRERE - = S = 1528 3 1528 3 1528
Loss for the year FREE S S - = S S = (27,063)  (27,083)
At 30th June 2020 RZZ-ZERAZTR 35,013 87 60,577 - 1,187 485,360 547,99 (236378) 346,630
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at izt : ANEBER-_Z—HE+A
1st July 2019 using the modified retrospective —BERETENEYIRE
approach. Under this approach, comparative BEEMBRELERF16
information is not restated and there is no net g o LI AET AR
effect on the opening balance of the Group's TFEIIREAEBRR-Z
equity as at 1st July 2019. See note 2.1(i). —hWhE+A—BZ2REZHEY)
ERBEIEE  AME
2.1() °
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Bt B 3R R Y

27 R &
Z2itEiE®

8 - R

Company (b) AN 7]
Other reserves
EfbifE
Share  Contributed Reorganisation Accumulated
Premium Surplus reserve Sub-total losses Total
RAEE E4ER EQRE it ZithE a5
(Note i) (Note iv) (Note ii)
(Hrsti) (H&tiv) (Kt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tbn T T T
At 1st July 2018 RZE-\E+A-A 928,358 51,852 60,677 112,429 (264,454) 776,333
Reduction of share premium AR ER 893,345) 893,345 = 893,345 S =
Special interim dividend paid ERRHIRERS = (407,985 - 407,985) - (407,985)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (158,986) (158,986)
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NEXA=TH 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (423,440) 209,362
Loss for the year ERER - - = = (42,097) (42,097)
At 30th June 2020 RZZZZE/A=TH 35,013 537,212 60,577 597,789 (465,537) 167,265
Nature and purposes of the reserves c) REzHEERASR

(i)  Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981. The share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
owners of the Company in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the reduction in share capital
of the Company pursuant to 2015
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital
Reorganisation.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2.7.

Contributed surplus

The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group
represents (i) the amount transferred from
the share premium of HK$893,345,000 as
approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting on 17th September 2018,
less (ii) the distribution of special dividends of
HK$407,985,000 during the year ended 30th
June 2019.

e M BB RME

21 BRDEE - HhFEER
ZitEEBE @

(c) EEwZMEERBE®
(i) EARB

REBzE-BREFHEEREC
T-hAFRAEAR-T—
NERAEBAERAREZ
PR o

(i) BE R fEE
EXREREMERE RS
EGMBRREEZELE
B o ZHBREM 2.7
SETBREE -

(iv) BREER
AEH

AREBZEHRBHR()EE
RZZE—-—NEFEhLA+tBEZ
RERR NS EHEER S
%17 7 (8 893,345,000 7T 2
S8 ORNBEE_ZT—NLF
ANA=ZTRIEFEZFRRK
B 5ik407,985,0007 7T °

3 2
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27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER RESERVES AND
ACCUMULATED LOSSES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus (Continued
The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28th June 1999. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

()  the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the above contributed surplus
is reclassified into its components of reserves
of the underlying subsidiaries.

Available-for-sale investment reserve
(recycling)

Prior to 1st July 2018, the available-for-sale
investment reserve (recycling) comprises
the cumulative net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period in accordance with
HKAS 39. This amount has been reclassified
to accumulated losses upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 9 at 1st July 2018.

27 R &
Z2itEiE®

it 2 B M A% @)

(c)
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28 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of

transition to HKFRS 16:

e M BB RME

28 HEERE

TRETNER SBERSHRALB
BEBEEMHRELNE1RE A AL
BERERBEZRBANIIHER

30th June 2020 Tst July 2019 (Note) 30th June 2019 (Note)
ZZ-EERA=1H “E-AELA-B(E)  —E-AERASTRED)
Present Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease
payments  payments payments payments payments payments
RIEHE RIEHE RIERE RIERE RERE RERE
AHZRE AR8E [RE I5eE [RhE EEk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THL THL TAL TAL
. Within 1 year L RN e 10057, . 9M4, .. 9888 .. [
After 1 year but within —EREMER
2 years 4,751 4,940 6,761 6,973 - -
After 2 years but within MEERRIFA
5 years 861 891 3,224 3,397 - -
5,612 5,831 9,985 10,370 - -
15,475 15,888 19,399 20,058 7 7
Less: total future interest B ARFIBEY
expenses g (413) (659) =
Present value of lease HEREZRE
liabilities 15,475 19,399 7
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Mzt : AEECFERETEREERER

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward
balances relating to leases previously classified as

finance leases.

Comparative information as at 30th June 2019 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously
classified as finance leases. Further details on the impact
of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.1(i).

BEMBMELRE 165 0 WRHE
“E-NFEA B ZHIERIA
BREMBRBFR G LERNE 175
DHEARZENEZHEAHZHEE
BfE - ZFRECKBER - AR
HHREASHOBABREREZHE
B -

RIB-NFRA=ZTHRZUERE
HMIEES - BEELEMOBERR
EMECHERR - BEEREY
BREENE16RIFEZE—F
BRI E2.0)

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients arising from the securities brokerage and margin
financing business are within two days after the trade
date. Accounts payable to cash clients are repayable
on demand subsequent to settlement date. Accounts
payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does
not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

Accounts and other payables amounting to approximately
HK$780,000 as at 30th June 2020 (2019: HK$869,000)
were payable to clients in respect of the trust and
segregated bank balances received and held for clients
in the ordinary course of conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group does not have a currently
enforceable right to offset these payables with the
deposits placed.

29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 29 MEATERFX
2020 2019
e —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Accounts payable arising from BERLERFTEMEEL
securities brokerage and EEZEAERR
margin financing business:
- cash clients -HeRP 31 113
- margin clients -HFERER 506 516
RTINS - 629
Accounts payable arising from Hih¥KELE ZEMFERR
other businesses 18,764 10,192
19,301 10,821

EFRERTRBERBEEZENR
EEFPEAGEENA/RIZHAEMK - &
NREFTPEFNGEERARIRERE
& BNAREFPERNIZERERE - A
RARREERR  ERAXH 2K
B ERROMALESREIMEE
e I S 3 FR AR AT

REERETXAEERBERARR
WE R3EE ZIEE RBILIRITE ST
5 RIBEZEFAAZTHZENRK
H A B FIEA780,00058 L (—FE— N,
4 : 869,000 L) E FRFE - A -
REBEWEUMTFRZFICEBEZERE
R8T P SR BT TAE ©
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29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued) 29 FEA{FBRFN um)
As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of the R_B_ZBER-_ZE-NFRA=T
accounts payable arising from other businesses based on H REZHHEVNNEMERELECE
invoice date is as follows: NERZRRAITWOT -
2020 2019
—EBEF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
1 t0 90 days 1£290H 16,562 8,080
91 days to 180 days 91HE180H 211 48
Over 180 days 180H A 1,991 2,064
18,764 10,192
All of the accounts payable arising from other business Fr B B A fth 275 2 A Y FE S BR BUTE AT IR
are expected to be settled or recognised as income —FRENIBERABBRARBIRERKE
within one year or are repayable on demand. E o

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 30 HfttfE{[FIERESTXH

2020 2019
i —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Amounts due to joint operators A& RRIBHFIE 76,375 43,579
Accruals for employee benefits EENGHNEETER 4,481 3,862
Other accruals and other payables HfhEst &R R E RS
IE 78,014 27,169
158,870 74,610
¥
BERAX (L EBERAT —B-TEER 291 M€
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31

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the disposal of AP
Group during the year ended 30th June 2017 as detailed
in note (i) below. Contingent consideration payable
is measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The movement of the fair value of contingent
consideration payable is as follows:

At fair value BATE:
At beginning and at end of the year REMRER

Note:
(i) Adjustment to the consideration

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
in relation to the disposal of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“FRECH"), a subsidiary of
the Group shall, and the Company as the guarantor shall
procure FRECH to, pay to the purchaser the adjustment
amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in accordance with
the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 = (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:

"A" means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HKS;
and

“NP"” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

The fair values of contingent consideration payable as
at 30th June 2020 and 2019 are based on the valuation
performed by the directors of the Company. Details of fair
value measurement are set out in note 3.3.

31

N SHANE

B RAREZ ATFEERRBE=T
—FRAS TR EE YR
2 1B BRI B2 % P B R A T SO
FEORERL) o B AR BRI
AFEIE - BERARBATFEZE

g
2020 2019
—B-FF —T-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
TRz THT
20,400 20,400
i
0 REZAE

RERDEEHERTLZER R
B WMEHEEE T -RF—H—
FRE-Z—tF+-A=+—B1
HRAZEECRBRESEN IR
16,000,000/ 7T + AIALENERRE
TTHREESE () BER A B ([BITIREE
XD ERARRERERARRER
TIREX(EME T X HRE TR AN
AEZRERSE(EABREED

A = 20,400,000/ 7T — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Hep

[AIFBABTERIHEZRES R IHE
54

INPJ#EE - ZE—RF-H-BERE—
Z—t+EF+-A=T-HILHBEZE
PR - WaMFEARE  AEN
BT

JENSFARBR-IZE_ZER_T—H
FERNAZTBZAFEUARABESHE
THEESSE - A FEFEFBEHNM
5¥3.3 °
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32 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

e M BB RME

R BHER

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2020 2019
R-ZBEZEBF RZT—I#F
AA=+H NAZ=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FExT FHEIT
Contract liabilities EHAaE
Deposits received for licensing ~ FR BT RE i(a)
of film right from customers BRREDW
WET 96,561 192,607
Receipts in advance of artist BEARLE T E i(b)
entertainment work from e PN=EY=
customers E=E 4 297 297
Receipts in advance of W ER L B 5 P EA R i(c)
wholesale customers - 177
Deposits received for walk-in BURCRETRLRE i(d)
customers for EnTFPHE]&
optical products 539 373
97,397 193,454
Notes: M5 -

i

) Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

a

Licensing of film rights

The Group received a deposit from customer
before the delivery of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials for video features. It
was recognised as contract liabilities until the Group
performs under the contract.

Artist management services

The Group received a deposit from customer in
respect of the artist entertainment job. It was
recognised as contract liabilities until the Group
completes its artist management service, which is
when the artist completed the entertainment job.

TEANAERRSE L RN FUE

PN
rEn
IR

a R HE MR E

REBRRS RS Z Eam Mk
GIERER 2 ZHETRIRE PR
T WHERRAMAR  BER
REERBENEORBLL -

b 2BAERRY

AEBREARETERIEP
Al WHHRRENEE H
EREETTHREAEE RS A
BATRIRETE) BLE
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32 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(Continued)

Wholesale of watches

The Group received deposits from its wholesale
customer for the purchase of watches. It was
recognised as contract liability until it is utilised, The
amount was utilised when the sales is completed,
which is when watches are delivered.

Sale of optical products

The Group received deposits from its walk-in
customer for purchase of optical products. It was
recognised as contract liability until it is utilised. The
amount is utilised when the customer picks up the
optical products and pays the remaining balance for

EHNEE®

BsE ()

(i

fEdz s

FEESEERERMILETP K
MEJE - AN AEHERR
AMAaE EHEEK(ANEE
BREZXME - MIEHSHERD
A -

RIFEMIAE

REELEERFE MM ARER
HWEPWEGT £ - ERNEB AR
ERRANEAE - EXPIER
HRBHER S ERRE - A
ERSEWBA -

the sale transaction.

Movement in contract liabilities BREEE
2020 2019
—2oRF —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At the beginning of the year RE ] 193,454 5,988
Reclassified to other payables upon RENER BRI IR EH
contract modification and termination DIEEHAMEN IR (25,256) -
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRER AN ZE
a result of being recognised as AHAaBERY
revenue during the year (74,743) (2,189)
Increase in contract liabilities as TERFBEH CEHEE
a result of billing in advance N 3,942 189,655
At the end of the year RER 97,397 193,454

As at 30th June 2020, approximately HK$97,397,000
of deposits received are expected to be recognised as
income within one year (2019: HK$193,454,000).

RZE-FTFNA=Z+H  BHAR
—FRAERBRAZERIT &5
#) /97,397,000 L (= —NF
193,454,00058 7T) °
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N DL - =
33 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 33 BRI AIE 1B
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) BrFRATES I ok GEA) T3 &1
the following: &IFH -
2020 2019
b S 23 20k
(Note)
(R
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
BE gL R B
BELH TELH &t BE%H EEEH 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fi#n Fign AL T AL
(a)  Staff costs: (a) BIRK:
Salaries, allowances, and other F¢  2HMRAER
benefits lincluding directors’ BH(BEES
emoluments (Note 36)) i (ff3236) 61,275 s 61275 38677 1612 40,289
Contributions to defined TR R B
contribution retirement plans 1,654 - 1,654 1,715 46 1,761
82929 ST 03 168 400
(b)  Otheritems: (b)  HtEE
Auditors' remuneration BEANE
- audit services - B 1425 2% 1450 1615 138 1,753
- other services - Bt 290 = 290 490 S 490
1,115 25 1,740 2,106 138 2,243
Amortisation i
- film rights (Note 9) - S () 44,149 = 44,149 1,747 = 1,747
- other intangible assets -EfhEREE
(Note 8) (i) 397 = 397 148 = 148
Impairment loss of fim BEMERE R
rights and films in progress EYRERE
(Note 9) (Fzx9) 4,653 - 4,653 165 - 165
Impairment loss of fim EYRETRL
related deposits HEBE 11,356 = 11,356 67 > 67
Impairment loss of (Note 6) RESE ()
~ property, plant and equipment -0% - BEREE 1,090 = 1,090 = = =
- right-of-use assets -FREAE 2,069 = 2,069 S S S
Impairment loss of other AEREEL
intangible assets (Note 8) BEEE ) 1,165 - 1,165 - - -
Depreciation charge (Note 6) RERZ (Hik6)
~ property, plant and equipment -0%  BEREE 3,027 = 3,021 2,844 51 2,895
- right-of-use assets -FREAE 11,539 = 11,539 S S S
Net foreign exchange losses NEBEFE 100 27 121 4215 2 4,237
Total minimurn lease payments RAABEABHEL
for leases previously classified ENTRAEALEEE
as operating leases under LRERERERR
HKAS 17 (Note 6) @& (o) - = = 11,548 1232 12,780
Variable lease payments not VR NEERETEL
included in the measurement of NERERZ (o)
lease liabilities (Note 6) 633 - 633 912 - 912
Expense relating to short-term HEHEERNNEE
leases and other leases with FHR-Z-Z
remaining lease term ending ANAZTREZE
on or before 30th June 2020 ERIEMEE
(Note 6) R (Miio) 2,887 = 2,887 = = =
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEREREL
low value assets (Note 6) Fi% (36 64 = 64 = = =
Cost of inventories (Note 19) FERA(IE19) 41,025 = 41,025 27,254 - 27,254
Gross rental income from RENERSKA
investment properties less BERERRY
direct outgoings of HK$178,311 1783118
2019: HK$184,013) (ZB-nF: A
184,013 7T) 962 - 962 923 - 923 b4
Written off of property, Mz - A o
plant and equipment (Note 6) JETAGED) S 3 = 1611 = 1611 ¥
BEFREVEBERAR —TTFFH
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33 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 33 KREIATEIE @
2020 2019
k- S22 —INE
(Note)
(=)
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total  operations operation Total
b BAL L B
BEx FEE #x mEER e &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL FHRL TAR TAT TAT TAL
(c)  Finance costs (c) BHEEA
Interest on lease liabilties HEBEFE 542 = 542 = = =
Total interest expense on DHERERR
financial liabilities not AHEARZ
at fair value through SRARL
profit or loss G 542 = 542 - - -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the Mz "&EBEEFREITABEERER
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the BEEMBHREENFE 165 - LA
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1(i). ET  HERERATFEY - BHF
2.100) °
34 CHANGE IN EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS/ 34 FEHAEEEIE REEEZ
IMPAIRMENT LOSS -4
During the year, the following gains/(losses) in relation FR-UTEBHERESREEZK
to impaired financial assets were recognised in the @/ (BRREE2ERERER -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2020 2019
St 23 ZENE
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
<7 | AL BE BRI
BEXK LExk @t BEzH ) @t

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00
TR Thn TERL ThR TR ThT

Nt [change for)write-back of REEEFRER
expected credit losses allowances (23 /ERFE
- Accounts receivable - BWER (1,066) 1,500 434 780 3500 4280
- Loans receivable - EMER (18,780) = (18,780) (18,715) = (18.715)
- Loan to an associate -RI-HEEAAL
& (3,586) - (3,586) (815) - (815)
- Other receivables -G ey 257 = 257 (8,073) - 8,073)
(23,175) 1,500 (21,675) (26,823) 3,500 (23,323)
%
£ 8
R,
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35 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

35

e M BB RME

& RIKER

TERBHFIRINETE
REEREE LR ERTES S
PIRERERBHIRETZENE
BRV-—ERHMEABEEHE(RESD
itEl)) - BESHI A —HABIUX
ANEENERHFEAREE - RIFQE
T8 BREREEESZAAZEEN
AU A% A EIHR - &&E AME
B A /530,000/8 7T © &t I FRBNE 57
B o

AEERTENHEBAREESZEA
B R T A% 37 RO B R B R AR IR AR MR
g - REMBARARFENHRERD
EE [7) 3% SR AR AR A 5T 81 R A ST A8 A o
AEBEZRKENGENE—BEIR
1R AR E B R

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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36 EEME

REBEE B (R AEG]) 3831 E M (AT
(BREBEEENRERDRIDE O BRE
MEZEMEMT

36 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30th June 2020

BE-E-_EFEXRA=THLEE

Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme

Name of Directors Fees inkind contributions Total
R 11 RIK
ESnE ok REWFIR A MRS okl
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT FHT F#7
Chairman and TE#
executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil WRESE = 15,850 18 15,868
Executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Kit Sun WEREE = 1,460 18 1,478
Non-executive director HHITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (Note (i) A 2 5 A (HI5EG) = 10 = 10
Independent non- BT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung Wk 130 = = 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon kB AL 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing el L P 130 = = 130
390 17,320 36 17,746
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36 DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (continued) % EEFMME@
For the year ended 30th June 2019 HE-_ZT-NFNA=ZTHLFE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme
Name of Directors Fees inkind  contributions Total
He o 2E RIK
BEEHE e REMM = AR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TET FHET
Chairman and ITEE
executive director HITEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil M NR % A& = 5,450 18 5,468
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (Note (i) AR 2 5 A (BTEE() - 210 = 210
Mr. Lam Kit Sun W LS = 1,455 18 1,473
Non-executive director FHITEFE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (Note (i) AR 2 5 A (PR - 50 = 50
Independent non- BT
executive directors EZ
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WEREE 130 = = 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon KB AL 130 = = 130
Mr. Tang Yiu Wing BRgks 130 = = 130
Mr. Chong Ki Ming (Note (ii) HEI 8 5 A (B3R Gi) 73 - - 73
Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason T BE &£ aEii)
(Note (iii)) 73 - - 73
536 7,165 36 7,737

Notes: MIsE -

(i)~ Mr. Hung Cho Sing was redesignated as an non-executive i) HEEREERZ-_ZT-NF-A—AHA
director of the Company on 1st February 2019 resigned EAEARBIERITES TR T —
as a non-executive director of the Company on 31st July NEELA=Z+—BBREARRFIEHRT
2019. EHo

(i) Mr. Chong Ki Ming retired as an independent non- (i) HREEERZZT-NF+ZA=T
executive director of the Company on 21st December —BARAERARBLIENITES -
2018.

(i)~ Mr. Wong Cheuk Wai, Jason retired as an independent (il EBEEIENR-_Z—NEFE+_A=-+
non-executive director on 21st December 2018. —BEMBIIERTES -

During the vyear, no director of the Company has waived AAREEFAMERETMME - M

any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or NS B UM ) () E B S S sk R AR _

payable by the Group to any of the directors as an e EREEMAREEIMAKRE g

inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as B B ) SR ED Sk BB A 1 o

compensation for loss of office. _3’5'1

BrRey (EEERAT —E-THEH 299 M4
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37 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 31 meFHAL

EMOLUMENTS

REAREB LA RSHFATERIEMSE
“T-NF WRBEBEER BEZHE
HBEERN EXHEI62T 2D TAR
BEoEBRZ-ZRKR(CT—NAF: ZRH)AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included two Directors (2019:
two) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 36 above. The emoluments payable to

the remaining three (2019: three) individuals during the RERZERNMEST -
year are as follows:

2020 2019
—EBEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMHe 15,603 5,201
Contributions to retirement scheme IRORET IR 54 54
15,657 5,255

HEHME THIHEA -

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

=R(CE-NAF ZR)REFALZ

The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals

with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

FETIEER :

2020 2019
—EZEF —ET-hEF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,00187TE
1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,008 T2
3,500,000 7T = 1
HK$13,000,000 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,000/8 T2
13,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
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EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH

38 OTHER INCOME 38 HAMUA
2020 2019
ZBCEE “Z-NE
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
b7 | BAL b5 BAL
- F 3 fey @it Bezh Bez )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Ti#gn THR Tn Thn Thn
Sponsorship income BB = = = 5,649 = 5,649
Rental income H2WA 424 = 424 270 = 270
Screening income FHelA 59 = 59 56 = 56
Promotion cost markup SENARE = = = 21 = bl
Dividend income from financial FRBERLTENR
assets at fair value through profit LEBEERS
or loss WA = = = 1,007 = 1,007
Government subsidy R 15509 = 1509 - e S
Others £ 886 4 890 2807 16 2823
2818 4 2,882 9,810 16 9,826
39 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 39 Hfttls (&18) - 4
2020 2019
ZECEF “E-NE
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
57| AL B BRI
L E BExK @it Bexh BEZH )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn THR T Thn Thn
Handling charge for termination of RIIBEREGZTES
film investment agreement 1,148 - 1,148 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HEREE
plant and equipment LER - - - (250) (70) (320)
Waiver of other payables HeEBENTE 3432 = 3432 S S S
Written back on provision for advance ~ EEZE A S 5EE
to artiste 60 - 60 - - -
Net foreign exchange loss EXBRTE (100) [21) (127) (4,215) 22) (4,237)
Witten off of property, HEnE  KBRERE
plant and equipment - - - (1,611) - (1.611)
Sales rebate HEE 3977 = 397 = = =
Amortisation of deferred day one STEERIAY
gain in respect of derivative EEERYEEH
financial instruments 5,545 - 5,545 1,636 - 1,636
Others £ 461 - 461 233 - 233
14,523 27 14,496 4,207) (92) 4,299)
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40 FINANCE INCOME 40 BEUWA
2020 2019
“ECEE ZE-0E
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
K BAL B BAL
Bz Bz &t Bexh BexH Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thr Thr T Tk Tk
Bank interest income RITHMESRA 2133 = 2133 2392 - 239
Other interest income EfFBRA 854 = 854 = = =
Finance income included FAGRRERERR
in consolidated statement of BB
comprehensive income 2,987 - 2,981 2,392 - 2,392
Loan interest income (included EFMSMAGA
in total revenue in consolidated FarENBRML
statement of comprehensive ahs)
income) 7889 - 7,889 7,687 - 7687
Total interest income MERABE 10,876 = 10,876 10,079 = 10,079
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41 TAXATION 41 FiE
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) SrEEZER=ERKRAZ
comprehensive income PG
2020 2019
ZBCEF “E-NE
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total operations operation Total
57| BAL b BRIE
BEXH LExk @it Bex% ) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thx Tén Thr Thr T
Current tax SEEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
(Overlfunder provision in HEE(REEE)/
prior year BETR (205) - (205) 294 20) 274
Deferred tax EEHE
Origination and reversal of it EEn
temporary differences ELRAE 64 = 64 (“17) = [#17)
Income tax credt FERER (141) - (141) (123) (20) (143)

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT"”) has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 30th June 2020 and
2019 as the Group has no assessable profits under
EIT for both years.

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30th June 2020
and 2019, respectively.

EBFNEREBEEIRFRNMEEE
EBOEANEN16.5% (ZF— L -
16.56%)1H -

WERPHCEMESHR ((REME
MORBEZZE-_ZEFR=-_FT—N
FRAZTHEFERAMERE
EHEE - REABAEERZME
FELTEACENESHRIEBE T ZIER
Fisam Al o

TERARENABELESHE
TRIELBE  REAREBRREZE
TECEER-TE-NAFERNA=T
AtFETERZSRAERES
JERTEU AT

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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e M BRRHE

41 TAXATION (Continued) 41 FIH @
(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting (b) FEmEERERRESE Y @t
profit/(loss) at the applicable tax rates: swmH (18 2 HER -
2020 2019
e —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATS B A F, (B518)
- from continuing operations - REBELEER (28,506) (118,600)
~ from discontinued operation - REERIEGEER
(Note 42) (fF3E42) 795 (3,118)
(27,711) (121,718)
Tax calculated at domestic tax E&B BBRAEF
rates applicable to profits S EEEAN
or losses in the respective BB ETED
countries I8 (4,535) (20,931)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of B FE (FBREEME),
prior years BETE (205) 274
Income not subject to tax MARM 2B (3,736) (2,155)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2 B
tax purpose 2,510 8,203
Tax effect of deductible temporary <R A 054 & B 14
difference not recognised ERMETE 843 1,101
Utilisation of previously AR ARER 2 FIE
unrecognised tax losses 18 (4,101) (52)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 TIAEE 11,220 13,213
Tax reduction TRIE R (11) -
Tax reduction from double taxation & EH =R 2 T BHIR
relief (2,126) -
Others EAh - 204
Income tax credit Fr 5 %1 1= 48 (141) (143)
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e M BB RME

42 DISCONTINUED OPERATION 42 ERIERERK
BE-T—/\EAAZ+ALEE &
EERIEBSCERTRBALT -
ERIEEEEBZ ZESTMT

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group ceased
its business in securities brokerage and margin financing.
The analysis of the results of discontinued operation is as

follows:
2020 2019
—E_EHF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Revenue Wz 33 196
Cost of revenue e B AR - -
Gross profit EF 33 196
Other income E U A 4 16
Other net losses HMEEF5E (27) (92)
Administrative expenses THAX (715) (6,738)
Change in expected credit loss FEHEEEEE 1,500 3,500
Profit/(loss) before taxation from REBRIHEEEBL 2
discontinued operation BB ATRT, (E518) 795 (3,118)
Income tax credit P15 %5 1e 43 - 20
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERIHEEEBL 2
discontinued operation FERM/(F8) 795 (3,098)
Attributable to: AT ARG -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZFS N 795 (3,098)
795 (3,098)

Net cash flows from discontinued operations are as

follows:

ERIRERBZRESFRENT ¢

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from EERTERTE (FiEM)
operating activities 2 e FE 11,153 (52,460)
Net cash outflows from investing WEXEBGFER
activities REF5E - -
Net cash outflows from financing BVEEBIFTIER 2
activities e F5 - -
Total net cash inflows/(outflows) FRERA (R B 11,153 (52,460)

EFRET(EMERAT —F-TFER 305 M
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2 A =
e MR
43 LOSS PER SHARE 43 FREE
(a) Basic (a) EZA
Basic profit/(loss) per ordinary share is calculated BRETBBREANEF (BB iR
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of RAREE ARMEEF, (BB B
the Company by the weighted average number of LA AE 8T @A 2 INEF 58
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated A3 FETE -
as follows:
2020 2019
—BBHF —E-NF
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of ZANQ A A B HF],
the Company (HK$'000) (BB (FET)
- from continuing operations - REFELEEY (27,858) (118,102)
— from discontinued - REBERIELE
operation E 795 (3,098)
- from continuing and - REHEREKIE
discontinued operations 1R TS (27,063) (121,200)
Weighted average number of BEITEER 2 INE
ordinary shares in issue T 906,632,276 906,632,276
Basic profit/(loss) per ordinary share &% & @R EAEF
(HKS) (B518) (B 7T)
~ from continuing and - REFERDKLE
discontinued operations 1T (0.0299) (0.134)
- from continuing operations - REFELEER (0.0307) (0.131)
— from discontinued - REBR I
operation Ei S 0.0008 (0.003)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMET IS (ER)
(Basic)
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET—NF
Issued ordinary shares at RtA—BEA~A=+H
1st July and 30th June BETEBR 906,632,276 906,632,276
¥
e
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43 LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

The diluted profit/(loss) per share is the same as the
basic loss per share for the year ended 30th June
2020 (2019: same) as there is no potential dilutive
share issued during the year.

44 DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable during the year

e M BB RME

43 BREEBE®

(b) #F
HE-_Z-_ZFA=+HLF
B SREBEEN (R R
BEXEERR(ZZE—NF :
[ TYEFERIEE 17 /8T

HALD -
44 BB

la) 4FEPIREAL AR

PR FEAE AR B
2020 2019 2020 2019

“EC2F —T-HNF ZEBZEF C—T-NF
HKS$ per HKS per

ordinary ordinary
share share HK$'000 HK$'000
SREER SRLTER
BT BT THET THT
First Special Dividend declared EE R &R 2 &R
and paid (Note (i) IR S () = 0.30 = 271,990
Second Special Dividend BERRKNZEZR
declared and paid (Note {ii)) Rl S (BT EE ) = 0.15 = 135,995
- 0.45 - 407,985

3
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44 DIVIDENDS (cContinued)

(a)

(b)

B R AR M R

=y

Dividends payable to equity shareholders (a)
of the Company attributable during the year
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 17th September 2018, it was proposed by the
Board and approved by the shareholders at the
special general meeting that: (i) the amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company be reduced by HK$893,345,000; (ii) the
credit arising from the share premium reduction be
transferred to the contributed surplus account of
the Company; and (iii) the Board be authorised to
make a distribution of a special dividend of HK$0.3
per share up to HK$271,989,682.80 (“First Special
Dividend”) of the amount standing to the credit of
the contributed surplus account of the Company,
pro rata to the shareholders of the Company (“the
Distribution”).

The Distribution became unconditional on 4th
October 2018 and was made on 22nd October
2018.

(if) On 15th April 2019, it was further proposed by the
Board and approved by the shareholders at the
special general meeting that a special dividend of
HK$0.15 per share (“Second Special Dividend”) be
paid out of the contributed surplus account of the
Company. The dividend was paid on 10th May 2019.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a (b)
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2020
(2019: Nil).

Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited Annual Report 2020

44 BRE @)

FRNEMNANRBERR
B R R HLE. ()

i) RZE—N\FhA+tH B=
FEZARIARREFINARE L
#E - (VAR FRDEERF
3 3R %8 41 950893,345,000/8 7T
(iR R EBREE 2 REE
BERQNRZEHAEL - Kii)
BREEZSBANREHAKRE
FR#EBREEE271,989,682.8058 T
B A AR B ER DR’
03B L2 HRIRE([EXER
EDTDIR]D °

DERZZE—NF+AMNEXE
g WER - N\FE+A
—+-HfEH -

(i) MZTE-NFWA+HH E=F
S — PR BERRNBCRAE R
RE EHERAR B BHBHIR
FOR & AX0.157 7T 2 1 Bl AR B
(TEZRFRIRE]D - ZRER
“E-AFHEATBIR -
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e M BB RME

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 45

(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to cash generated

from operations:

(Loss)/profit before tax for the year

From continuing operations

From discontinued operation

(Note 42)
Adjustments for:

- Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 6)

= Amortisation of film rights
(Note 9)

— Amortisation of other intangible
assets (Note 8)

— Amortisation of deferred day
one gain in respect of derivative
financial instruments

= Fair value change on contingent
consideration receivable
(Note 22)

- Fair value change of other
financial assets

— Fair value change on investment
properties (Note 7)

= Impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets)
(Note 6)

= Impairment losses of interests
in associates (Note 11)

= Impairment losses of film rights
and films in progress (Note 9)

= Impairment losses of film
related deposits

- Change in expected credit loss
(Note 34)

= Write-down of inventories
(Note 19)

= Impairment loss of other
intangible assets (Note 8)

= Write off of property, plant and
equipment (Note 39)

- Reversal of write-down of
inventories (Note 19)

HMIREREER
(a) mEBAEBERLEEL B Y
BE -
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHEIT
(Note)
(f3E)
FRZBRBA(ER),EH
REFELEER (28,506) (118,600)
REDRIHEE R
(fzE42) 795 (3,118)
MY SBEERAE
- ¥ - HENRE
2 E (Bi3Ee) 14,566 2,895
- BRI 2 B
GER) 44,149 1,747
- HibEPEE 2 Y
GED) 397 148
-MOTESRIAY
RIS B U 6
(5,545) (1,636)
- RS AREZAF
BEE(MF22)
- 3,796
= Hﬂﬂﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬂﬁ
3,581 19,437
= &éﬁ%% NFEEH
(P sE7) = (2,100)
-WE  BERRER
FEEREEE) 2R
EEEICIEDS)
3,159 -
- REE N E 2 EERE
BRI = 1,065
- EXMRERBEREY
ZREERE ) 4,653 165
-EXHEET2RE
[E518 11,356 67
- EEEEE
(B3¥34) 21,675 23,323
- 78 Z MUs (FF3E19)
421 2,679
-HihEFEEZRE
fE518 (f3E8) 1,165 =
-~ MsETE - ERNRE
(B13£39) = 1,611
- B EMREE (19
(406) (59)
ERRUS(LERERAT —B-DEER
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B RS R MR

e

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 45

(a)

HitREREER @

(Continued) (a) &
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(Note)
(B 5E)
- Net loss on disposal of - HEWE  #ER
property, plant and BB BB
equipment (Note 39) (FfF7E39) = 320
- Finance income (Note 40) — B (H4340) (2,987) (2,392)
- Finance costs (Note 33(c)) - BA R AR (B 333 (c)) 542 =
- Waiver of other payables - G E M B RIE
(Note 39) (FF7E39) (3,432) =
- Share of losses of associates - (LB N E)EE 1,085 795
- Net foreign exchange loss - SN B R F R 1,844 225
~ Written back on provision for - BRIEA BB
advance to artists (Note 39) (F5E39) (60) =
Changes in working capital: LEESEY
- Inventories -FE (1,761) (3,809)
- Accounts receivable - FEUER K (61,510) 23,266
- Amount due to/from an associate ~ — JEAT /U — [ HE
UNGIE/ S’z (2,778) 2,814
— Loans receivable - EWER 39,749 (25,100)
- Loan to an associate -EBEY—MHBEQARZ
B® 702 1,636
- Deposits paid, prepayments -BNF®  BEHE
and other receivables & H b fE YR TE 67,865 72,817
- Accounts payable - EERR 8,480 2,303
— Other payables and accrued - Efth BRI AT
charges X 87,533 (37,778)
- Deposits received = (29,446) 26,383
- Contract liabilities -EHAaE (95,259) 187,466
- Financial assets at fair value -EBiEmREATE
through profit or loss ARZeREE 5,391 40,665
- Bank balances and cash - RITEBRERS
- trust accounts -5 F 89 6,288
Cash generated from operations LEBELXCES 87,507 227,249
Tax refund RO FHIE 2,242 S
Tax paid EHiE (346) (3,957)
Refund/(purchase) of tax certificate R[] /(B A) 55 45 (45)
Net cash generated from operating ~ &EEBEL 2 FH G
activities 89,448 223,247
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e M BB RME

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 45 HAIREREEF @)

(Continued) (a) @&

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the st AREBDFERALEITEWNEE
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the RIEREAMBREERNE 16
opening balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise g WHABR -_E—HILELA
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to — B HU R A TER LBl $E
leases which were previously classified as operating EEEeIERSB179% 98
leases under HKAS 17. Previously, cash payments EIRE ~ TSR ﬁagﬂf;ﬁ%
under operating leases made by the Group as P NS G - EBA
a lessee of HK$13,692,000 were classified as i%iﬁ%%{/\iﬁgl«‘%%
operating activities in the consolidated cash flow EB T4 513,692, OOO/%
statement. Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term PALE A3 S 7 BB 5 ) 47 15 A
lease payments, payments for leases of low value \7%%% ':' ﬁ;%\%aﬁ;i&; -
assets and variable lease payments not included in ;HTJ/ 5 . %%JHH%EQT‘J‘S”T—
the measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals =16 ﬁf; o
paid on leases are now split into capital element 1E§F1E§F%ﬂ,\ﬁ &—JXﬂ
and interest element (see note 45(b)) and classified ENRTMAHERENE
as financing cash outflows. Under the modified 9‘\ ' ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ\@?fﬁ%\iHZﬁ
retrospective approach, the comparative information iﬁfﬁﬁ:% %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ %
is not restated. See note 2.1(i). o (RHFE45(0) » HEA

MER ML - RIBLERTE
WE - LEBRERTTES - R
FiRE2.16)
2020 2019
ZBIEE “T-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT Fi57
a. Disposal of property, plant and a. HEWE BERRE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) REME(fi5E6) = 354
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BBRH
plant and equipment (Note 39) ZEBEFE (39 - (320)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BBERRE
property, plant and equipment T8 3E - 34
b. Lease liabilities b. HERE
At the end of the year RER 15,475 7
Add: Exchange difference m:-ERES 179
Modification of lease contract HEEHER 334
Less: Increase in lease liabilities from B FRRIUFEE L
entering into new leases HEBELM
during the year (8,231)
Less: At 30th June A RANA=TH (7) (25)
Impact on initial application of EN R e
HKFRS 16 EAIF 165 2T & (19,392) -
(19,399) (25)
Capital element of finance lease REMENRZER
payments 5 - (18) 4
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHe 2 ERED (11,642) - 4]
EFREXCEBERAT —B-THEER 311 =8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continues) 45 HAtIR & REER @

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) mBEBELEAMEBEZEE:
activities:
Obligation
Lease under
liabilities  finance lease Total
HEEE mMERERE @it

At 1st July 2018 RZZ-N\EtA-H - 25 25
Changes from financing cash MERSRELT

flows:
Capital element of finance leases BEMENRZERED

payment - (18) (18)
Total changes from financing cash ~ BIEREREZ EEEE

e O ettt aeann PUTUUTUTUUN L SR (18),

At 30th June 2019 RZZE-AFEAA=TH 7 7
Impact on initial application of BRI REEA

HKFRS 16 F16 72 19,399 (7) 19,392
At 1st July 2019 REETAEEATR 1939 DU 19399
Capital element of lease rentals paid &M S 2 EAREH (11,642) S (11,642)
Interest element of lease rentals paid CHEERE 2 Fl855 (542) - (542)
Total changes from financing AMERSREZEBE

cash flows (12,184) - (12,184)
Other changes: Hin#
Increase in lease liabilities from FRITUHHECHERELEM

entering into new leases during

the year 8,231 - 8,231
Decrease in lease modification HBEBRRY (334) - (334)
Interest expenses FBAX 542 S 542
Exchange difference EHER (179) - (179)
Total other changes Hin2s)as 8,260 S 8,260
At 30th June 2020 RZZZZFEAA=TH 15,475 = 15,475

&
{1
i
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e M BB RME

45 OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 45 HMIE S REER @

(c) Total cash outflow for leases c) MERSRLRZE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for SFARERERCHESHEBIEN
leases comprise the following: T&IE

2020 2019

g Jemp 2.2 —N&F

(Note)

(B53)

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx T

Within operating cash flows REBERSMEN 3,584 13,692
Within financing cash flows RBERESREN 12,184 18
15,768 13,710

Note: As explained in the note to note 45(b), the adoption BT« Sl anB 3T 45(b) 2 M ST PR AR A2 -

of HKFRS 16 introduces a change in classification
of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The
comparative amounts have not been restated.

These amounts relate to the following:

ﬁ%%m%‘\?’éﬂﬁ%i&%

ﬁﬁlJ%m%ﬁi%

g ”“*E%IA—IE&E *ﬁfﬁtbf
SHETTET -

ZETBEENTEEEGH

2020 2019

—B-EF —ZE-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Lease rentals paid B e 15,768 13,710

BEFRELEBMERQR —

4
[l

A
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e M BRRHE

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a)

A court action was commenced in the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region on 17th April 2002 by The Star Overseas
Limited (“Star"”), an independent third party, against
Universe Entertainment Limited (“UEL"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) was
payable by UEL to Star as its share of the revenue
of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie").

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, UEL was ordered
and had paid to Star a sum of HK$5,495,700, being
part of the license fee of the Movie received by
UEL from Miramax Films (being the licensee of the
Movie) and which was also part of the sum claimed
by Star. Pursuant to the Order, UEL is also liable
to pay Star interest in the sum of HK$350,905 and
some of the costs of the application leading to the
making of the Order, all of which have been settled.
As the Order has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star,
UEL is entitled to continue to defend the claim by
Star for recovering the remaining balance in the
sum of approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799
less HK$5,495,700).

On 30th April 2002, UEL claimed against Star for
the latter's wrongful exploitation of certain rights in
the Movie co-owned by both parties. UEL claimed
to recover all losses and damages suffered by UEL
as a result of the wrongful exploitation.

46 ARORFFFR

(a)
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BIE LR EREBREFR
e ) B S 54935,872F Tt (HHE R
7,299,79987T)  fERD E—EE
BlIOMERIZER(ZEXDZ
Ug 25 o

BESSEEIREN_ZEET=F_A
Tt+t—HBEBEZES(ZESD
EFREFFSRERERB I
5,495,700/ 7T © B E FIREEFZ
B M Miramax Films (B2 & &7
IR AN WELZ B D REE
REBREBzHD SR - RIBZ
B BEFRETERNEBX M
£ %8350,9058 7L 2 T B R BFEE
HZESHEIER FHER
HEXHN BRZESTETS
iR 2 ¥ B8 935,872 T (HE R
7,299,799 L) 2 B R1E » tHE
FIRG BB R BN R RETT
PuiE - LA B8R EEAD1,804,099/8
7t (BN7,299,7997% LI 5,495,700
HBIT) ©
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46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, claimed against Star for
the latter’'s infringement of the licensed rights in
the Movie held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by ULV as a result of
the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended
30th June 2020.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. ("KPE") claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the Directors), being three
of the defendants named therein, in respect of
damages arising from alleged infringement of the
patents regarding Video Compact Disc owned by
KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the said claim made against
the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.
The Board is of the opinion that the outflow of
economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2020.

e M BB RME

46 FRIRFFFR@

(a)

EFREVLEBERLQF

(&)

R-BZ_FNANE  XRFIL
—HRR2EMB R AR THES
FARRR(ETESDEELE
RILETEG A BRI
BRmARERERE - RFESE
AR RETAMSERE 2 —
DBRANEBE -

RIFZEERZER - BREERER
HEFTREN TRREEREBR
FBF  EEZSRRUBETREN
PRREZERTERBEE_FT
ZERA=ZTRILFEHAEEE
REARMGEE -

RZZEZN\FNA—AH ' Koninklijke
Philips Electronics N.V.([KPEJ) A
(BB ARaE - EFEH RN
NREE(ER—RES) (FEm o
FHEP =W E)REEARER
RILKPEFTIF BRAR & ENFF)
BEMELZIBRZERE -

RIpZEERZER - BREERER
HARRA] - BFES M NREE
MEAREERDBRFBE - &

S RAE RE BRI R EE
At MU BEEEZ T
ZERNA=ZTRLEFELFAMBR
KATLAREELE T B EFH &
o

ZECTEFR
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e M BRRHE

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 8th January 2010, KPE claimed against among
other persons, the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil (one of the directors of the Company),
being three of the defendants named therein,
in respect of damages arising from the alleged
infringement of the patents regarding Digital Video
Disc owned by KPE.

On 6th June 2012, the action was discontinued
against the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The claim made against ULV has been
agreed with KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate
legal costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2020. Based on the consultation
with legal counsel, no further material outflow of
economic benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited ("UAM"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, commenced Court of First Instance
Action against Kwong Ling and Oriental Prosperous
Int'l Entertainments Limited (collectively the
“Defendants”) on 30th June 2014 claiming inter
alia for a declaration that UAM is entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the “Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3rd
May 2014 to 2nd May 2019.

46 FRIRFFFR @

(c)
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46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaimed on 29th September 2014. By such
counterclaim, the Defendants claiming against
UAM inter alia for a declaration that the Artist
Management Contract was void and unenforceable,
the Artist Management Contract to be rescinded,
damages for breach of the Artist Management
Contract and for breach of fiduciary duties, a
declaration that UAM is liable to account to the
Defendants and an order for payment of all sums
found to be due by UAM to the Defendants. The
parties have finalized their pleadings and completed
discovery and exchange of witness statements. As
well as other matters for setting down this action
for trial. Pursuant to the application of the parties,
the trial of this action has been fixed by the court to
take place on 27th September 2021 with 10 days
reserved.

Given the complexities of the factual and legal
issues to be resolved, in the opinion of legal
counsel, it is premature to assess the likely
outcome of this Action.

The Board considers that the amounts of
counterclaim by the Defendants against UAM is
insignificant to the Group as a whole.

e M BB RME
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e M BRRHE

46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(e)

On 16th July 2018, Lucky Famous Limited (“Lucky
Famous”) commenced Court of First Instance
Action claimed against Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“Fragrant River”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
Company (“Lucky Famous Action”) for inter alia the
sum of HK$20.4 million as the adjustment to the
consideration (the “Adjustment Amount”) alleged
to be payable under an agreement dated 13th June
2016 (the “Disposal Agreement”) pursuant to which
Lucky Famous purchased from Fragrant River 51%
of the issued share capital of AP Group Investment
Holdings Limited. Lucky Famous applied to amend
the writ and statement of claim to join Chan Sze
Long and Lim Wah Elsa as defendants in the Lucky
Famous Actions for certain claims against them.
The Court allowed the application of Lucky Famous
on 24th September 2019.

Up to the date of this report, the parties are still
negotiating for a settlement of the matter. In
any event, as the exchange of evidence has not
been completed, in the opinion of legal advisor,
it is not practicable to assess the likely outcome
of this Action. Without admitting any liability to
Lucky Famous under the Disposal Agreement,
the Adjustment Amount of HK$20.4 million was
recognised as at contingent consideration payable
in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2020.
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46 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(f) ~ On 11th March 2020, China Jianxin Credit Services
Limited (“China Jianxin”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commenced the Court
of First Instance Action of the High Court of Hong
Kong against China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited
("China Wah Yan") for among other things, (a) the
outstanding balance of HK$16,175,304.11, being
the outstanding principal and the interest accrued
up to 11th March 2020 thereon under a loan
agreement entered into between China Jianxin and
China Wah Yan on 30th April 2019; (b) interest on
the said outstanding principal of HK$15,800,000.00
at the rate of 8.5% per annum from 12th March
2020 until full payment; (c) costs of the Action; and
(d) further and other reliefs (the “Original Action”).

China Wah Yan filed their defence and counterclaim
on 15th September 2020. According to such
defence and counterclaim, China Wah Yan and
Sky Clear Bright Group Limited (“Sky Bright”),
the wholly owned subsidiary of the China Wah
Yan counterclaim against China Jianxin, Precise
Reach Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil,
the director and chairman of the Company for
the damages to be assessed, interest, costs and
further or other reliefs in relation to the alleged
misrepresentation and the alleged set-off by
China Wah Yan and Sky Bright in extinction or in
diminution of the claim of the Original Action.

Up to the date of this report, as the exchange of
evidence has not been completed, in the opinion of
legal advisor, it is not practicable to assess the likely
outcome of this Action.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2020, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

47 COMMITMENTS 47 EIE
(a) Operating leases commitments (a) ARETHERE

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had future RZZE—NFAA=TH  ~&E
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- RIET AT < L EHE MR R
cancellable operating leases as follows: Rtz BB ENRTBEWNT

2019

—T-NF

HK$'000

FHET

Land and buildings T REF
Not later than one year BB —F 11,390
Later than one year and not later than BR—FRTHRBRF
five years 10,668
22,058

Certain department store counters and retail
stores include payment obligations with rental
varied with gross revenue. The additional rental
payable (contingent rents) is determined generally
by applying pre-determined percentages to future
revenue less minimum lease payment of the
respective leases.

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number
of properties which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. The Group
has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1st
July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
these leases (see note 2.1(i)). From 1st July 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2.10,
and the details regarding the Group's future lease
payments are disclosed in note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)  Other commitments

As at 30th June 2020, the Group had commitments
contracted but not provided for in these
consolidated financial statements as follows:

Purchase of film rights and BESTRER

production of films (Note i) BUE (D)
Licence agreement hi 8 175 =

Included in the commitment for the purchase of
film rights and production of films, an amount
of approximately HK$6,001,000 is related to the
joint operation arrangements of film production
as at 30th June 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$79,522,000).

Note i:

48 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS
As at 30th June 2020, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

e M BB RME

47 EIE )

(b) HAbFE
R-Z-BEXA=+A  F%E
BATHERNGA BB RREHEZ

=8,
=N

AENT
2020 2019
—ZEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
74,112 152,806
- 977

Mizri: RZE-_ZTFA=Z+HFA
BEEYRERE R ERE
K& 58496,001,00008 T (=&
— L5 : #979,522,000/8 7T) £
BEEY A ETHER -

48 RFEEHEZH

RZZEZZEFXNA=TH  FA5ERIE
AR 2 R EEE M SR ARRYEZ
RIEHEEFIHRAREOT

2020 2019

—B-EF —T-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Not later than one year THB—F 675 1,433
Later than one year and not later than MR —F R THBBRF

five years - 732

675 2,165

EFREVCEBERLDR —T_ZFFH
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e

B RS R MR

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49 BEALTZRE
(a) Tenancy Agreements a) THEWH=E

The following transactions related to the tenancy
agreement with Universe Property Investment
Limited which is wholly-owned by a director of the
Company (Note a)

i) Rental expenses ) HelxX
i) Repayment of lease liabilities i) (EEHEEE
i) Interest on lease liabilities iy HEAEFE

Note a: Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Universe Property Investment Limited
("UPI"), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil, the executive director of the
Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit and
(2) 5 carparking spaces in an industrial building
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking
uses in Kwai Chung from 25th February 2018
to 24th February 2021, at a monthly rental
of HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”)
which were arrived at following arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and UPI with
reference to the rental valuation performed
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent property valuer, as at 22nd January
2018 which reflected the then market rent. The
Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July
2019. Under HKFRS16, the Group recognized
depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest
expenses of HK$2,847,000 and HK$92,000
respectively instead of rental expenses during
the year. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in notes 2.1(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Tenancy Agreements (Continued)

As at 30th June 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments to UPI under non- cancellable operating
lease falling due as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Tiie—F
BB —FENERLSF

e M BB RME

19 BEEATZRE @

a) HEWZE®
RIE—NFEA=1TH AEER
BAOHECEHERNEFTMER
EZRRFEBEENZLE D HE
AT

2019
—ZT-hF
HK$'000
FiHET

2,928
1,952

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances at 1st July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see note 2.1(i)). From 1st July
2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2.10, and the
details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in note 28.
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e M BRRHE

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 49 BEALTZRZ @

(b) Details of key management compensation (b)

Key management personnel are those management
members with responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group.

==
=!

T BERBHM
EEEABRASRE  BTRR
EHRIAKE RS CEEE -

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Salaries and other short-term FehHEMBHBES
employee benefits & 17,710 7,701
Post-employment benefits BB RIKEF 36 36
17,746 7,737
(c) Transactions with an associate (c) R

During the year ended 30th June 2020, the
Group purchased optical products from HK
Optical for approximately HK$9,086,000 (2019:
HK$16,825,000), sold optical products to HK Optical
for approximately HK$5,578,000 (2019: HK$Nil), and
paid licence and management fee to HK Optical for
approximately HK$698,000 (2019: HK$905,000). The
Group also received rental income from HK Optical
of approximately HK$371,000 (2019: HK$270,000)
and income for recharge expenses of motor vehicle
from HK Optical of approximately HK$52,000 (2019:

BT =4 =+tB81t
FE AEBRKXERBEHE
#79,086,0008 L (= — L -
16,825,000 ) REER ~ HE
#45,5678,0008 T (=T — L. F :
THEL)BREERTXKERE -
FREXERZEZNFHFAIRER
£ 47698,0008 L (ZE— NLF -
905,000/ 7T) « AREETREX E R
EURERFE & YA #9371,00058 7T (=
T— A4 1 270,000 7T) M JSHEF

HE—HBERRZ
N A

HKS$Nil). BERARAL52,0008L(ZF—
NE - TE) °
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these br EXRRERE B ISR B A E o B
consolidated financial statements, no other material BEN  NEEW M H M E KRS
related party transactions have been entered into by ATRG - ZERG IR BABERBRE
the Group. The transactions were carried out after FREAREENBEEATEREETT -

negotiations between the Group and the related parties in
the ordinary course of business.
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e M BB RME

50 COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET 50 AEIEHEEEER
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FE T FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AaiLE 72,096 72,096
Property, plant and equipment ME - HBERERE - -
72,096 72,096
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B 58 113,088 402,524
Deposits paid BET& 243 560
. Gashand cash equivalents RERRASSEN 15061 ... 3,030 .
ettt eret et aratearateeraieantntrananirananerenaneanesss. N 128392 . 406,114
Total assets HEE 200,488 478,210
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to the KAREE AELER
owners of the Company
Share capital B A 25 9,066 9,066
Share premium 1= E 27(b) 35,013 35,013
Other reserves Hih R 27(b) 597,789 597,789
Accumulated losses 2EHE1E 27(b) (465,537) (423,440)
Total equity MR 176,331 218,428
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REARE
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B B A R FIE 21,891 257,284
Accrued charges Rt 2,266 2,498
24,157 259,782
. Total liabilities . B 24157 ... 259,782
Total equity and liabilities HERKREE 200,488 478,210
Net current assets RBEEFE 104,235 146,332
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 176,331 218,428
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50

51

52

COMPANY — LEVEL BALANCE SHEET

(Continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29th September 2020.

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun
Director Director
COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st July
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies are
disclosed in note 2.1(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 30th June 2020, the directors consider the immediate
holding company and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil respectively. Pioneer
Entertainment Group Limited, which is incorporated in
BVI, does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

50

51

51

NEEHEERER@®

ER_ZE_ZEFNA-_TNLBEE
B &Tﬂié T -

EE

LON; EEH

EF ¥

pa ¥
ARBER=FT-NFLA—REME

FEWEERERBEMBRSESERE

1657 « EUL AE T » kBB AT E
J o BETBURBE) 2 — LR IBNM
(V& -

BEERSRERQT

RZZEZZTFRA=1+H EFRAER
SENEEERAB REKREZERT SR
A Pioneer Entertainment Group Limited
K M/NER S & © Pioneer Entertainment
Group Limitedm 288 iE 2 Bt & sF i Ak
o WEREEAEARATFERNMS
Wk o
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Principal Properties Held for Investment Purposes

FIEREMBRZEENE

HONG KONG

Location

i B

Woodland House 1-5,
Woodlands Villa,

121 Tong Fuk Village,

Tong Fuk, Lantau Island,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R RIEL
ERERN1215%

I R E2 AR = 1 555

BE
Lot number Type
b E] BE
Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential

part, 1511, 1516, 1518, 1519,
1522 and 1523 in Demarcation
District 328

LB A E32849H R *=
F151058 %5 + 1611587 -

15165% * 15185% + 15195% -

152255 & 162353

RTFREXCEBEARAF

Lease term

HEFH
2047

T F

—EoBEER 327
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFEUBERE

RESULTS ¥EE
Year ended 30th June
BEAAZ+HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EF —“ZT-NF -\ —T—+F —T—xF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET FET TET FTET
(restated) (restated)
(E71)) (B3)
Revenue from continuing REFELEER L
operations W 226,767 61,669 86,673 195,717 134,961
Loss before income tax REFELEER L
from continuing operations BRETSTiRIE R (28,506) (118,600) (79,700) (121,332) (169,547)
Income tax credit/(expense) REBBELEEL L
from continuing operations FiEHES/
(A=) 141 123 3,586 (6,154 28,959
Loss attributable to ARRIERHEA
the equity holders of EEEB(REERLE
the Company (including BEEnB)
discontinued operations) (27,063) (121,200) (135,284) (114,328) (140,790)
Special dividend BAIRE = 407,985 = = =
Proposed final dividend BRARERE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 30th June
RAB=1H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EB-2f ENF ZE-N\F ZE—tF CZTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THz TEL FET TEL TET
Total assets BEE 683,788 724,694 1,081,443 1,456,934 1,150,731
Total liabilities oY= (328,896) (343,760) (164,470) (443,407) (398,810)
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